
CITY()F rll

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006





CIT OF PTISBURG, CALIFORNIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

PREPARED BY

THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Marie Simons
Director of Finance

Deborah M. Yamamoto
Finance Division Manager-Accountig

Janelyn Bayona
Accountant-Redevelopment

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * ** * * *



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Table of Contents

I INTRODUCTORY SECTION:

City Manager and Finance Director's Letter of Transmittal .......................................................................i
Organization Chart............................. ................................................................. ......... ................................... xi
Officials of the City of Pittsburg, California and the

Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pittsburg ..................................................................... .............xii
GFOA Certiicate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting .............................. ..............xiii

I FINANCIAL SECTION:

Independent Auditor's Report on Basic Financial Statements...........................................................................1

Management's Discussion and Analysis........................................................,...........................,......,....."....,.... 3

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets ................................................................................................................18
Statement of Activities................................................................. ...................................... ......... ..19

Fund Financial Statements:
Governental Funds:

Balance Sheet....................................,...........................................................................,.............. 22
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

with the Statement of Net Assets .................... ............................ .......................... ................ 24
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances............................. 26
Reconciliation of the Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental

Funds with the Statement of Activities.................................................................................28
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

- Budget and Actual:
General Fund .............,.............................................................................................,...............29
Low /Moderate Income Housing II Special Revenue Fund.............................................. 30
Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund................................................... ..............31
Housing Authority (Section 8) Special Revenue Fund...................................................... 32

Proprietary Funds:
Statement of Net Assets......................................,....,.................................................................34
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets ...........................................36
Statement of Cash Flows ................,..........................................................................................38

Fiduciary Funds:
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets...........................................................................................42

Notes to Financial Statements.,.........................,...................................,........,.......,..,............,..,......43



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Table of Contents

I FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):

Supplemental Information:

Major Governmental Funds Other Than the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds:
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual:
Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund.................................................... ................. 90
Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund ................ ......... ...... ......... ......... ...............91

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet ............................................................,.................................................96
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances......................................................................................................................1 00
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual:
Economic Development Special Revenue Fund ...............................................................103
Budget Stabilization Special Revenue Fund ......................................................................104
Small Cities Grants Special Revenue Fund............ ...... ............................ .................... ......1 05
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund............................................................................................106
Measure C Tax Fund Special Revenue Fund.....................................................................107
Lighting and Landscape Special Revenue Fund...............................................................l08
Lighting and Landscape Oak Hil Special Assessment District

Special Revenue Fund..,....,.................................................,...,',...................................,....109
San Marco CFD 2004-01 Special Revenue Fund................................................................110
Public Safety Services CFD 2005-1 Special Revenue Fund.. ....... ................ .................. ...111
Asset Seizure Special Revenue Fund ............................. .................. .................... .............. .112
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Special Revenue Fund............................. ........... ..113
Southwest Pittsburg GHAD II Special Revenue Fund ....................................................114
Storm Water Utility (NPDES) Special Revenue Fund......................................................115
HUD Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund .............. .............116
Miscellaneous Grants - Special Revenue Fund................................................................. 117
Traffic Mitigation Capital Projects Fund .......................... ............ ......................................118
Park Dedication Capital Projects Fund.. ......... .............................. ........................ .............119

Non-Major Enterprise Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Assets ........."......................................."......................................122
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets............... 123
Non-Major Enterprise Funds ..,....................,.................................."..........................................124

Internal Service Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Assets .........."..............................................................................126
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets...............127
Combining Statement of Cash Flows.........."....""...............,........................."........................., 128

Fiduciary Funds:
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds ...."...............130



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Table of Contents

I STATISTICAL SECTION:

Net Assets by Component - Last Five Fiscal Years ........................................................................132
Changes in Net Assets - Last Five Fiscal Years ..............................................................................133
Fund Balances of Governental Funds -Last Ten Fiscal Years ..................................................135
Assessed and Estimated Actual Values of Taxable Property - Last Ten Fiscal Years............ 138
Property Tax Rate All Overlapping Governments - Last Ten Fiscal Years............................ 139
Pricipal Property Tax Payers Current and Nine Years Ago...................................................... 140
Property Tax Levy and Collection - Last Ten Fiscal Years ...........................................................141
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years........................................................ 142
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years.......................................... 143
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt as of June 30, 2006 ............................................144
Computation of Legal Bonded Debt Margin as of June 30, 200 ................................................145
Revenue Bond Coverage 200 Wastewater Revenue Bonds - Last Ten Fiscal Years............. 146
Revenue Bond Coverage 1997 (Refunded) and 2005 Water Revenue Bonds-

Last Ten Fiscal Years ........................................................................................................................147
Bonded Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage Tax Allocation Bonds - Last Ten Fiscal Years.... 148
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal .............................................................149
Pricipal Employers Current Year and Nine Years Ago.............................................................. 150
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function ..............................................151
Operatig Indicators by Funtion/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years ..........................................152
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/ Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years .....................................154



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



January 25, 2007

Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
And Citizens of Pittsburg

Comprehensive Annual financial Report

Presented herein is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Pittsburg (the City)
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006. This report presents fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position and changes in financial position of the City as of and for the Fiscal Year ended
June 30, 2006. City management is responsible for the accuracy of the data, the fairness and
completeness of the presentation, and the inclusion of all disclosures that are necessary to enable
the reader to understand the City's operations. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) has been prepared in accordance with "generally accepted accounting principles" (GAAP)
in the United States of America.

Major Changes in Reportng

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local

Governments, which revised the City's fiancial reporting requirements. Governments comparable
in size to the City of Pittsburg were required to implement GASB Statement No. 34 for the Fiscal
Year ended June 30, 2003 and this is the fourth fiscal year the City of Pittsburg complies with the
GASB requirements. The major changes that resulted from GASB 34 include:

o Government-wide fiancial statements that are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City in a maner similar to a private-sector business. The statements cover
all of the City's activities (except fiduciary activities) and include the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Net Assets reports what the City
owns (assets), what it owes (liabilities) and what is left over after assets have been used to
satisfy liabilties (net assets). The Statement of Activities reports the City's expenses and
revenues, as well as other changes in its net assets during the year.

o Fund financial statements report the finances of fud groups within the City's reporting
entity - its governmental, proprietary and fiduciary fuds. Reconcilation that describes
the adjustments necessary to reconcile the governental fuds financial statements with
the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements are
included because the two types of statements measure the City's fiances differently.



.. Infrastructure assets are included .in the government-wide statement of net assets.

Governmental fud infrasb'ucture assets are roads, curbs, gutters, medians, sidewalks,
streetlights, and traffic signals. Financial information relative to infrasb'ucture assets had
not previously been required for governmental fuds, but was required for proprietary
fuds (water, sewer and storm underground pipes, reservoirs, etc.).

.. CASB Statement No. 34 establishes criteria to identiy and report certain governmental
fuds and proprietary fuds as major fuds for presentation in the fud fiancial
statements.

.. The general fixed assets and the general long-term debt account groups no longer exist.
The assets and liabilties previously reported in those account groups are reported in the
government-wide statements.

.. Funds reported in the past as expendable and nonexpendable trust funds have been

reclassified as special revenue fuds or agency fuds.

.. Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) is required supplementary information
and provides information and analysis that users need to interpret the basic financial
statements. This transmittal letter is designed to complement MD&A, and therefore,
should be read with it. The City's MD&A can be found imediately following the
Independent Auditors' Report.

In 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (CASB) issued statement No. 44, Economic
Financial Trends Information Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section which updated the reporting
requirements of the statistical section of the CAFR. This update of the statistical section improves
comparabilty and adds new entity-wide data. The data is organized into five categories:

1. Revenue Capacity Information

2. Debt Capacity Information

3. Demographic and Economic Information

4. Operatig Information

5. Financial Trend Information

The Repoding Entity and. Its Services

The City was incorporated on June 25, 1903 and Pittsburg is a full service general law city
providing a full range of municipal services, including police, water and sewer, streets, cultural
and recreational facilities, golf course, public works and parks, redevelopment, economic
development, planning, zoning, building inspection, code enforcement, housing assistance, marina
operations, energy distribution, engineering and general admiistration. Fire services are
provided by Contra Costa County.
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The fiancial statements included in this CAFR present the City (the primary government) with all

the City fuds, the City of Pittsburg Redevelopment Agency (the Agency)i the Housing Authority
of the City of Pittsburg (the Housing Authority), and the Pittsburg Power Company (Pittsburg
Power) as component units. These three component unts are separate legal entities; however, the
members of the City Council also serve as members of the Housing Authority Board, the Agency
Board, and the Pittsburg Power Board; therefore, fiancial information for the Housing Authority,
the Agency, and Pittsburg Power is blended with the City's fiancial information.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

Located along the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta, Pittsburg is situated on the north side of
the beautiul Mount Diablo Recreation Area. Pittsburg resides in the Eastern part of Contra Costa
County and is a part of the Oakland Metropolitan Statistical Area. Most statistics for Pittsburg also
include the unincorporated area of Bay Point.

Pittsburg
Antioch

Brentwoo

Oakley

2015

67,90
110,400

59,600

34,050

271,950East County: 236,950

Contra Costa County: 1,023,400 1,107,300
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u.s Census Bureau data correlates with the above local estimates at:

July 2005 62,547; July 2004 62/270; July 2003 60,706; July 2002 60/179; July 2001 59/067

From New York of the Pacific to Black Diamond and fially known as Pittsburg, this is a city that
values achievement and inovation. Pittsburg's 2005 estimated population from the Association of
Bay Area Governents (ABAG) Projections 2007 was at 62,400 and at 67,900 by the year 2015.
Pittsburg is one of just 39 cities in the State with an Enterprise Zone, offering businesses tax and
other incentives to relocate here.
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TOTAL JOBS 
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The Contra Costa Economic Partnership is forecastig that over the next 25 years, Contra Costa
County wil add more than 134,000 new jobs. Most of the jobs that wil be created are expected to
be in the service sector area. Most of the redevelopment projects of the City of Pittsburg wil add
new jobs to the county.

The City offers a number of programs and incentives to attact new businesses, help existig
businesses, as well as help residents fid employment. The East County One-Stop Career Center
provides businesses and residents with employment, training and business services.
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According to ABAG Projections 2007, Retail jobs wil see the highest growth in Concord, Pittsburg
and Antioch. The Pittsburg/Bay Point BART station is fuelig the City's growth.
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While the national economic picture wil cause the county's economy to slow, some employment
growth is expected in the fist fiteen years from 2000 to 2015. The cities of Antioch, Pittsburg, and
Hercules are expected to see more job growth as a result of ABAG Smart Growth Policy
assumptions.

As ABAG projections report, between the years 2000 and 2015, the largest growth wil be in the
Health, Educational, and Recreational sector which wil add 35,040 jobs in Contra Costa County,
an increase of 30% over the year of 2000 total. Based on a forecast by the Contra Costa Economic
Partnership, Contra Costa County wil be the fourth fastest growing Bay Area County (projected at
32.7% for the period of 2005 through 2030) in terms of new job creation.

In 2006, real GDP (gross domestic product) increased 2.0% compared to the real GDP increase of
3.5% in 2005. Inflation increased in 2005-06 to approxiately 4.09%.

For the City of Pittsburg, sales tax revenue in the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 contiued to increase
because of new and expanded businesses. Comparing Contra Costa County's unemployment rate
of 2.2% to the State of Caliorna's unemployment rate of 5.1%, signies that the local economýs
future out-look should remai tentatively optitic.

It is anticipated that sales tax revenue for the City of Pittsburg wil contiue to increase consequent
to the openg of several new retai and restaurant businesses. The Mazzei Auto Dealership

expansion is projected to increase sales tax revenue by approximately $150,000 and the new Suzuk
Dealership is projected to generate $30,000 of sales tax revenue for its first year.

The following are new anticipated revenue generating businesses coming into Pittburg:

- A 96 room Hampton Inn Suites Hotel has broken ground and is anticipated to generate $160,000
in transient occupancy taxes.

- Outback Steak House and Ch's restaurants opened in the Delta Gateway Center in late spring
2006 and is anticipated to generate $80,000 in increased sales tax revenue.

- Win Co Foods is expected to generate $125,000 in sales tax once in full operation.

Major construction projects have begu in Old Town and at the Marina during the past several
months of 2006. The mixed-use projects such as the one located in the block between 3rd and 4th
Streets wil add 42 new residential units and commercial space along the ground floor. The New
Mecca Restaurant is planed to relocate to ths development. The Vidrio Project wil be a mied-
use project with 190 residential units and three blocks of new commercial space located along
Raiload Avenue between 5th and 8th Streets. The Gateway Project at 10th and Raiload A venue wil
add a 32,OOO-square foot building for commercial use on the ground floor and two stories of

residential units above.

Major Initiatives

For The Fiscal Year: The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pittsburg (the Agency) and the
Economic Development Department contiued rapid development in residential, commercial, and
industrial areas.
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A few of the Agency highlights for the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 include the following:

.:. $50,000 was alocated to Pacific Community Services Inc. (PCSI)/ which provides housing
services to Pittsburg residents. The counelig servces range from tenant traiing to home
ownership training, low interest mortgage, down payment and rent payment assistance.

.:. An ordinance establihing an Inc1usionary Housing Policy for the Los Medanos

Community Development Project Area was adopted. The ordiance is necessary to ensure
that a portion of al new rental and ownership housing remain affordable and are reserved
for appropriately-sized households in order to increase the affordable housing stock,

reduce the percentage of overcrowded households and reduce the fames who overpay for
housing.

.:. To increase the afordable housing stock, the Agency provided/ allocated fiancial
assistance, in the form of a loan or land purchase subsidy:

· Mariner Wal (20 Units) = $1,000,000 (diect housing subsidy)
· Vidrio (30 Units) = $4,000,000 (diect housing subsidy)
· Vista Del Mar (12 Units) = $60,00 (direct housing subsidy)

· Gateway (29 apartment units) = $6,000,000 (constrction loan/subsidy)

.:. The Agency also increased its participation in two previously approved developments:

· Mercy Housing (64 units) = $1,071,000 as loan in addition to a previous amount of
$1,928,820 for land subsidy

· Presidio Vilage (104 units)=$541,Ooo as loan in addition to a previous $800,000 loan

amount

The Redevelopment Agency general fuds supported the following projects and programs in 2005-
2006:

· The Agency allocated $17 mion in the development of Vidrio, a $100 mion mied used
development. Construction on Phase 1 began in August, 2006. When completed, Vidrio
wil consist of 200 owner occupied residences and 40,00 square feet of ground floor
commercial space. Of the 200 residential units, 30 wil be restricted for sale to persons at
affordable income levels. The project covers three adjacent city blocks in Old Town
Pittsburg. The developer for this project is AF Evans.

· The Agency provided a $625,000 loan to assist in the development of a 96-room Hampton
Inn & Suites hotel in Pittsburg. BMS Investments, the project developer, began
constrction on the project in May 2006.

· The Agency allocated an $800,000 grant for the installation of public infrastructure
improvements to support the new Empire Business Park, a 430,000 square feet industrial
center, and the construction of intersection and traffic light improvements at the center's
entrance. The developer for this project is Davi & Associates.
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For The Future:

The Agency's tax increment has increased approximately by 15.8% or 5.5 mion from $35.3
mion (Fiscal Year 2004-2005) to $40.8 mion (Fiscal Year 2005-2006). The Agency's fuding
capacity has enabled traditional redevelopment programs and projects to be established as well as
provide assistance with public improvements in the Project Area through the Capital

Improvement Project (CIP) Program; the following programs and projects have been identied for
Fiscal Year 200-2007:

.:. $1.0 mion has been allocated towards project-wide pavement reconstrction. These

projects wil provide increased safety and improve traffic circulation for both vehicles and
pedestrians.

.:. $18.46 mion has been allocated for replacement of infrastructue in Old Town Pittburg
neighborhoods including new water, sewer and other utities along with full street
replacement.

.:. $3.2 mion has been allocated towards contiuing to develop a high quality public park

system that wil provide varied recreational opportuties accessible to all project area
residents. Ths includes nearly $40,000 to complete the development of public access

improvements to the Pittsburg Marina.

.:. The Agency has entered into another contract with the Contra Costa County Employment
and Human Services Department on behalf of the Workforce Development Board to
provide business counselig services to the Pittsburg community. $10,000 has been
alocated to this program.

.:. The Adopted Implementation Plan for the Los Medanos Project Area 2005-2009 provides

for the acquisition and public improvements of the following publicly owned buildings:

10th & Raioad A venue; Mixed Use Construction (underway)
City Park; sports complex construction
Enean Theater; rehabiltation
Marina Elementary School¡ constrction

Relocation of PUSD Admiistrative offices
Relocation of Pittsburg Public Library

.:. $192,000 has been allocated for the Enterprise Zone fee waivers. This program is to attact
businesses, encourage commercial rehabiltation of existig structures, and create

employment opportuities to Pittsburg residents.

.:. $133,900 has been allocated to Old Town Code Enforcement to help alleviate the blightig
conditions in Pittsburg's downtown area.

.:. $333,000 has been allocated to promote and market the City of Pittburg includig to attact

reinvestment in the Old Town area and to provide staff support to over 100 events
throughout the calendar year in Old Town Pittburg.

.:. Approxiately $230,000 has been allocated to Economic Development Loan to provide

incentives to businesses wishing to locate in the Project Area.
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,.:. $120,000 has been allocated over a two year tie frame to Lease Commercial Property
Rehab to enable the Agecy to rehabiltate vacant or underutied commercial building
and sublease out to viable businesses.

Acquisition is also an important activity that the Agency exercises in order to assist in
redeveloping of a particular site or assemblig various parcels to develop a larger site. The Agency
acquired the following properties during the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 for a total of $10.8 mion:

,.:. For development of new offces, market rate and afrdable unts, specialty stores, and a
restaurant and for redevelopment of the older downtown area:

-2-4 Fift Street

.:. For purposes of assistig the Pittburg Unifed School District in the construction of a new

public elementary school:
-820 Railroad Avenue
-APN 085-193-008 and 009 (two vacant parcels on the 800 block of Raiload
Avenue)

.:. To address blight and enhance quality of reidential li:
-500 School Strt

.:. The following is an acquisition for redevelopment purposes by improving or replacing
signifcantly blighted properties and by providig the communty with improvements that
wil encourage business development thugh retention of exitig businesses and
attaction of new businesses, and thereby providing additional employment opportuties:

-1085 Cumberland

The Finance Department has completed convertig most of its fiancial and accountig systems to
the new Eden fiancial system. The new system with its flexibilty and user-friendly featu are
producing more useful fiancial information for analyzing, reportig, and management decision-
making. Only the utity bilg module remains to be converted and this conversion wil be

completed by Spring 2007.

OTHER INFORMATION

The City is responsible for establishig and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the governent are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accountig data are compiled to allow for the preparation of fiancial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accountig principles. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance reognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits liely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requies estiate and
judgments by management.
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Single Audit and Compliance

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensuæ compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management and the Finance staff of the City. In management's opinion, the City's
internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of the proper
recording of fiancial transactions. Alsof the results of the City's single audit for the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2006 provided no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure
or signifcant violations of applicable laws and reguations.

Budgetary Controls

In addition, the City maitai budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to
ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the anual appropriated budget approved
by the City's governg body. Activities of the general fund, special revenue fuds and capital
projects fuds are included in the anual appropriated budget. The level of budgetay control
(that is, the level at which expenditures canot legaly exceed the appropriated amount) is
established at the fud leveL. The City also applies and maitains encumbrance accountig system
as a technque of accomplihing budgetary contrl. As demonstrated by the statements and

schedules included in the fiancial section of this report, the City contiues to meet its

responsibilty for sound fiancial management.

Appropriations Limit

Proposition 4, the "Can" initiative, was passed by Calrnia voters in 1978 and is intended to
lit governmental appropriations. The appropriations lit is calculated each year based upon

Fiscal Year 1978-1979 appropriations, which are modifed by the composite consumer price index,
and population changes which have occurred in subsequent years. The Citys appropriation liit

and estiated appropriations subject to limt for Fiscal Year 2004-2005 and 2005-2006 amounted to

$68,161,743 and $76?381,995 respectively. The Redevelopment Agency and Housing Authority
appropriations ar not subject to the above liitations.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
admiistered by the Treasurer of the State of Caliornia and obligations of the United States
Treasury, Federal Agency Coupons and Discount Notes, Medium Term Notes, and Certicates of
Deposit. These investments are allowed under an investment policy adopted by the City Council,
which defies eligible investments and matuities of the City's investment portflio, and requires
securities to be held by the City or by a qualied custodial institution and registered in the name of
the City. The quarterly retu on LAIF pooled investments at June 30,2006 was 4.53 %, an increase

of 1.68% compared to the same period of last fiscal year (June 30,2005) 2.85%. Total LAIF interest
earngs were $3,306,166 for the Fiscal Year 2005-2006, an increase $491,898 from the Fiscal Year
2004-2005. At June 30,2006,37.91 % of the City's pooled cash and investments were in LAIF.
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Risk Management

The City is self-insured for the fist $25,000 of each loss and maitain excess liabilty insurance
through Municipal Pooling Authority (MP A). The City is not inured for liabilty occurrences over
$15 mion per occurrence. The City also maitains statutory excess workers' compensation
insurance though MP A.

Independent Audit

Maze & Associates, CP As, an independent public accountig fi, has examed the fiancial

statements of the City and its affiated agencies. Their opinion on the Citys fiancial statements
and supplemental information is included within this report.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certicate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reportig to the City of Pittsburg for its
Comprehensive Anual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the six fiscal years ended June 30, 2000,2001,
2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005. In order to be awarded a Certicate -of Achievement, a governent
must publih an easily readable and efficiently organizd comprehensive anual financial report.
This report must satify both generally accepted accountig principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certicate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
(CAFR) for June 30,2006 contiues to meet the Certicate Achievement Program's requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ave. Suite 215
Pleasant HH~ 94523

93()~0902 . FAX 930-0'135
maze (tmazeassociates.com

www.mazeassociates.com

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Pittsburg, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pittsburg as of and for the year ended

June 30, 2006, as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for
financial audits contained in Government Auditng Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Pittsburg at June 30, 2006 and the respective changes in the
financial position and cash flows where applicable thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the
year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditng Standards, we have also issued reports dated December 1,2006 on
our consideration of the City's internal control structure and on its compliance with laws and regulations.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Government Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information and we
express no opinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The supplemental information listed in the Table of Contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Pittsburg. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

\yi~/,j\~~
December 1, 2006
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January 25,2007

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Pittsburg (the City), we offer readers this discussion and
analysis of the Cily!s financial performance for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006. The
accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures in this report, are the responsibilty of the City. The report has been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as

promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB). We encourage

readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information which can be found in the introductory section of this report and within the
City's financial statements, which follow this discussion.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilties at the close of the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 by

$152M (net assE:s).

ø The City's total net assets of $152M decreased by $19M (from $l71M in Fiscal Year 2004-
2005) representing a $27M decrease in governmental and an $8M increase in business-
type total net assets. The decrease in the governmental net assets can be attributed
mainly to the issuance of Taxable Pension Bonds that included a $26M payment for the
unfunded liability owed to the Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) for both the
Miscellaneous and Safety retirement plans, and a $12.7 unfunded liabilty payment to
the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA). The $8M
increase in business-type net assets can be attributed mainly to $6.5M for Marina Dock
improvements.

e As of June 30,2006, the City!s governmental fuds reported combined ending fud balances

of $195.9M, a decrease of $9.8M in comparison with the prior fiscal year of $205.7M.
Approximately $38M or 19% of this amount is available for spending at the governmenfs
discretion for operatig activities.

o Out of the nine major fuds, four of the fuds (Low/Moderate Housing, Redevelopment

Special Revenue! Housing Authority and the Pension Obligation Fund) had positive net
changes to fund balances.

e As of June 30, 2006, the fund balance for the General Fund was $8.6M, of which $411,321
was for miscellaneous inventory reserves, encumbrances, prepaid expenses, and special
activities. The encumbrance reserve of $238,068 was re-appropriated in next year! s
budget, leaving an appropriable fund balance of $8.3M for Fiscal Year 2006-2007.
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". Compared to the prior fiscal year, the City's total non-current liabilties increased
$57.9M, which was the result of the issuance of the 2006 Taxable Pension Funding
Bonds, the 2005 Water Revenue Bonds and the retirement of the 1997 Water Revenue
Bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
City's basic financial statements, which are comprised of three components: 1) Government-
Wide Financial Statements, 2) Fund Financial Statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial
Statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in additon to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government..Wide Financial Statements. The Government-Wide Financial Statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business. These statements consist of:

CD The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City's assets and

liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as "net assets". Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

CD The Statement of Activities presents information reflecting any change in the
government's net assets during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs (regardless of
the timing of related cash flows). Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that wil only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., earned but unused vacation and compensated time leaves).

Both of the Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of the City that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental

activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the City include legislative and legal, general government, public safety,
public works, community development and recreation. The business-type activities of the
City include Water, Sewer, Marina, Golf Course, Island Energy and Pittsburg Power Company
operations.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements include not only the City itself but also the

Redevelopment Agency, Housing Authority and the Pittsburg Power Company. Financial
information for these component units are blended with the financial statements of the primary
government itself.

Fund Financial Statements - A "fund" is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The City of Pittsburg, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds.
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" Governmental Funds: These funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outfows of spendable resources, as well as
on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such

information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing

requirements. However, this information does not encompass the additional long-term
focus of the government-wide statements. Reconciliations that explain the relationship
(or differences) between governmental funds and governmental activities follow each
of the governmental funds statements.

The City maitains 28 individual governental fuds. Information is presented separately
in the governental fud balance sheet and in the governental fud statement of

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fud balances for 9 fuds that are considered to be
major fuds. These 9 fuds consist of General, Low/Moderate Income Housing I,

Low /Moderate Income Housing II, Redevelopment Special Revenue, Housing Authority
(Section 8), Redevelopment Debt Service, Capital Improvement, Pension Obligation Bonds,
and Redevelopment Capital Projects. Data from the other 19 governmental fuds which are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation are considered non-major fuds.

A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the fuds that have an adopted
budget to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

. Proprietary Funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds;
Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds. Enterprise Funds are used to report the
same functions presented as "business-type activities" in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. Enterprise Funds are used to account for the Water, Sewer,
Marina, Golf Course, Island Energy and Pittsburg Power Company operations.
Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City's various functions. The City uses Internal Service Funds to
account for its fleet of vehicles maintenance, building maintenance, information

system management, risk management/ insurance and employee fringe benefits
activities. Because these services predomiantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within" governmental activities" in
the Government-Wide Financial Staternents.

Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information as the Government-Wide
Financial Statements, only in more detaiL. The Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
provide separate information for the Water Fund, the Sewer Fund, and the Marina
Fund; all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three
Enterprise Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Conversely
Internal Service Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements.
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. Fíduciary Funds: Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit

of parties outside the government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the
Government-Wide Financial Statement because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for Fiduciary
Funds is much lie that used for Proprietary Funds. The Assessment District Bonds

Fund, the Environmental Impact Fee Fund and the Other Impact Fees Fund are held as
Fiduciary Funds by the City.

Notes To The Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a ful1 understanding of the data provided in the Government-Wide And Fund
Financial Statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary inormation concerning the City's
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Assets - As noted earlier, net assets may serve over tie as a useful indicator of a
governent's financial position. In the case of the City, combined net assets (government
and business-type activities) totaled $152M at the close of the Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2006.

The City uses these capital assets to provide services and operations for the benefit of the
community, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves canot be used to liquidate these liabilties.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements provide long-term and short-term information
about the City's overal1 financial condition. This analysis addresses the financial statements
of the City as a whole. The fol1owing table reflects the Summary of Net Assets for the Fiscal
Year ended June 30,2006 with the comparative data for the Fiscal Year ended June 30,2005.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE is INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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City of P ittsbu rg
Summary of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2006

G overmental Business-Type June 30. 2006 June 30. 2005

A ttlVltés Attiiitiés Tòtâl Tòtäl

Current Assets $234,391,894 $47,725,420 $282,117,314 $256,110,549
Non-Current Assets 2,038,174 2,038,174 2,183,758
Capital Assets 248,135,252 85,623,399 333,758,651 318,849,094

Total Assets: 484,565,320 133,348,819 617,914,139 577,143,401

Current Liabilities 23,693,613 3,325,762 27,019,375 24,933,183
Non-Current Liabiliies 389,948,606 48,513,168 438,461,774 380,503,547

Total Liabilities: 413,642,219 51,838,930 465,481,149 405,436,730

Investm ents in Capital Assets
Net of Related Debt -153,333,826 36.191,114 -117,142,712 57,789,865

Restricted 139,253,405 6,879,258 146,132,663 211,322.288
U nre stricte d 85,003,522 38,439,517 123,443,039 -97,405,512

Total Net Assets: $70,923,101 $81,509,889 $152,432,990 $171,706,641

At the end of the Fiscal Year 2005-2006 the total assets exceeded total liabilties by $152.4 M.

Changes in Net Assets - In the Fiscal Year 2005-2006, the City's expenses for governmental
activities exceeded program revenues by $109.7M resultig in the use of that amount in general
revenues. The City's expenses cover a range of services. Total governental expenses by
activities were $126.6M in Fiscal Year 2005-2006. The largest expenses were in the General
Government category ($24.8M) which included the unfuded liabilty payment to the Contra

Costa County Employee Retiement Association and payment of the unfuded liabilty to the
Public Employees Retiement System (for both the Miscellaneous and Safety employees),
Communty Development and Services ($23.2), Public Works ($28.9M), Public Safety ($27.2M)
and Interest on Long-term Debt ($15.1M). These expenses do not include capital outlays, which
are now reflected in the City's capital assets. Further analysis is provided within the
governental and business-tye sections on the following pages.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE is INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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City of Pittburg's Oianges in Net Assets
Fisca Yea Ended June 30, 200

'Wth comarative data for fiscal yea ended June 30, 200

Governntal Busin -Ty Ju 30, 200 Jun 30, 200

Actties Actties Total Total

Revenue:
Pram Reen:

Oies for Servces $10,155,509 $26,302,767 $36,458,276 $28,931,425

Opra Grats and Contbuons 3,923,284 3,923,284 5,166,636

Caita Grts and Contrbuton 3,307,936 3,619,190 6,927,126 8,968,780

Geal Reenu:

Propert Tax 43,852,448 43,852,448 38,110,361

Saes and Otr Taxs 11,951,519 11,951,519 11,301,580

Inrgovennta 18,063,262 18,063,262 11,122,645

Investnt Ea - Unrct 6,960,587 1,047,319 8,007,906 4,756,443

:Msclaneous 19,528 .',:-'... 19,528 3,805,439

Tota Revenues: 98,234,073 30,969,276 129,203,349 112,163,309

Exnse:
(ìia Ooveii 24,855,542 24,855,542 14,378,057

City Comicil 80,430 80,430 89,463

City Mar an City Oeik 1,353,922 1,353,922 807,970

City Atrney 490,984 490,984 468,017

Hu Resource 1,298,743 1,298,743 844,352

Fince an Servces 4,025,101 4,025,101 2,011,792
Comm Developmnt & Servce 23,244,549 23,244,549 19,852,694

Public Saety 27,183,843 27,183,843 14,929,141

Public Work 28,921,759 28,921,759 11,881,766

Inrest on long- Tenn Debt 15,117,640 15,117,640 18,645,181
Enterise Opraons 23,063,037 23,063,037 20,320,550

Tota Ex: 126,572,513 23,063,037 149,635,550 104,228,983

In (Dcre) in Net Asts
Before Oter Reenue an Trafers (28,338,440) 7,906,239 (20,432,201) 7,934,326
Ga (lss) on Dispsa of As 1,158,550 1,158,550 1,041,927
Trars (558,738) 558,738

Oi in Net As (27,738,628) 8,46,977 (19,273,651) 8,976,253

Net asts - Begi of Yea 98,661,729 73,04,912 171,706,641 166,105,394
GA 34 Imemnton (3,375,006)

Net Asts - End of Yea $70,923,101 $81,5,88 $152,432,9 $171,706,641
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Governmental Activites - Governmental Activities reflects a decrease of $27.7M in net assets for the
Fiscal Year 2005-2006. A comparison of the cost of services by function for the City's Governmental
Activities is shown below, along with the revenues used to cover the net expenses of the Governmental
Activities, and with the comparative data from Fiscal Year 2004-2005.

June 30, 2006
Govermental

Activities

Expenses Net of Program Revenues:
General Government/Departments
Community Development & Services
Public Safety
Public Works
General Non-Departmental *
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

($31,311,332)
(15,232,616)
(25,766,266)
(21,757,930)

(15,117,640)

(109,185,784)

General Revenues and Transfers:
Property Taxes
Sales and Other Taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment Earnings - Unrestricted
Miscellaneous
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Transfers

Total General Revenues

43,852,448
11,951,519
18,063,262
6,960,587

t9,528
1,158,550

(558,738)

81,447,156

Change in Net Assets l$21,738,6281

June 30, 2005
Govermental

Activities

($7,815,772)
(15,208,347)
(13,215,726)

(1,522,341)
(9,878,761)

(18,645,181)

(66,286,128)

38,110,361
11,301,580
11,122,645
4,375,176
3,805,439
1,041,926

(8,915,331)

60,841,796

l$5,444,33?l

* Pet GFOA (Government Finance Offcers Association) comments,
General Non-Departmental should not be used as an expenditure category.
All Non-Departmental is reported on the General Governmental line.

Net Cost of Governmetal Activities

(Ne of Program Revenues)
II Gen, GóV.lDèárt

7.7ff

Governmental EXpênSèS by Acivties

i: Public Works
19.93%

!lGen. Gov.

28.67%

(
ß!Geril Non-art.

46.36%

i: Public sa
23.60%

IlCommDev&
5el\ces
13.95%
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Expenses and Program Revenues (Governmental Activites)

35,000,000

30,000,000

25,000,000

20,000,000 -

15,000,000

10,000,000 .

5,000,000

II $32,104,722

1m Expenditures: $126,572,5131

1m Program Revenues: $17,38~,'~-- -
i¡ $15,117,640

Gen. Government
& Departments

PilblicWorks interest on Long-
Term Debt

Community
Development &

Services

Public Safety

Total Program Revenues from Governental Activities were $17.4M in Fiscal Year 2005-2006. Per
GASB 34, program revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the
reportig governments taxpayers or citienry. Program Revenues reduce the net cost of the
function to be financed from the government's general revenues. As reflected in the pie chart on the
next page, 58% of the Governmental Program Revenues came from Charges for Services (which
includes licenses and permits, plan checkig fees, developer fees and several other revenues), 23%

from the Operatig Grants and Contributions category (including restricted revenues such as Gas
Tax, Measure C Tax, the Asset Seizure Fund and Federal/State Grants) and 19% came from Capital
Grants and Contributions.
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General Revenues are all other revenues not categorized as program revenues such as property
taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental and investment earnings. Total General Revenues from
Governmental Activities were $81.4M in Fiscal Year 2005-2006. The largest percentage of General
Revenues (53 % or $43.9M) received during the fiscal year was for Property Taxes.

Governmental Activities
General Revenues

Govermental Activities
Program Revenues

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Cl Miscellaneous
Revenues

$19,528

~--"~--
'-. "'~..-.

Cl Gain on Disposal
Assets IIH~vestment Earnings

$1,158,550 \ $6,960,587 Ii Sales 8. Other Taxes

\ · i
$11,951,519

ii Charges for Services

..--- $10,155,509
f1 Capital Grants 8.

'--- Contributions

$3,307,936

f1 Operating Grants 8.
Contributions

$3,923,284
''',

"-ì
Property Taxes

$43,852,448
Cl intergovernmental

$18,063,262
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Business-Type Activities - Net assets for Business-Type Activities were $81.5M, a net

increase of $8.5M from prior fiscal year. Total program revenues (excluding capital grants
and contributions) for Business-Type Activities were $26.3M (from charges for services).
Total expenses for the Business-Type Activities were $23.1M for the Fiscal Year 2005-2006.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Pittsburg uses fund accountig to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with fiance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the City of Pittsburg's Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outfows and balances of spending resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the City of Pittsburg's financing requirements. In particulari unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fical year¡ the City of Pittburg's Governmental Funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $195.9M, a decrease of $9.8M, in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 24% percent of this total amount or $47M constitutes unreserved,
undesignated fund balance, which is available for spending at the governent's discretion.
The remainder of the fud balance is reserved and is not available for new spending because it
has either been commtted to 1) liquidate contracts, purchase orders of the prior period and debt
service requiements for the following fical years ($21.5M), or 2) contiue work on the special
activities and capital improvement projects ($141M).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the total fund balance was $8,555,993 with $411,321 reserved and designated for
miscellaneous inventory reserves, encumbrances, prepaid expenses, and special activities.
The unreserved amount of $8,144,672, including encumbrances of $238,068 for a total of
$8,382,740 is available to be used at the government's discretion.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - The final amended budget totaled $38.8M, including
$5,358,052 in amendments to the originally adopted budget. These amendments are briefly
summarized below:

f/ Per Resolution 05-10414, the City Council adopted reserve polices and levels that authorized

specific transfers out from the General Fund to Other and Internal Service Funds as follows:

$ 400,000

400,000
320,000
332,278
300,000

1,278,721
279,275

46,389
$3,356,663

To the Budget Stabilation Reserve.

To the Economic Development Reserve.
To the Power Authority Reserve.

To the Building Maintenance Reserve.
To the Fleet Maintenance Reserve.
To the Fringe Benefit Reserve.

To the General Liabilty Insurance Reserve.

To the Information Systems Reserve.

Transfers-Out from the General Fund

f/ The early payback of State of Caliornia Vehicle-in-Lieu fees of $1,035,000 were approved by
City Council to be transferred to the Budget Stabilzation Fund.
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. Appropriations of $150,000 were approved to increase the City Manager Contingency

Account.

. Appropriations of $80,00 were approved for Public Works Stret Striping Equipment.

. Appropriations of $65,000 were approved for the Planing Department Hilside
Development Guidelies.

. Appropriations of $60,000 were approved for the Residential Rental Inspection Program.

. Appropriations of $40,00 were approved for an operational review of the Building,
Planing and Engineering Departments.

. Other Appropriations included:

$28,00
20,000
20,00
12,00
7,536
5,000

377,842
57,50
38,000
3,511
2,000

$571,389

To RDA for Web-Based GIS funding.
For the City Clerk's Agenda Management System.
For the Recodification of the MunicipalCode.
Council Chamber AMX System Upgrade.
Police Operational Review by Matrix.
Miant Anexation Carryover.
Eden Financial System Conversion Carryover.
Port Development Project Carryover.
Eden Cashiering System Project Carryover.
Transfer to Water Fund for the Historical Society subsidy.
Safety Committee Reward appropriation.
Total (Other Appropriations)

The amendments to the General Fund estimated revenues in total were $1,645,956 over the
adopted budget estimates. This is the result of the early State of Caliornia Vehic1e-In-Lieu
payback of $1,035,531, the Safety Commitee Loss Control Appropriation of $2,000, the
Fiscal Year Carryover for 2004/2005 Eden Funding in the amount of $377,842, the Carryover
of the Port Development Project of $57,500, the CDBG Police Code Enforcement Grant of
$131,700, the CDBG Recreation Grant of $3,383 and the Eden Cashiering System Funding of
$38,000.

Engineering Plan Check Fees for Bailey Estates of $500,000 and Building Permit Fees for the
Vidrio Project of $60,000 (for a total of $560,000) have been deferred into the Fiscal Year
2006-2007 to fund contract plan check and inspection costs associated with subdivision

development activity. Also, there is a one-time adjustment of County (Keller Canyon

Landfil) Tipping Fees in the amount of $525,079 earned from January 2005 through June

2005 that were not received until January 2006 (this amount would have been recorded in
Fiscal Year 2004-2005 had the monies been received in a timely manner).
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At the end of the fiscal year, the total actual expenses in the General Fund were $l.3M under
the total amended budget. This is the result of all General Fund operating departments
(with the exception of the City Attorney) and projects, operating within budget and due to
unfinished administrative projects, such as the Eden conversion project costs which were to
be carried forward to the 2006-2007 Fiscal Year. The two largest under budget divisions

were Community Development & Services under budget by $611,046 and Finance and

Services under budget by $322,299. On the revenue side, the actual revenues were $1.7M
over the amended revenue estimates. Revenues were higher than the estimates due to
higher sales taxes received by the City, the sale of the City gym property and the one-time
receipt/ adjustment of County (Keller Canyon Landfil) Tipping Fees.

Out of the five largest revenue sources, Property Taxes exceeded the budget by $606,816,

Sales Taxes exceeded budget by $477,493, Franchise Taxes exceeded the budget by $115,696,

Property Transfer Taxes (classified under "Other Taxes") exceeded the budget by $71,747
and Intergovernmental Revenues were over by $358,334.

The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements, but in more detail. According to GASB 34 criteria
the Water Fund and Sewer Fund are the major funds. The Marina Fund is no longer
considered a major fund according to GASB 34, but the City has elected to continue to
report the Marina Fund to maintain continuity with the prior year reporting format.

Total net assets of the Water, Sewer and Marina Fund at the end of the year were $68.4M; an
increase of $7.3M from the prior fiscal year, in which $28.8M was invested in capital assets
net of related debt. Other factors concerng the finances of these three funds have already
been addressed in the discussion of the City's Business-Type Activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration - The City's investment in capital assets for its
Governmental and Business Type activities as of June 30, 2006, amounts to $333M (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, bridges, water
lines, sewer and storm systems, and the golf course. The total increase in the City's
investment in capital assets net of depreciation for the current fiscal year was $14.9M or
5.0%.

Most of the major capita asset increase during the Fiscal Year 2005-200 was for land
acquisitions made by the Redevelopment Agency and an increase in construction-in-progress
with the City redevelopment area. The major capita asset increase in the Business-Type
Activities was due to the Marina Dock Replacement and Improvement Project. The net increase
in Governmental Activities aftr depreiation was $12.2M with a $2.7M increase in Business-

Type Activities (for a net increase of$14.9M).

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
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City of Pittsburg's Capital Assets

(Net of depreciation)
As of June 30, 2006

Govermental Business-Type

Activities Activities

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction-in-Progress

Total Non-Depreciable Assets

$45,413,481
37,995,791
83,409,272

Depreciable Assets (Net of Depreciation):
Buildings & Improvements 36,449,558
Machinery and Equipment 3,008,864
Infrastructure 125,267,558

Total Depreciable Assets (Net) 164,725,980

Total Capital Assets $248,135,252

$ -
2,506,926
2,506,926

14,907,648
909,511

67,299,314
83,116,473

$85,623,399

June 30, 2006
Total

$45,413,481
40,502,718

$85,916,198

51,357,206
3,918,375

192,566,872
247,842,453

$333,758,651

June 30, 2005
Total

$38,528,579
38,658,714
77,187,293

45,132,693
2,876,606

193,652,502
241,661,801

$318,849,094

Debt Service Administration - A complete detai of al outstanding debt is contained in Note 7
accompanying the Financial Statements. At the end of the fical year, the City had total long-
term debt outstanding of $436.8M, of this amount, $347.8M in Governmental Activities represent
the Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds (secured solely by the Agency's tax
increments) and $39.6M in 2006 Penion Obligation Bonds. $49.3M in Business-Type Activities
represent two revenue bonds in the Water and Sewer Funds, and two capital leases in the Golf
Course Fund ($71,565).

City of Pittsburg's Long-term Debt
June 30, 2006

Govennental
Activities

FY 2005-06

Business-Type
Activites

FY 2005-06 FY 2004-05

Total
FY 2005-06FY 200-05

Tax Allocation Bonds
- Unamortized Premium

Pension Obligation Bonds

$ 347,766,357 $ 352,556,357

6,189,259 6,631,349

39,566,056

Marina Construction Loans
Island Energy Start-Up Costs Loan
Capital Leases
Revenue Bonds

$ - $
71,565

49,290,000

$ 347,766,357

6,189,259
39,566,056

124,770
299,001

24,765,000
71,565

49,290,00

$ 442,883,237Total Long-Term Debt $ 393,521,672 $ 359,187,706 $ 49,361,565 $ 25,188,771
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget - The Contra Costa Economic Partnership has
noted that the East Bay, which includes the City of Pittsburg, has the highest population
growth due to affordable housing units and continued growth in job opportunities. Social
indicators reflect rising personal incomes even though Contra Costa County's ranking
within the State of California has dropped from first to fourth position.

Sales tax revenue has increased by $825,00 over the past year due to new business growth
within the community, as well as the expanded sales tax base generated from the auto mall.
Retail expansion and industrial growth contiue to look favorable for the future. The City of
Pittsburg wil contiue to be challenged by the rising costs of workers compensation, health

benefits, and retiment. Compared to the prior fiscal year the City's property taxes increased
by 6% and the Redevelopment Agecy's tax increment revenue by 15.8%. The City of Pittburg
contiues to attact a large percentage of home-buyers due in large part to the marketable

median prices for existig homes.

Takig into account all known factors the City of Pittsburg has adopted a balanced budget for
Fiscal Year 200-2007. A primary goal of the City Council and Management Staff is to develop a
"Budget Stabilation Plan" with the objective of reducing the City's dependence on one-tie
revenues.

Requests for Information - This financial report is designed to provide a general overview
of the finances for the City of Pittburg. Questions concerning any of the information

provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the City of Pittsburg, Finance Department, 65 Civic A venue, Pittsburg, California 94565.
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City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the ended 30, 2006

ST ATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are required by Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement 34. Their purpose is to summarize the entire City's financial activities and
financial position. They are prepared on the same basis as is used by most businesses, which means they
include all the City's assets and all its liabilities, as well as all its revenues and expenses. This is known as
the full accrual basis - the effect of all the City's transactions is taken into account, regardless of whether or
when cash changes hands, but all material internal transactions between City funds have been eliminated.

The Statement of Net Assets reports the difference between the City's total assets and the City's total
liabilities, including all the City's capital assets and all its long-term debt. The Statement of Net Assets
presents similar information to the old balance sheet format, but presents it in a way that focuses the reader
on the composition of the City's net assets, by subtracting total liabilities from total assets.

The Statement of Net Assets summarizes the financial position of all the City's Governmental Activities in
a single column, and the financial position of all the City's Business-Type Activities in a single column;
these columns are followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the entire City.

The City's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund, along with all its Special
Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds. Since the City's Internal Service Funds service these
Funds, their activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminatig inter-fund
transactions and balances. The City's Business-Type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities.

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City's net assets. It is also prepared on
the full accrual basis, which means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless of
when cash changes hands. This differs from the "modified accrual" basis used in the Fund financial
statements, which reflect only current assets, current liabilities, available revenues and measurable
expenditures.

The format of the Statement of Activities differs considerably from those used in the past. It presents the
City's expenses first, listed by program, and follows these with the expenses of its business-type activities.
Program revenues-that is, revenues which are generated directly by these programs-are then deducted
from program expenses to arrive at the net expense of each governmental and business-type program, The
City's general revenues are then listed in the Governmental Activities or Business-type Activities column,
as appropriate, and the Change in Net Assets is computed and reconciled with the Statement of Net Assets.

Both these Statements include the financial activities of the City, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Pittsburg, the Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburg, and the Pittsburg Public Financing Authority,
which are legally separate but are component units of the City because they are controlled by the City,
which is financially accountable for activities.

These new financial statements along with the fund financial statements and footnotes are called Basic
Financial Statements.
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2006

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and inveshnents (Note 2)
Restricted cash and inveshnents (Note 2)
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest
Loans/notes (Note 3)

Supplies
Inventory
Prepaid items and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred charges

Capital assets (Note 6)

Land and nondepreciable assets
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Salaries payable
Interest payable
Refundable deposits
Taxes payable
Loans payable (current)
Due to other agencies
Claims and judgment payable-due within one year (Note 10C)
Unearned revenue (Note 4)
Compensated absences - due within one year (Note 11)
Long-term debt - due within one year (Note 7)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences - due in more than one year (Note 11)
Long-term debt - due in more than one year (Note 7)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (Note lK)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Resh-icted for:

Capital projects

Debt service
Facility fee reserve

Total restricted net assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

$87,721,847
118,770,146

3,725,414
1,774,869

21,399,210
222,473

777,935
234,391,894

2,038,174

83,409,272
164,725,980
248,135,252
250,173,426

484,565,320

10,052,482

1,03,731
4,362,189
1,085,664

60,120
541,154
192,843

1,220,873
114,557

4,960,000
23,693,613

1,386,934
388,561,672
389,948,606

413,642,219

(153,333,826)

139,253,405

139,253,405

85,003,522

$70,923,101

See accompanying notes to fuiancIal statenients
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Business-Type
Activities

$15,920,015
25,923,748

5,555,109
104,064

217,007
5,477

47,725,420

2,506,926
83,116,473
85,623,399
85,623,399

133,348,819

1,834,988
115,593

144,025
16,707

155,846
21,727

1,036,876
3,325,762

188,79
48,324,689
48,513,168

51,838,930

36,191,114

2,749,449
4,129,809

6,879,258

38,39,517

$81,509,889

Total

$103,641,862
144,693,894

9,280,523
1,878,933

21,399,210
222,473
217,007
783,12

282,117,314

2,038,174

85,916,198
247,842,453
333,758,651
335,796,825

617,914,139

11,887,470
1,219,324
4,362,189
1,229,689

16,707
60,120

541,154
192,843

1,376,719
136,284

5,996,876
27,019,375

1,575,413
436,886,361
438,61,774

465,481,149

(117,142,712)

139,253,405
2,749,449
4,129,809

146,132,663

123,443,039

$152,432,990



CITY OF PITTSBURG
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30,2006

Functions! Programs
Governmental Activities:

General government

City Council
City Manager and City Clerk

City Attorney
Human Resources
Finance and services

Community development and services

Public safety
Public works

Interest and long-term debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Water Utility

Sewer Utility
Marina

Golf Course

Island Energy

Pittsburg Power

Total Business-type Activities

Total

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes

Sales and other taxes
Intergovernmental-ul1r€s tricted

Investments earnings-unrestricted

Miscellaneous

Gain on disposal of assets
Transfers (Note 5C)

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets-Beginning of year

Net Assets-End of year

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues in Net Assets

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contríbu Hons Contribu tions Activities Activities Total

$24,853,542 $777,063 $6,879 ($24,069,600) ($24,069,600)
80,430 (80,430) (80,430)

1,353,922 8,694 (1,345,228) (1,345,228)
490,984 (490,984) (490,984)

1,298,743 30 (1,298,713) (1,298,713)
4,025,101 724 (4,024,377) (4,024,377

23,244,369 4,615,786 2,697,068 $699,079 (15,232,436) (15,232,436)
27,184,023 198,240 1,219,337 (25,766,446) (25,766,446)
28,921,759 4,554,972 2,608,857 (21,757,930) (21,757,930)
15,119,640 (15,119,640) (15,119,640)

126,572,513 3,923,284 3,307,936 (109,185,784) (109,185,784)

13,136,590 15,614,242 338,967 $2,816,619 2,816,619

1,830,382 3,668,052 1,837,670 1,837,670

1,629,567 1,318,081 3,280,223 2,968,737 2,968,737

1,702,748 1,342.390 (360,358) (360,358)
3,190,601 3,259,958 69,357 69,357

1,573,149 1,100,044 (473,105) (473,105)

23,063,037 26,302,767 3,619,190 6,858,920 6,858,920

$149,635,550 $36,458,276 $3,923,284 $6,927,126 (109,185,784) 6,858,920 (102,326,864)

43,852,448 43,852,448

11,951,519 11,951,519

18,063,262 18,063,262

6,960,587 1,047,319 8,007,906

19,528 19,528

1,158,550 1,158,550

(558,738) 558,738

81,447,156 1,606,057 83,053,213

(27,738,628) 8,64,977 (19,273,651)

98,661,729 73,044,912 171,706,641

$70,923,101 $81,509,889 $152,432,990

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Pitts burg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GASB 34 revises the format of the Fund Financial Statements so that only individual major funds are
presented, while non-major funds are combined in a single column. Major funds are defined generally as
having significant activities or balances in the current year. No distinction is made between Fund types
and the practice of combining like funds and presenting their totals in separate columns (Combined
Financial Statements) has been discontinued, along with the use of the General Fixed Assets and General
Long-term Debt Account groups.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal 2006. Individual non-
major funds may be found in the Supplemental section.

General Fund is used for all the general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected for other
City funds and the related expenditures. The General Fund accounts for all financial resources which are
not accounted for in another fund.

Low/Moderate Income Housing I Special Revenue Fund - accounts for the allocation of the costs of
low /moderate income housing programs qualified for the Housing Set Aside efforts owed to the Agency.

Low/Moderate Income Housing II Special Revenue Fund - accounts for the receipts of the mandated 20%
set-aside of tax increment revenue in the Los Medanos II and III Areas and expenses related to the
low / moderate income housing programs.

Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund - accounts for the tax increment revenue received and
expenditures to carry out general operation within project areas,

Housing Authority (Section 8) Special Revenue Fund - was established to administer grants from Housing
and Urban Development Department (HUD) to subsidize the rental costs of low-income families.

Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund - accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of
principal, interest and related costs of the Agency's long-term debt.

Pension Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund - accounts for the accumulation of resources for payment of
principal, interest and related costs of the Pension Obligation Bonds long-term debt.

Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund - accounts for all capital improvement projects in the City,
Revenues received from various sources are used for related operations.

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund - accounts for the funds used to carry out all the operations for
capital improvement projects within the Redevelopment Areas, using the tax increments to pay for the project
costs.
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City of Pittsburg
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2006

Low /Moderate Low/Moderate

Income Income Redevelopment
General Housing I Housing II Agency

Fund Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2) $9,552,890 $3,741,431 $45,986,833
Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 111,361 1,405,121 93,247
Receivables:

Accounts 1,532,136 596 5,432
Interest 451,691 459,385
Loans/Notes (Note 3) 6,744,837 12,491,987

Due from other funds (Note 5A) 356,247

Advances to other funds (Note 5B) 8,100,000

Supplies 118,251

Prepaid items and other assets 20,735 61,012

Total assets $12,143,311 $11,891,985 $67,197,896

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilties:
Accounts payable $1,148,628 $11,814 $5,203,434
Salaries payable 933,554 59,763
Refundable deposits 927,739 78,209
Loans payable (current)

Due to other agency 528,873
Due to other funds (Note 5A)

Compensated absences - due within one year
Advances from other funds (Note 5B) $8,100,000
Deferred revenue (Note 4) 577,397 6,744,837 11,084,750

Total liabilities 3,587,318 8)00,000 6,756,651 16,955m9

Fund Balances (Deficit) (Notes lK and 9):

Reserved 372186 20,652,999
Unreserved, designated - major funds 39)35
Unreserved, designated - nonmajor funds

Special revenue
Unreserved (deficit) - major funds 8)44,672 (8)00,000) 5)35,334 29,589,868
Unreserved (deficit), reported in nonmajor funds:

Special revenue
Capital projects

Total fund balances (deficits) 8,555,993 (8,100,000) 5,135,334 50,242,867

Total liabilties and fund balances $12)43,311 $11891,985 $67)97,896
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Housing Pension

Authority Redevelopment Obligation Capital Redevelopment Other Total

(Section 8) Agency Bonds Improvement Agency Governmental Governmental
Special Revenue Debt Service Debt Service Capital Projects Capital Projects Funds Funds

$2,128,689 $1,738,395 $838,523 $408,593 $18,716,506 $83,111860
115,202,441 $109,169 1,821,321 27,486 118,770,146

34,200 118,57 22,205 1,983,026 3,696,052

863,738 55 1,774,869

2,137,328 21,374,152

356,247

8,100,000

118,251

5,000 638,671 3,350 728,768

$2,162,889 $117,804,574 $109,224 $961,980 $2,890,790 $22,867,696 $238,030,345

$9,669 $381,062 $5 $168,305 $2,155,158 $650,385 $9,728,60
17,323 71,857 1,082,497

45,570 34,146 1,085,664

60,120 60,120

12,281 541,154

356,247 356,247
31,757 31,757

8,100,000
22,580 2,720,684 21,150,248

81,329 381,062 5 168,305 2,200,728 3,905,720 42,136,147

117,423,512 109,219 690,062 5,427 139,253,405

39,135

(45,079) (45,079)
2,081,560 793,675 37,645,109

8,993,694 8,993,694

10,007,934 10,007,934

2,081,560 117,423,512 109,219 793,675 690,062 18,961,976 195,894,198

$2,162,889 $117,804,574 $109,224 $961,980 $2,890,790 $22,867,696 $238,030,345
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City of Pittsburg
Reconciliation of the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
with the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2006

Total fund balances reported on the governmental funds balance sheet
$195,894,198

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different from those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following:

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current assets or financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds. 244,550,035

LONG TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The assets and liabilities below are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported in the Funds:
Long-term debt
Interest payable
Bond issuance costs
Non-current portion of compensated absences

(393,521,672)
(4,362,189)
2,038,174

(1,438,810)

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in
governmental funds (net change):

Deferred revenue 19,929,375

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTITY

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET ASSETS
Internal service funds are not governmental funds. However, they are used by management to

charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and central services and maintenance
to individual governmental funds. The net current assets of the Internal Service Funds are therefore
included in Governmental Activities in the following line items in the Statement of Net Assets.

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Inventory
Prepaid/ other assets
Capital assets
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Claims and judgments payable
Compensated absences

4,609,987
29,362
25,058

104,222
49,167

3,585,217

(324,022)
(21,234)

(192,843)
(30,924)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
$70,923,101

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2006

Low /Moderate Low /Moderate

Income Income I\edevelopment
General Housing I Housing II Agency

Fund Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue
REVENUES:

Property taxes $3,029,330 $2,777,086 $38,046,032
Sales tax 8,490,042
Franchise tax 2,181,141
Other taxes 1,280,336
Intergovernmental revenues 6,624,853
Keller Canyon fees (Note 10) 525,079
Permits, licenses, and fees 1,037,889
Fines and forfeitures 170,756
Special assessments
Service fees 3,581,025 100,419
Use of money and property 588,288 179,401 1,494,413
Other revenues 187,860 1,146,733

Total revenues 27,696,599 2,956,87 40,787,597

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government 231 2,919,503
City Council 80,143
City Manager and City Clerk 799,088
City Attorney 490,984
Human resources 809,196
Finance and services 2,134,777
Community development and services 5,438,249 952,828 2,963,267
Public safety 15,544,446
Public works - administration 170,879
Public works - streets 1,782,824
Public works - swimming center 195,456
Pu blic works - others 167,815
General non-departmental 2,747,135 24,693 9,737,202

Capital outlay and improvements 75,942 1,069,881 2,100,161
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures 30,436,934 2,047,633 17,720,133

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,740,335) 908,854 23,067,464

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Issuance of debt

Bond issuance costs
Capital contributions

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,774,299 419,050
Transfers in (Note 5C) 6,302,205 1,405,121 2,517,025
Transfers out (Note 5C) (6,978,174) (1,379,395) (23,223,694)

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,098,330 25,726 (20,287,619)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BAtANCES (642,005) 934,580 2,779,845

FUND BAtANCES (DEFICITS) (Note 1K and 9):

Beginning of year 9,197,998 ($8,100,000) 4,200,754 47,463,022
End of year $8,555,993 ($8,100,000) $5,135,334 $50,242,867

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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HOUSÍ11g Pension
Authority Redevelopment Obligation Capital Redevelopment Other Total

(Section 8) Agency Bonds Improvement Agency Governmental Governmental
Special Revenue Debt Service Debt Service Capital Projects Capital Projects Funds Funds

$43,852,448

8,90,042
2,181,141

1,280,336

$11237,823 $153,382 $22,205 $3,332,935 21,371,98
525,079

978,016 2,015,905

170,756

3,107,607 3,107,607
10,722 3,692,166
49,590 $4,762,190 $55 520,718 7,594,655

5,780 43,326 13,600 484,974 1,882,273

11,303,915 $4,762,190 55 196,708 35,805 8,424,250 96,163,606

915,123 306,821 4,141,678

80,143

799,088

490,984

809,196

2,134,777
8,976,727 2,000 961,499 1,202,215 20,496,785

355,485 15,899,931

170,879

428,892 4,426,320 6,638,036

94,09 289,565

205,471 373,286
38,677,758 644,929 51,831,717

20,243,468 159,940 23,649,392

4,790,000 4,790,000
14,995,717 531,249 15,526,966

9,891,850 19,787,717 39,209,007 634,363 21,204,967 7,189,819 148,122,423

1,412,065 (15,025,527) (39,208,952) (437,655) (21,69,162) 1,234,31 (51,958,817)

39,566,056 39,566,056

(247,885) (247,885)
3,208,244 3,208,244

3,193,349
15,155,833 429,379 18,660,640 3,249,360 47,719,563

(15,916,466) (3,807,235) (51,304,964)
(760,633) 39,318,171 429,379 18,660,640 2,650,369 42,134,363

1,412,065 (15,786,160) 109,219 (8,276) (2,508,522) 3,884,800 (9,824,454)

669,495 133,209,672 801,951 3,198,584 15,077,176 205,718,652
$2,081,560 $117,423,512 $109,219 $793,675 $690,062 $18,961,976 $195,894,198
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City of Pittsburg
Reconciliation of the
Net Change in Fund Balances-Total Governmental Funds
with the Staternent of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only changes in current assets and current

liabilities on the modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities reported in the

Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
($9,824,454)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because of the following:

CAPIT AL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense,

The capital additions from the following departments are therefore added back to fund balance:

Capital outlay

Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance (Depreciation expense is

net of Internal Service Fund depreciation $581,508 which has already been

alloca ted to serviced funds.)

Retirements of capital assets are deducted from the fund balance
Sale of capital asset from City to Agency

Gain on sale of capital asset

17,724,083

(3,898,093)

(39,995)

(2,100,000)
92,643

LONG TERM DEBT AND PAYMENTS

Issuance of debt is deducted from fund balance
Repayment of debt principal is added back to fu~d balance
Amortization of bond premium
Amortization of bond issuance costs

(39,566,056)
4,790,000

(442,090)

(145,584)

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in

governmental funds (net change):

Interest payable

Deferred revenue

Compensated absences

1,242,885

1,378,001

380,692

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,

such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurance to individual funds.
The portion of the net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds arising out

of their transactions with governmental funds is reported with governmental activities,

because they service those activities.

Change in Net Assets - All Internal Service Funds 2,669,340

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
($27,738,628)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Pittsburg
General Fund
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Original Final Actual Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

Budgeted Amounts

REVENUES:

Property taxes $2,422,514 $2,422,514 $3,029,330 $606,816
Sales tax 8,012,549 8,012,549 8,90,042 477,493

Franchise tax 2,065,445 2,065,445 2,181,41 115,696

Other taxes 1,207,589 1,208,589 1,280,336 71,747

Intergovernmental revenues 5,236,988 6,266,519 6,624,853 358,334

Keller Canyon fees 525,079 525,079

Permits, licenses, and fees 1,90,600 1,191,300 1,037,889 (153,11)
Fines and forfeitures 275,390 275,390 170,756 (104,634)
Service fees 3,368,300 3,312,490 3,581,025 268,535

Use of money and property 371,66 371,466 588,288 216,822

Other revenues 305,649 377,759 187,860 (189,899)

Total revenues 24,456,490 25,504,021 27,696,599 2,192,578

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
City Council 117,620 117,620 80,143 37,477

City Manager and City Clerk 817,804 879,504 799,088 80,416

City Attorney 418,500 436,500 490,984 (54,484)
Human resources 861,500 861,600 809,196 52,404

Finance and services 2,001,234 2,457,076 2,134,777 322,299

Community development and services 5,823,395 6,049,295 5,438,249 611,046

Public safety 15,567,495 15,575,031 15,544,446 30,585

Public works - administration 177,011 177,011 170,879 6,132

Public works - streets 1,781,985 1,781,985 1,782,824 (839)
Public works - swimming center 195,004 195,004 195,456 (452)
Public works - others 208,842 208,842 167,815 41,027

General non-departmental 2,864,658 2,897,658 2,747,135 150,523

Capital outlay and improvements 132,800 75,942 56,858

Total expenditures 30,835,048 31,769,926 30,436,934 1,332,992

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,130,000 2,130,000 2,774,299 644,299
Transfers in 6,908,308 7,506,733 6,302,205 (1,204,528)
Transfers (out) (2,598,000) (7,021,174) (6,978,174) 43,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 6,440,308 2,615,559 2,098,330 (517,229)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $61,750 ($3,650,346) (642,005) $3,008,341

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 9,197,998

End of year $8,555,993

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2006

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer

Utility Utility Marina
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and investments (Note 2) $4,278,284 $5,608,044 $887,107

Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 24,878,056 945,926

Receivables:

Accounts 3,834,703 930,619 12,203

Interest 98,183 5,881

Loans/notes (Note 3)

Inventory 102,605 13,820

Prepaid items and other assets

Total current assets 33,191,831 7,490,470 913,130

Noncurrent assets:
Advance to other funds (Note 5B) 304,280

Capital assets (Note 6):

Land & nondepreciable assets 1,003,735 741,592 761,599

Depreciable assets, net 48,225,598 12,894,919 14,176,326

Total noncurrent assets 49,229,333 13,940,791 14,937,925

Total assets 82,421,164 21,431,261 15,851,055

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,065,582 84,376 180,477

Salaries payable 58,369 14,04 13,578

Refundable deposits 36,600 5,000 61,564

Taxes payable 89

Deferred revenue (Note 4)

Compensated absences payable - due within one year (Note 1I) 9,994 2,390 4,563

Claims and judgments payable - due within one year (Note 1OC)

Long-term debt - due within one year (Note 7) 450,000 530,000

Total current liabilities 1,620,545 635,780 260,271

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advance from other funds (Note 5B) 304,280

Compensated absences payable - due in more than one year (Note 1I) 87,243 21,352 39,749

Long-term debt - due in more than one year (Note 7) 38,025,000 10,285,000

Total noncurrent liabilities 38,16,523 10,306,352 39,749

Totallia bilties 40,037,068 10,942,132 300,020

NET ASSETS (Note 1K)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,754,333 3,125,791 14,937,925

Restricted for debt service purposes 1,840,871 908,578

Restricted for special purposes
Restricted for facility reserves 3,276,577 853,232

Unrestricted 26,512,315 5,601,528 613,110

Total net assets $42,384,096 $10,489,129 $15,551,035

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental
Non-Major Total Activities
Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Funds Funds Service FU11ds

$5,146,580 $15,920,015 $4,609,987
99,766 25,923,748

777,584 5,555,109 29,362

104,064

25,058

100,582 217,007 104,222

5,477 5,477 49,167

6,129,989 47,725,420 4,817,796

1,625,000 1,929,280

2,506,926

7,819,630 83,116,473 3,585,217

9,444,630 87,552,679 3,585,217

15,574,619 135,278,099 8,03,013

504,553 1,834,988 324,022

29,632 115,593 21,234

40,861 144,025

16,618 16,707

155,846 155,846

4,780 21,727

192,843

56,876 1,036,876

809,166 3,325,762 538,099

1,625,000 1,929,280

40,135 188,79 30,924

14,689 48,324,689

1,679,824 50,442,448 30,924

2,488,990 53,768,210 569,023

7,373,065 36,191,114

2,749,449

3,763,664

4,129,809

5,712,564 38,39,517 4,070,326

$13,085,629 $81,509,889 $7,833,990
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Major Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer
Utilty Utility Marina

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services $14,380,781 $3,527,298 $1,006,930
Meter fees (29,196)
Other fees 357,721 127,934
Rent and concessions 44,443
Gas and oil sales 264,125
Other operating revenues 904,936 12,820 2,583

Total operating revenues 15,614,242 3,668,052 1,318,081

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages 1,576,057 374,787 331,347
Department supplies 5,444,790 74,734 392,293
Rentals 64
Utilties 775,303 1,230 107,397
Maintenance and operations 357,369 277,221 173,565
Depreciation and amortization 902,188 410,766 403,972
Insurance premiums
Insurance deductible

Fringe benefits 791,741 199,148 206,623
Other operating expenses 1,606,042 101,461 14,306

Total operating expenses 11,453,490 1,39,347 1,629,567

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 4,160,752 2,228,705 (311,486)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment earnings 629,263 261,88 23,203
Interest and fiscal charges (1,683,100) (391,035)
Gain on disposal of assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,053,837) (129,547) 23,203

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 3,106,915 2,099,158 (288,283)

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Capital contributions 338,967 3,280,223
Transfers in (Note 5C) 63,511
Transfers out (Note 5C) (710,387) (540,388) (81,507)

Total contributions and transfers (307,909) (540,388) 3,198,716

Change in net assets 2,799,006 1,558,770 2,910,433

NET ASSETS (Note 1K):

Begiiming of year 39,585,090 8,930,359 12,640,602

End of year $42,384,096 $10,489,129 $15,551,035

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Governmental
Non-Major Total Activities
Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Funds Funds Service Funds

$4,753,440 $23,668,49 $4,719,591

(29,196)
485,655

394,774 439,217

71,528 335,653

482,650 1,402,989 1,900,070

5,702,392 26,302,767 6,619,661

731,318 3,013,509 721,846

1,40,310 7,352,127 1,70,615
1,636 1,700 23,486

51,853 935,783 364,18
3,294,630 4,102,785 715,398

561,587 2,278,513 642,764

635,022

252,573

385,164 1,582,676 2,685,795

1.721,809 16,543

6,466,98 20,988,902 7,228,60

(764,106) 5,313,865 (608,799)

133,365 1,047,319 229,118

(2,074,135)
22,358

133,365 (1,026,816) 251,476

(630,741) 4,287,049 (357,323)

3,619,190

2,02,541 2,076,052 3,151,663

(185,032) (1,517,314) (125,000)

1,827,509 4,177,928 3,026,663

1,96,768 8,64,977 2,669,340

11,888,861

$13,085,629

73,044,912

$81,509,889

5,164,650

$7,833,990
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30,2006

Major Enterprise Funds

Water
Utility

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers

Cash payments to suppliers of goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Other operating revenues
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$12,887,190

(7,870,168)

(2,390,140)
904,936

3,531,818

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interfund receipts
Inter fund payments
Transfers in

Transfers out
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

(100,000)
63,511

(710,387)

(746,876)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Capital asset acquisitions
Retirements of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

(13,805,000)
38,850,000

(1,683,100)

(940,160)
338,967

22,760,707

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

629,263

629,263

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 26,174,912

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginnll1g of year

End of year
2,981,428

$29,156,340

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operatll1g income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating ll1Come (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operatll1g activities:
Deprecia tion

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable
Loans receivable

Interest receiva ble

Inventory
Prepaid items

Accounts payable
Salaries and wages payable

Refundable deposits
Taxes payable
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences
Insurance claims pay a ble

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$4,160,752

902,188

(1,744,093)

(91,464)

13,441

302,736

(4,217)
10,600

(18,125)

(628,934)

$3,531,818

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Sewer
Utility

$3,00,547

(389,860)

(580,915)
12820

2,442,592

100,000

(540,388)

(440,388)

(520,000)

(391,035)

(599,643)
948

(1,509,730)

261,488

261,488

753,962

5,800,008

$6,553,970

$2,228,705

410,766

(257,441)

2,491

265

64,786

(1,727)

(5,253)

213,887

$2,42,592

Marina

$1,325,147

(558,176)

(537,570)
2,583

231,984

(81,507)

(81,507)

(3,197,297)
3,067,469

(129,828)

23,203

23,203

43,852

843,255

$887,107

($311,486)

403,972

9,649

123,476

197

5,884

89

203

543,470

$231,984



Governmental
Non-Major Total Activities
Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Funds Funds Service Funds

$5,495,640 $23,108,524 $4,697,934

(4,592,592) (13,410,796) (3,433,608)

(1,169,050) (4,677,675) (3,109,244)
482,650 1,402,989 1,900,070

216,648 6,423,042 55,152

100,000

(100,000)
2.012,541 2,076,052 3,151,663

(185,032) (1,517,314) (125,000)
1,827,509 558,738 3,026,663

(352,206) (14,677,206)
38,850,000

(2,074,135)

(4,737,100)

(23,174) 3,384,210 (1,073,832)

(375,380) 20,745,769 (1,073,832)

133,365 1,047,319 229,118
133,365 1,047,319 229,118

1,802,142 28,774,868 2,237,101

3,444,204 13,068,895 2,372,886

$5,246,346 $41,843,763 $4,609,987

($764,106) $5,313,865 ($608,799)

561,587 2,278,513 642,764

169,051 (1,822,834) (25,861)
9,106

(88,973)

(783) 12,923 (4,902)
198,714 689,712 110,006

(578) (6,325) (23,547)
3,600 20,084

(6,477) (6,388)
107,630 107,630

(51,990) (75,165) (2,420)

(41,195)
980,754 1,109,177 663,951

$216,648 $6,423,042 $55,152

39



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



City of Pitts burg
Basic Financial Statements
For the ended 2006

C FIDUCIARY FUNDS
The Fiduciary funds account for resources received and held by the City in a fiduciary capacity.
Disbursements are made in accordance with the trust agreement or applicable legislative enactment for
each fund.

Agency Funds - These funds were created to account for all the Assessment District Bonds, Environmental
and Other Impact Fees. Special assessments received are used to meet the debt service requirements and to
pay for the administrative costs. The environmental impact fees are collected, and utiized for

environmental improvement projects and the other impact fees are collected on behalf of other agencies
and remitted to them for their improvement projects. Other agencies include Contra Costa Fire Protection
District (CCFPD), Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) and the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and
Finance Authority (ECCRFF).
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City of Pittsburg
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Agency Funds
June 30, 2006

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)

Cash and inveshnents held by fiscal agent (Note 2)

Assessment receivable

Interest receivable

Total assets

$3,741,212

11,759,505

23,610,133

58,705

$39,169,555

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deferred assessments

Due to other parties

Due to bondholders

Totallia biltìes

$4,269,423

2,273,856

5,627,138

26,999,138

$39,169,555

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the ended 30, 2006

i NOTE l-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Pittsburg, California, (City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental
agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) is the accepted standard settng
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated under the General Laws of the State of California and enjoys all the
rights and privileges pertaining to such "General Law" cities. The City uses the City
Council/Manager form of government. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary
government, the City, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such
that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for
which the primary government's exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete.

The following is a brief review of the component units included in the accompanying basic financial
statements of the City:

Redevelopment Agency o/the City of Pittsburg 

The Redevelopment Agency (Agency) was established in November 1981 pursuant to the State of
California Health and Safety Codes, Section 33000, entitled "Community Redevelopment Law." Its
purpose is to prepare and carry out plans for the improvement, rehabilitation and redevelopment of
blighted areas within the territorial limits of the City.

Housing Authority

The Housing Authority (Authority) was established to account for Federal funds for low income
housing under both certificate and voucher programs. The Authority is reported in the special
revenue fund of the City. No separate financial report is issued by the Authority.

Public Infrastructure Financing Authority

The Public Infrastructure Financing Authority (PIFA) was established by a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated December 5, 1994, by and among the City and the Agency, and is qualified to
issue bonds under the Mello-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, The PIFA was formed to
finance the acquisition of certain public improvements and refinance prior outstanding special
assessment district debt with City commitment. The Authority is currently inactive, therefore, no
separate financial report is issued.
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City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

I NOTE l-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pittsburg Power Company

The Pittsburg Power Company was established by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated
September 23,2006, by and among the City and the Agency. The Company was formed to establish
a municipal utility for natural gas and electric service. The Company is reported in the Island
Energy enterprise fund of the City, No separate financial report is issued by the Company.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14. The City is the primary
governmental unit. Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to the
primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the component unit's
board, or because the component unit wil provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden
on the City. The Agency and Authorities have been accounted for as "blended" component units of
the City. Despite being legally separate, these entities are so intertwined with the City that they are,
in substance, part of the City's operations. Accordingly, the balances and transactions of these

component units are reported within the funds of the City. Balances for the Agency and

Authorities are reported as separate funds in the special revenue, debt service, and capital projects
funds. The following specific criteria are used in determining that the Agency and Authorities are
blended component units:

· The members of the City Council also act as the governing bodies of the Agency and
Authorities.

· The Agency and Authorities are managed by employees of the City. A portion of the City's
salary and overhead expenses are biled to the Agency and Authorities each year,

· The City, the Agency, and Authorities are financially interdependent. The City makes loans
to the Agency to use for redevelopment purposes and the Authorities for operational
purposes. Property tax and other revenues of the Agency and Authorities are used to repay
the loans to the City.

Detailed financial statements are available for the Agency from the City's Finance Department.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. City resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
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City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

I NOTE l-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement
of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements present summaries of Governmental and
Business- Type Activities for the City accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary Activities of the
City are not included in these statements,

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities,
including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets, and long-term liabilities, are included in the
accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are
earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The types of
transactions reported as program revenues for the City are reported in three categories: 1) charges
for services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to
interfund activities, payables and receivables including the corresponding deferred revenues. All
internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated except those representig
balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented
as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of
Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated. However, transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect) as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to the business type activities, unless those pronouncements conflct with or
contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Statements and

Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletis
(ARB) of the committee on Accountig Procedure. The City applies all applicable FASB Statements
and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflct with or contradict
GASB pronouncements,

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated, An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net
assets as presented in these statements to the net assets presented in the Government-Wide financial
statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the qualifications for major fund
reporting.

45



City of Pitts burg
Basic Financial Statements
For the ended 2006

I NOTE I-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources"
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets
and current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accountig period in which they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are
recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after
year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as
susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, charges for services, Federal and State grants,
sales taxes and earnings on investments. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred.

Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major
proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated. A column representing internal service funds is
also presented in these statements. However, internal service balances and activities have been
combined with the governmental activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the

accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilties (whether current or non-current)
are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. In these funds,
receivables have been recorded as revenue and provisions have been made for uncollectible
amounts. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Government Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City applies
all GASB pronouncements currently in effect as well as Financial Accounting Standard Board
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions and Accounting Research
Bulletis of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating

expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other
expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets. The City's fiduciary funds
represent agency funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilties) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The Fiduciary funds are accounted for on the accrual
basis of accounting as are the Proprietary funds explained above.

C. Use of Restricted/nrestricted Net Assets

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net assets first.

D. Cash and Investments

The City pools cash resources from all funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. The
balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating requirements. Cash in
excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and other

investments for varying terms.

In accordance with GASB No. 31, highly liquid money market investments with maturities of one
year or less at tie of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair
value. Market value is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily
available. Interest earned on investment is allocated to all funds on the basis of monthly cash and
investment balances.

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California, titled Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and
Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of
the State of California collateralizing these investments, In addition, these Structured Notes and
Asset-Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest rates.

Cash equivalents are considered amounts in demand deposits and short-term investments with a
maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the City and are presented as "Cash and
Investments" in the accompanying basic financial statements.
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E. Property Taxes

Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties up to 1 % of assessed

value, plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes go into a pool, and are then
allocated to the cities based on complex formulas, Accordingly, the City accrues only those taxes
which are receivable from the county within sixty days after year-end.

Lien Date
Levy Date
Due Date

January 1

July 1

Secured: November 1 and February 1
Unsecured: July 1
Secured: December 10 and April 10
Unsecured: August 31

Collection Date

Property taxes levied are recorded as revenue when received, in the fiscal year of levy, because of
the adoption of the" alternate method of property tax distribution," known as the Teeter Plan, by
the City and Contra Costa County. The Teeter Plan authorizes the Auditor/Controller of Contra
Costa County to allocate 100% of the secured property taxes biled, but not yet paid.

F. Interfund Balances/Internal Balances

Advances to and advances from other funds represent interfund loans in the fund financial
statements. Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reservation or by deferred
revenue in the applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not expendable available
financial resources,

Any unpaid interest due to lack of funds in the borrowing fund increases the principal owed and is
reported in the lending fund as deferred revenue.

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due from other funds.
These are generally repaid within the following fiscal year.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as "internal balances."

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is
not available. Donated assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.
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City policy has set the capitalization thresholds for reporting capital assets as follows:

. General Capital Assets
Infrastructure Capital Assets

$5,000
$25,000.

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

. Building and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

30-45 years
5 - 20 years
30-75 years

.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 requires the inclusion of
infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial statements. In accordance with
Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all infrastructure assets in its Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets
include:

. Street system
· Site amenities such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its

business.

Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For example the street system can
be subdivided into pavement, curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians, streetlights, traffic control
devices (signs, signals and pavement markings), landscaping and land. These subsystems were not
delineated in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The appropriate operating department
maintains information regarding the subsystems.

For all infrastructure systems, the City has elected to use the Basic Approach as defined by GASB
Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. The City conducted a valuation of its infrastructure
assets as of July 1, 2002, This valuation determined the original cost using one of the following
methods:

1) Use of historical records where available,

2) Standard unit costs appropriate for the construction/ acquisition date of the asset.
3) Present replacement cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase from the

construction/ acquisition date to the current date,

The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total depreciation from the date of
construction/ acquisition to the current date was computed on a straight-line method using industry
accepted life expectancies for each infrastructure subsystem, The book value was then computed by
deducting the accumulated depreciation from the original cost.
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Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type

activities and proprietary funds as part of the asset cost.

H. Long-Tenn Debt

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Long-term debt and other financial obligations are reported as liabilities in the appropriate
activities.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight-line method, Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.

Fund Financial Statements

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present long-term debt, which are shown in
the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of
Net Assets.

Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources.
Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuance reported as other financing uses, Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures,

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

1. Compensated Absences

City employees have vested interests in varying levels of vacation compensation. If vacation is not
used by the employee during the term of employment, compensation is payable to the employee at
the time of retirement. Such compensation is calculated at the employee's then prevalent rate at the
time of retirement or termination and compensated at 100% of accumulated hours, The City's
liability for compensated absences is recorded in various Governmental funds or Proprietary funds
as appropriate. The liability for compensated absences is determined annually.

Governmental funds include only amounts expected to be paid after the end of the fiscal year, while
the long-term liabilities are recorded in the Statement of Net Assets.
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Compensated absences at June 30,2006 are presented as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Beginning Balance $1,852,846 $281,460 $2,134,306
Additions 295,769 18,255 314,024
Payments (647,124) (89,509) (736,633)

Ending Balance $1 $210,206 $1,711,697

Due within one year $114,557 $21,727 $136,284

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term
portion of governmental activities compensated absences is liquidated primarily by the General
Fund when it becomes current.

J. Deferred Revenue

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Deferred revenue is recognized for transactions for which revenue has not yet been earned. Typical
transactions recorded as unearned revenues in the Government-Wide Financial Statements are
unearned grants and prepaid charges for services.

Fund Financial Statements

Deferred revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria
based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City records deferred revenue for

transactions for which revenues have not been earned, or for which funds are not available to meet
current financial obligations. Typical transactions for which deferred revenue is recorded are grants
received but not yet earned or available, interest on interfund advances receivable, and long-term
loans receivable.

K. Net Assets and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This amount consists of capital assets net of

accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition,
consh'uction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Assets - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws

or regulations of other governments.
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Unrestricted Net Assets - This amount is all net assets that do not meet the definition of "invested in

capital assets, net of related debt" or "restricted net assets."

Fund Financial Statements

Fund Equity - Reservations and designations of fund balances of governmental funds and
unrestricted net assets of proprietary funds are created to either satisfy legal covenants, including
State laws, that require a portion of the fund equity be segregated or identiy the portion of the
fund equity not available for future expenditures.

Reservations and designations used by the City are as follows:

Reserved for Encumbrances represents commitments for materials and services on purchase orders

and contracts which are unperformed.

Reserved for Supplies represents assets set aside as inventory and not available to be used to meet

expenditures in the current period.

Reserved for Capital Projects represents funds reserved for capital and improvement projects.

Reserved for Debt Service represents amounts accumulated in accordance with a bond indenture or
similar covenant.

Reserved for Prepaid Items represent funds that have already been expended and are not available as
a resource to meet expenditures of the current year.

Reserved for Advances represents funds that are to be received from other funds on a long-term basis.

Reserved for Loans Receivable represents funds reserved for the receipt of loans.

Designated for Recreation Services and Others represents funds donated or contributed to the

Recreation, Engineering, and Police Departments for specified uses,

Designated for Grants represents funds received from various State and Federal award programs
which have been set aside to fulfil the requirements of the award.

Designated for Roads represents various street funds set aside for the improvement and maintenance
of roadways.

Designated for Redevelopment Projects represents funds set aside for various projects in the

Redevelopment Project area,
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L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accountig principles
requires City management to make estiates and assumptions that affect certain amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estiates.

M. Budgetary Principles

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Public hearings are conducted at the City to obtain public comments. The City Council
annually adopts the budget for the ensuing fiscal year prior to July 1 st.

2. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgetary amounts within a single fund; however,
any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City
CounciL.

3, Legally adopted budgets and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management
control device during the year for the General Fund, special revenue funds and capital projects
funds. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for debt service funds because effective
budgetary control is alternatively achieved through bond indenture provisions, The debt
service, and agency funds are not budgeted,

4. Budgets for the General, special revenue and capital projects funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with GAAP,

5. Under Article XII B of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative),
the City is restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from the proceeds of taxes, and
if proceeds of taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the excess must either be refunded to the
State Controller, returned to the taxpayers through revised tax rates or revised fees schedules, or
an excess in one year may be offset against a deficit in the following year. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, based on the calculations by City Management, proceeds of taxes did not
exceed the appropriations limit.

6. Budgeted revenue amounts represent the original budget modified by adjustments authorized
during the year. Budgeted expenditure amounts represent original appropriations adjusted for
supplemental appropriations during the year which were contingent upon new or additional
revenue sources and reappropriated amounts for prior year encumbrances. The City Manager
must approve adjustments to departmental budgets; however, management may amend the
budgeted amounts within departmental expenditure classifications.

7. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year and then are rebudgeted for the coming year.

53



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the ended 2006

I NOTE I-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8. Budgeted appropriations for the various governmental funds become effective each July 1. The
City Council may amend the budget during the fiscal year. The legal level of budgetary control
has been established at the fund leveL. Appropriations generally lapse at the end of the fiscal
year to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered.

9. Budgets are adopted for all funds except for the Low/Moderate Income Housing I Special
Revenue Fund, the Pension Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund, the Kirker Creek Drainage
Fees Capital Projects Fund and the Vista Del Mar CFD 2005-2 Special Revenue Fund.

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
expenditures are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrance
accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary accounting. Since encumbrances do
not yet constitute expenditures or liabilities, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported
as reservations of fund balances.

N. New Funds

The City opened the Pension Obligation Bonds Debt Service Fund and the Vista del Mar CFD Bond
2005 Agency Fund during fiscal year 2005-2006.

O. Receipt of Prior Years' Keller Canyon Fees

The City recorded a one-time adjustment of Contra Costa County tipping fees related to Keller
Canyon Landfil in the amount of $525,079 earned from January through June 2005 that were not
received by the City from the County until January of 2006. This amount would have been recorded
during Fiscal Year 2004-2005 if the monies had been received in a timely manner. For the 12-month
period from July 2005 through June 2006, the City received $1,068,778 in tipping fees which was
received from the County tiely and has been accounted for correctly during fiscal year 2005-2006.

I NOTE 2-CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City pools cash from all sources and all funds except Cash and Investments held by Trustees so that
it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity, while individual funds can
make expenditures at any tie.

A. Policies

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a
market value of 110% of the City's cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market
value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held
in a separate investment pool by another institution in the City's name and places the City ahead of
general creditors of the institution.
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The City invests in individual investments and in investment pools, Individual investments are

evidenced by specific identiiable securíties instruments, or by an electronic entry registering the owner in
the records of the institution issuing the security, called the book entry system. In order to increase
security, the City employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain City managed
investments, regardless of their form. Individual Investments are generally made by the City's fiscal
agent as required under its debt issues; the City normally invests in only in the California Local Agency
Investment Fund pool administered by the State,

The City's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accountig principles.
The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end,
and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

B. Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or
not their use is restricted under the terms of City debt instruments or Agency agreements.

Statement of Net Assets
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Fiduciary Funds
Cash and investments
Cash and investments held by fiscal agent

Total cash and investments

$103,641,862
144,693,894

3,741,212

11,759,505

$263,836,473

55



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

I NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy

The City's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the
following, provided the credit ratigs of the issuers are acceptable to the City; and approved
percentages and maturities are not exceeded. The table below also identiies certain provisions of the
California Government Code, or the City's Investment Policy where the City's Investment Policy is
more restrictive,

Maximum Credit Maximum in Maximum Per 

Authorized Invesbnent Type Maximum Maturity Quality Portfolio Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 Years None None None

Federal Agency Obligations 5 Years None 50% 15%

Bankers Acceptances i 80 Days Al 40% 15%

Commercial Paper 270 Days Al 25% 10%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years Aa/AA 30% 15%

Certificates of Deposit I Year "A" 30% 15%

Repurchase Agreements 90 Days "A" 15% 15%

Medium-Term Notes 5 Years A 30% 15%

Money Market Funds N/A 3 highest ratings 20% None

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None $40 Mí1ion None
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D. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents
under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged
reserves to be used if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California
Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond
indentures or State statutes. The table below identiies the investment types that are authorized for
investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identiies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Maximum Minimum Credit
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality

U.S. Treasury Obligations N/A None

U.S Agencies N/A AAA

Bankers Acceptances 360 days A-l/ A-l+

Corrnercial Paper 270 days A-1+

Money Market Fund N/A AAAm

State of California Obligations N/A A

Municipal Obligations N/A AAA

Per-refunded Municipal Obligations N/A AAA

Certificates of Deposits N/A None

Guaranteed Investment Agreements N/A None

Repurchase Agreements 30 days A

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None

California Asset Management Program (CAMP) N/A None
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E. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates wil adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates,

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments (including investments
held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that
shows the distribution of the City's investments by maturity.

Inveshnent Type
California Local Agency Investment Fund
Money Market Funds

Certificate of Deposit
Guaranteed Investment Agreements

Total Inveshnents

Cash in banks and on hand

Total Cash and Investments

12 Months or
less 25 to 60 Months

More than 60
Months

$22,845,023

$22,845,023

Total

$89,969,050

16,109,537

20,000,000

111,274,728

237,353,315

26,483,158

$263,836,473

$89,969,050

16,109,537

20,000,000

66,012,469

$192,091,056

$22,417,236

$22,417,236

The City is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The
City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as
the value of the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF's investment
portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed
securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies,

government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations, At
June 30,2006, these investments matured in an average of 152 days.

Money Market Funds are available for withdrawal on demand and at June 30, 2006 matured in an
average of 14 days,
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F. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the fisk that an issuef of an investment wil not fulfil its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2006 for each investment type
as provided by Standard and Poor's investment rating system.

Investment Type
Ratings at Year

End Total

Money Market Funds
Not rated:

Certificates of Deposits

California Local Agency Investment Fund

Guaranteed Investment Agreements
Total Investments

Exempt from credit rate disclosure:

Cash in banks and on hand
Total Cash and Investments

AAA $16,109,537

20,000,000

89,969,050

111,274,728

237,353,315

26,483,158

$263,836,473

G. Concentration of Credit Risk

Significant investments in the securities of any individual issuers, other than U. S. Treasury securities,
mutual funds and external investment pools are set forth below:

Investment Type

Reported
AmountReporting Unit Issuer

Entity-wide:

Transamerica Occidental Life Investment

FSA Invcstment

Mechanics Bank

Guaranteed Investment Contract

Guaranteed Investment Contract

Certificate of Deposit

$63,761,466

22,417,236

20,000,000

Major Funds: Water
FNMA

FSA Investmcnt

Guaranteed Investment Contract

Guaranteed Investment Contract

2,251,003

22,417,235

RDA Debt Service

Transamerica Occidental Life Investment

MBIA Collateralized Flexible Investment

Mechanics Bank

Guaranteed Investment Contract

Guaranteed Investment Contract

Certificate of Deposit

63,761,466

7,908,608

20,000,000
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As of June 30,2006, loans and notes receivable consisted of the following:

Special Revenue Funds:
Small Cities Grant
HUD Community Development

Block Grant
Redevelopment Agency
Low /Moderate Income

Housing II

$1,854,639

282,689
12,491,987

6,744,837

Total Special Revenue Funds 21,374,152

Internal Service Fund:
Information System 25,058

Total loans and notes receivable $21,399,210

A. Small Cities Grant Loans

The HUD Small Cities Grant Fund is made up loans for housing and rental rehabilitation loans
funded by state and federal funding sources. The total of the loans outstanding in the Small Cities
Grant Fund totaled $1,854,639 as of June 30, 2006.

B. HUD Community Development Block Grant Loans

The HUD CDBG Special Revenue fund had a loans receivable balance as of June 30, 2006 which was
made up of $282,689 in CDBG entitlement loans.

C. Redevelopment Agency Loans

The loans receivable at June 30, 2006 consisted of various rehabilitation and construction loans in
the amount of $6,366,438. These loans have been made to individual homeowners, businesses and
developers within the Redevelopment Area. The terms of these loans are specific to the borrower,
and interest rates, as well as usage and repayment requirements, vary according to the loan type.

Included is a loan disbursement of $769,885 which resulted from a Development and Disposition
agreement that the Agency entered into during fiscal year 2005-2006 with Domus Development LLC

(Developer). The Agency agreed to loan the Developer $8,000,000 for the development of a 28-unit
residential rental dwelling and an 8,000 square feet ground floor commercial space at the northeast
corner of Railroad Avenue and 10th Street. $6,500,000 wil be funded through 2004 Housing Bonds
and $1,500,000 wil be funded from tax increment. The Developer wil repay the loan by making

monthly payments of $10,168, plus a Public Safety Annual Fee of $376.19 per dwelling unit, with an
increase of 5% every year commencing on the earlier of the City's issuance of the Certificate of
Occupancy or November 15, 2007.
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Also included is a loan agreement with Mt. Diablo Unified School District in the amount of
$6,147,209 for capital improvements for the Mt. Diablo Unified School District. The funding was
provided with 2003A Bond Proceeds that typically would be passed through to the School District.
The District wil repay the loan from school impact fees collected, commencing January 2005, until
the Agency is fully reimbursed or 35 years, whichever occurs first. The balance outstanding as of
June 30, 2006 was $6,125,549.

D. Low/Moderate Income Housing II

During fiscal year 2004-2005, the Redevelopment Agency Low/Moderate Income Housing II Special
Revenue Fund agreed to loan funds of $1,400,000 to the Steadfast Companies for the purchase and
renovation of 200 affordable residential units located within the Redevelopment Project Area. The
loan bears interest of 7% per year and provides for the Agency to receive 30% of the projects
residual receipts annually,

During fiscal year 2004-2005, the Redevelopment Agency Low/Moderate Income Housing II Special
Revenue Fund to loan funds of $4,880,000 to the Fairfield Belmont, L.P. for the purchase and
renovation of 224 affordable residential units located within the Redevelopment Project Area. The
loan bears interest of 1 % per year and provides for the Agency to receive 20% of the projects
residual receipts annually,

During fiscal year 2005-2006, the Redevelopment Agency/Low Moderate Income Housing II Special
Revenue Fund agreed to loan funds of $1,052,854 to Mercy Housing California for the development
of a 64-unit dwelling and child care center located within the Redevelopment Project Area. The
loan bears interest of 1 % per year and provides for the Agency to receive 50% of the project's
residual receipts annually. The Agency disbursed $278,117 as of June 30,2006.

During fiscal year 2005-2006, the Redevelopment Agency/Low Moderate Income Housing II
Special Revenue Fund agreed to loan funds of $186,720 to low income families to purchase homes.
The loans bear no interest and are deferred until the property changes title or is refinanced for cash.

E. Information Systems Loans

The loans receivable in the Information Systems Internal Service Fund are for the City's employee
home computer purchase loans; the outstanding receivable balance as of June 30, 2006 was $25,058.
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A. Government- Wide Financial Statements

Deferred revenues in Government-Wide Financial Statements represent amounts for which
revenues have not been earned. At June 30, 2006, deferred revenues in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements include unearned grant revenues of $1,220,873 in Governmental Activities and

$156,280 in Business-Type Activities.

B. Fund Financial Statements

At June 30, 2006, the following deferred revenues were recorded in the Fund Financial Statements
because either the revenues had not been earned or the funds were not available to finance
expenditures of the current period:

Governmental Funds

Redevelopment Low /Moderate Housing
General Agency Special Income Authority Non-Major
Fund Revenue Housing II (Section 8) Funds Total

Unearned grant revenues $577,397 $245,775 $823,172
Housing loans receivable $689,049 $22,580 2,474,909 3,186,538
Construction loan receivable 10,395,701 $6,744,837 17,140,538

Total $577,397 $11,084,750 $6,744,837 $22,580 $2,720,684 $21,150,248

Business- Type Funds

Golf Course Island Energy Total

Unearned revenues $23,307 $132,539 $155,846
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A. Current Interfund Balances

In the normal course of business, transactions occur between funds which give rise to interfund
balances, These balances are normally repaid as they arise, The purpose for each of these interfund
balances is to eliminate negative cash balances.

Current interfund balances are as follows:

DUE FROM FUND: DUE TO FUND: AMOUNT

San Marco CFD 2004-01 Special Revenue Fund

Public Safety Service CFD 2005-1 Special Revenue Fund

Vista Del Mar CFD 2005-2 Special Revenue Fund

HUD Community Development Block Grant

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

$99,215

95,000

803

161,229

$356,247

B. Interfund Advances

At June 30,2006, the following funds had advances that were not expected to be repaid within the
next year:

During fiscal year 2002/2003 the Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund advanced $375,000 to the Golf
Course Enterprise Fund for the replacement and improvements of golf carts. The advance is to be
repaid within ten years provided the money is available in the Golf Fund.

During fiscal year 2003/2004 the Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund advanced $525,000 to the Water
Utility Enterprise Fund for repairs and capital improvements to the Hilview Reservoir Storm
Drain. The advance is to be repaid over five years with interest at the Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) rate. At June 30, 2006, the balance of the advance was $304,280.

During fiscal year 2003/2004 the Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund advanced $300,000 to the Island
Energy Enterprise Fund to establish a reserve fund for the operating activities on Mare Island. The
advance is to be repaid in future years when the net assets in the Island Energy have reached a level
to replace the amount transferred from the Pittsburg Power Fund.
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During fiscal year 2004/2005 the Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund advanced $650,000 to the Island
Energy Enterprise Fund to meet the capital requirements for the new gas and electric meters for
new residential units on Mare Island. The advance is to be repaid in future years when the net
assets in the Island Energy have reached a level to replace the amount transferred from the

During fiscal year 2004/2005 the Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund advanced $200,000 to the Island
Energy Enterprise Fund to meet the capital requirements for the Development Refund Account for
the new residential units on Mare Island. The advance is to be repaid when the development is
completed.

At June 30, 2006, the Low/Moderate Income Housing I Special Revenue Fund had an advance
outstanding of $8,100,000 from the Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund for the allocation
of costs of low/moderate income housing program qualified for the Housing Set Aside efforts
owed to the Agency. As required, the Agency has adopted a plan to eliminate the deferred amount.

During fiscal year 2005/2006 the Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund advanced $100,000 to the Island
Energy Enterprise Fund to enable the delivery of high quality and responsive services to all its
customers and to maintain sound operations. The advance is to be repaid in future years when the
net assets in the Island Energy Fund have reached a level to replace the amount transferred from
the Pittsburg Power Fund,
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C. Inter/und Transfers

At June 30, 2006, the City had the following interfund transfers:

FROM FUND:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds:

Measure C Tax

Gas Tax

Storm Water Utility (NPDES)

Southwest Pittsburg GHAD n

BUD Community Development Block Grant

LowlModerate Income Housing n

Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue

Capital Projects:

Park Dedication

Traffc Mitigation

Debt Service Funds:

Redevelopment Agency

Internal Service Funds:

Insurance

Fringe Benefits

Enterprise Funds:
Water Utility Enterprise Fund

Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund

Marina Enterprise Fund

Island Energy Enterprise Fund

Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund

The reasons for these transfers are set forth below:

(A) To fund general operations & administrative services

(B) To fund debt service payments

(C) To fund capital improvement projects

(D) To transfer bond proceeds to fund capital projects
(E) To establish reserve for future contingencies

(F) To fund various affordable housing projects

TO FUND: AMOUNT

Lighting and Landscape Special Revenue Fund $1,270,000 (J)
Economic Development Special Revenue Fund 400,000 (E)
Budget Stabilization Special Revenue Fund 1,435,000 (E)
Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund 28,000 (G)
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 63,511 (A)

Golf Course Enterprise Fund 310,000 (A)
Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund 320.000 (1)

Bui lding Maintenance Internal Service Fund 332,278 (E)
Fringe Benefits Interna! Service Fund 2,193,721 (K)
Fleet Maintenance Internal Service Fund 300,000 (1)

Insurance Internal Service Fund 279,275 (E)
Information Systems Internal Service Fund 46,389 (E)

General Fund 250,000 (A)

Capital Improvement Project Fund 222,873 (q
Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund 291.688 (q
General Fund 1,300,000 (A)

General Fund 82,198 (A)
General Fund 25,000 (A)
General Fund 269,859 (A)

Small Cities Grant Fund 100,000 (A)

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund 1,379,395 (q
General Fund 3,000,000 (A)

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund 3,725,953 (q
Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund 15,115,200 (B), (1) 

Pittsburg Power Enterprise Fund 1,382.541 (II)

General Fund 75,000 (A)

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund 1,039,955 (C)

General Fund 50,000 (A)

Capital Improvement Project Fund 100,662 (A)

General Fund

Low/Moderate Income Housing n Special Revenue Fun.

Capital Improvement Projects Fund

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund

Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund

Traffc Mitigation Capital Projects Fund

197,833

1,405,121

105,844

11,646,283

2,517,025

44,360

(D)

(F)

(B)

(D)

(l),(D)
(D)

General Fund

General Fund

100.000 (A)

25,000 (A)

330,388 (A)

339,366 (q
40,633 (I)

330,388 (A)

210,000 (C)
81,507 (A)
88,362 (A)

96,670 (A)

$52,947,278

General Fund

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund

Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Fund

General Fund

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

(G) To fund web based geographic information systems

(H) To fund Kirker Improvement Project

(I) To reimburse for prior year expenses

(.1) To fund for Citywide Street Lighting

(K) To fund for City Employee Fringe Benefits
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A. Governmel1t- Wide Financial Statements

At June 30,2006, the City's capital assets consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

Non-depreciable assets:

Land $45,413,481 $45,413,481

Construction in process 37,995,791 $2,506,926 40,502,717

Total non-depreciable assets, net 83,409,272 2,506,926 85,916,198

Depreciable assets:

Buildings and improvements 47,845,231 22,564,823 70,410,054

Machinery and equipment 7,209,662 2,233,776 9,443,438

Infrastructure 203,902,765 92,987,505 296,890,270

Totals depreciable assets 258,957,658 117,786,104 376,743,762

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (11,395,673) (7,657,175) (19,052,848)
Machinery and equipment (4,200,798) (1,324,265) (5,525,063)
InfraslTuchire (78,635,207) (25,688,191) (104,323,398)

Total accumulated depreciation (94,231,678) (34,669,631) (128,901,309)
Total depreciable assets, net 164,725,980 83,116,73 247,842,453

Total capital assets $248,135,252 $85,623,399 $333,758,651
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The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities:

Balance at Retirements Balance at

June 30, 2005 Additions and Transfers June 30, 2006
Governmental activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $38,528,579 $8,743,408 ($1,858,506) $45,413,481
Construction in progress 33,685,026 12,050,846 (7,740,081) 37,995,791

Total capital assets not being depreciated 72,213,605 20,794,254 (9,598,587) 83,409,272

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 46,369,793 1,475,438 47,845,231

Machinery and Equipment 6,206,003 1,124,716 (121,057) 7,209,662

Infrastructure 201,123,846 2,030,767 748,152 203,902,765

Total capital assets being depreciated 253,699,642 3,155,483 2,102,533 258,957,658

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (9,900,221) (1,190,124) (305,328) (11,395,673)
Machinery and Equipment (3,797,289) (648,94) 244,985 (4,200,798)
Infrastructure (76,315,999) (5,651,590) 3,332,382 (78,635,207)
Total accumulated depreciation (90,013,509) (7,490,208) 3,272,039 (94,231,678)
Net capital assets being depreciated 163,686,133 (4,334,725) 5,374,572 164,725,980

Governmental activity capital assets, net $16,459,529 ($4,224,015) $248,135,252

Governmental activities depreciation expense for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2006 are
as follows:

City Manager and City Clerk
Human Resources
Finance and services
Community services
Public safety
Public works
General nondepartmental
Internal service funds

$8,503
7,114

1,297

3,556

127,975

5,907,044

788,633

646,086

$7,490,208
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The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities:

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

Balance at

June 30, 2005 Additions
Retirements

and Transfers
Balance at

June 30, 2006

$4,973,688 $2,089,531

Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,973,688 2,089,531

($4,556,293) $2,506,926

(4,556,293) 2,506,926

4,785,659 22,564,823

(368,322) 2,233,776

768,038 92,987,505

5,185,375 117,786,104

Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets being depreciated

15,817,547

1,896,912

92,219,467

109,933,926

1,961,617

705,186

2,666,803

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated

(7,154,26) (482,490) (20,259) (7,657,175)
(1,429,020) (177,415) 282,170 (1,324,265)

(23,374,812) (1,618,608) (694,771) (25,688,191 )

(31,958,258) (2,278,513) (432,860) (34,669,631)
77,975,668 388,290 4,752,515 83,116,473

$82,949,356 $2,477,821 $196,222 $85,623,399Business-type activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities depreciation expenses for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2006 are
as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Water
Sewer
Marina
Golf Course
Island Energy

$902,188
410,766

403,972

212,692

348,895

Total depreciation expense $2,278,513
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B. Fund Financial Statements

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present General Government Capital Assets,
which are shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.

The capital assets of the enterprise funds in the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are the same
as those shown in the business-type activities of the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Internal Service Funds' capital assets are combined with governmental activities.

I NOTE 7-LONG TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the governmental activities for the
year ended June 30,2006:

Beginning Amounts Amounts Due
Original Issue Balance Ending Balance Due Within in More Than 

Description Amount July 1, 2005 Additions Retirements June 30, 2006 One Year One Year

Governmental Activities:
Tax Allocation Bonds:

1993B RDA Refunding Bonds $40,000,000 $39,885,000 $39,885,000 $39,885,000
1999 RDA Bonds 30,106,357 29,906,357 ($55,000) 29,851,357 $55,000 29,796,357

2002A RDA Refunding Bonds 59,970,000 47,790,000 (4,185,000) 43,605,000 4,330,000 39,275,000

2003A RDA Bonds 88,375,000 88,370,000 (285,000) 88,085,000 290,000 87,795,000
2004A RDA Housing Set 18,270,000 18,270,000 (265,000) 18,005,000 285,000 17,720,000
Aside Bonds
2004B RDA Subordinated 10,720,000 10,720,000 10,720,000 10,720,000
Refunding Bonds
2004A RDA Subordinated 117,615,000 i 17,6 i 5,000 117,615,000 117,615,000
Bonds
2006 Pension Obligation Bonds 39,566,056 $39,566,056 39,566,056 39,566,056

352,556,357 39,566,056 (4,790,000) 387,332,413 4,960,000 382,372,413
Unamortized Premium 6,631,349 (442,090) 6,189,259 6,189,259

Total governmental activities $359,187,706 $39,566,056 ($5,232,090) $393,521,672 $4,960,000 $388,561,672

1993 Series B Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

1993 Series B Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (1993B RDA Bonds)
outstanding at June 30,2006, amounted to $39,885,000. The 1993B RDA Bonds bear interest at rates
between 5.70% and 5.80% with interest payments made semi-annually on February 1 and August 1.
The 1993B RDA Bonds mature on August 1 of 2032 and 2034 in the amounts of $15,185,000 and
$24,700,000 respectively, Proceeds from the 1993B RDA Bonds were used to fund certain capital
improvements located within the Los Medanos Project Area.
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The annual debt service requirements to mature the 1993B RDA Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006, were as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest

2007

2008
2009

2010

2011

2012-2016

2017-2021

2022-2026

2027-2031
2032-2036 $39,885,000

$39,885,000

$2,298,030
2,298,030
2,298,030
2,298,030
2,298,030

11,490,150

11,490,150
11,490,150

11,490,150
4,784,160

$62,234,910Total

Total

$2,298,030
2,298,030
2,298,030
2,298,030

2,298,030

11,490,150

11,490,150

11,490,150
11,490,150
44,669,160

$102,119,910

1999 Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds

1999 Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds (1999 RDA Bonds) outstanding at June 30, 2006
amounted to $29,851,357. The bonds bear interest rates between 4.1 % and 6.2% with interest
payments made semi-annually on February 1 and August 1. The bonds mature on August 1 of each
year. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year. The bonds are to
be paid from Redevelopment Agency tax revenues. The proceeds of the bonds were used to provide
money for certain public capital improvements located within the Redevelopment Agency's Project
Area, to fund a reserve account, and to pay cost of issuance incurred in connection with the issuance.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the 1999 RDA Bonds outstanding at June 30,2006,
were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2007 $55,000 $526,537 $581,537
2008 60,000 523,748 583,748
2009 65,000 520,653 585,653
2010 580,000 504,383 1,084,383
2011 600,000 474,438 1,074,438

2012-2016 3,515,000 1,841,874 5,356,874
2017-2021 7,640,130 9,533,675 17,173,805
2022-2026 9,459,893 32,339,904 41,799,797
2027-2031 7,876,334 33,935,333 41,811,667

Totals $29,851,357 $80,200,545 $110,051,902
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2002 Series A Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

2002 Series A Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (2002 RDA Bonds)

outstanding at June 30, 2006 amounted to $43,605,000. The 2002 Series A RDA Bonds bear interest at
rates between 2.00% and 5,25% with interest payments made semi-annually on February 1 and
August 1. The 2002 RDA Bonds mature annually from 2002 to 2015 on August 1 in amounts ranging
from $3,930,000 to $4,980,000. Proceeds from the 2002 RDA Bonds were used to refund $58,460,000 of
the Agency's 1992 Los Medanos Community Development Project, Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
and to pay costs of issuance incurred in connection with the issuance, sales and delivery of Series
2002A.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2002 RDA Bonds outstanding at June 30,2006,
were as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $4,330,000 $2,011,113 $6,341,113
2008 4,495,000 1,840,025 6,335,025
2009 4,675,000 1,650,780 6,325,780
2010 3,690,000 1,459,188 5,149,188
2011 3,875,000 1,270,063 5,145,063

2012-2016 22,540,000 3,074,150 25,614,150

Total $43,605,000 $11,305,319 $54,910,319

2003 Series A Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds

2003 Series A Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds (2003A RDA Bonds) outstanding at
June 30, 2006 amounted to $88,085,000. The 2003A RDA Bonds bear interest at rates between 2.00%
and 5.00% with interest payments made semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, The 2003A
RDA Bonds mature annually from 2004 to 2021 on August 1 in amounts ranging from $5,000 to
$8,815,000. Proceeds from the 2003A RDA Bonds were used to fund redevelopment activities of
benefit to the Agency's Los Medanos Redevelopment Project, to refund all of the Agency's
outstanding Series 1993A Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds ($36,760,000), to fund a reserve account,
to fund capitalized interest on a portion of the Series 2003A Bonds, and to pay costs of issuance
incurred in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of Series 2003A Bonds. The Bonds were
issued at a premium of $7,515,529 which is to be amortized over the life of the bond using straight-
line method with an annual amortization of $442,090, The bonds are to be repaid from certain tax
revenues and other funds as provided in certain resolutions of the Agency,
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The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2003A RDA Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006, were as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $290,000 $4,231,713 $4,521,713
2008 1,655,000 4,207,762 5,862,762
2009 1,695,000 4,165,888 5,860,888
2010 2,410,000 4,096,500 6,506,500
2011 2,515,000 3,985,425 6,500,425

2012-2016 14,605,000 17,856,625 32,461,625
2017-2021 37,125,000 11,002,875 48,127,875
2022-2026 17,120,000 4,188,963 21,308,963
2027-2031 10,670,000 1,015,075 11,685,075

Total $88,085,000 $54,750,826 $142,835,826

2004 Series A Housing Set Aside Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds

2004 Series A Housing Set Aside Tax Allocation Bonds Series (2004 A RDA bonds) outstanding at
June 30, 2006 amounted to $18,005,000. The Bonds bear interest rates from 3.750%-5.620% with
interest payments made semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 each year commencing August
1, 2005 through August 1, 2035. The Bonds were issued to fund the low and moderate income
housing within the Agency's Los Medanos Community Development Project Area, to fund a
reserve account, and to pay costs of issuance incurred in connection with issuance, sale and

delivery of the Series 2004A bonds. The bonds are to be repaid from certain tax revenues and other
funds as provided in certain resolutions of the Agency.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2004A RDA Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006, were as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $285,000 $951,696 $1,236,696
2008 295,000 940,821 1,235,821
2009 305,000 929,571 1,234,571
2010 315,000 916,923 1,231,923
2011 330,000 902,733 1,232,733

2011-2015 1,895,000 4,261,602 6,156,602
2016-2020 2,435,000 3,711,860 6,146,860
2021-2025 3,155,000 2,963,570 6,118,570
2026-2030 4,125,000 1,967,766 6,092,766
2031-2035 4,865,000 654,870 5,519,870

Total $18,005,000 $18,201,412 $36,206,412
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2004 Series B Redevelopment Agency Subordinate Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

2004 Series B Redevelopment Agency Subordinate Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (2004B RDA
Bonds) outstanding at June 30, 2006 amounted to $10,720,000. The Bonds bear interest rates from
3.810%-4.430% with interest payments made semiannually on March 1 and September 1 each year
commencing March 1, 2005 through September 1 2011. The bonds are to be paid from
Redevelopment Agency tax revenues. Proceeds from the 2004B RDA bonds were used to refund, on
an advance basis, a portion of the Agency's outstanding Series 1996 Subordinate Tax Allocation
bonds ($20,000,000), to fund a reserve account, and to pay costs of issuance incurred in connection
with issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2004B bonds.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2004B STARB Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006, were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $448,810 $448,810
2008 448,810 448,810
2009 $1,990,000 410,901 2,400,901
2010 2,065,000 330,866 2,395,866
2011 3,260,000 219,791 3,479,791

2,012 3,405,000 75,420 3,480,420

Total $10,720,000 $1,934,598 $12,654,598

2004 Series A Redevelopment Agency Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds

2004 Series A Redevelopment Agency Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006 amounted to $117,615,000. The bonds are repayable from Redevelopment Agency tax
revenues. Principal payments are due annually on September 1, commencing in 2012, Proceeds

from the 2004A Bonds were to be used to fund redevelopment activities of benefit to the Agency's
Los Medanos Redevelopment Project, to refund, on an advance basis, a portion of the Agency's
outstanding Series 1996 Subordinate Tax Allocation bonds ($20,000,000), to fund capitalized interest
on a portion of the 2004 A Bonds through September 2007, to fund a reserve account, and to pay
costs of issuance incurred in connection with issuance, sale and delivery of the 2004A Bonds. A
portion of the proceeds from the 2004A Bonds was placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all
future debt service payments on the defeased 1996 Bonds.
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The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2004A STAB Bonds outstanding at June 30,
2006, were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest

2007
2008

2009
2010
2011

2012-2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036

$4,465,007
4,465,809
4,465,007
4,465,007
4,465,007

20,962,023
16,764,562
11,847,840

6,669,501
1,580,380

$80,150,143

$16,420,000
24,175,000
26,520,000
30,960,000
19,540,000

$117,615,000Total

Series 2006 Pension Obligation Bonds

Total

$4,465,007
4,465,809
4,465,007
4,465,007
4,465,007

37,382,023
40,939,562
38,367,840
37,629,501
21,120,380

$197,765,143

On June 15, 2006, the City issued $39,566,056 of Series 2006 Taxable Pension Obligations Bonds
bearing interest at 5,78-5.91 % to prepay the City's unfunded accrued actuarial liability of the
Miscellaneous and Safety plans through the California Public Employees' Retirement System. The
City also prepaid the unfunded liability owed to Contra Costa County Employees Retirement
Association (CCCERA) which amounted to $12,700,000 as of June 30,2006. The Bonds are issued as
current interest bonds and capital interest bonds where the current interest is payable annually on
July 1, and the capital appreciation bonds wil accrete interest from the date of issuance and wil be
payable only upon maturity or redemption.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the Series 2006 Pension Obligation Bonds

outstanding at June 30, 20061 were as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $1,632,456 $1,632,456
2008 $125,000 1,614,517 1,739,517
2009 175,000 1,607,287 1,782,287
2010 240,000 1,597,165 1,837,165
2011 300,000 1,583,283 1,883,283

2012-2016 3,907,670 9,009,058 12,916,728
2017-2021 6,23,840 11,808,927 18,232,767
2022-2026 6,807,261 12,847,712 19,654,973
2027-2031 6,777,285 13,126,159 19,903,444
2032-2036 14,810,000 2,269,646 17,079,646

Total $39,566,056 $57,096,210 $96,662,266
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The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the business-type activities for the
year ended June 30, 2006:

Balance

July 1, 2005 Additions
Balance

Retirements June 30,2006

Balance
Due Within
One Year

Balance Due
in More than
One Year

Original Issue

Amount

Revenue Bonds:

1997 Water

Revenue Bonds

2004 Waste Water

Revenue Bonds

2005 Water

Revenue Bonds

$14,655,000 $13,430,000 ($13,430,000)

11,950,000 11,335,000 (520,000) $10,815,000 $530,000 $10,285,000

38,850,000 $38,850,000 (375,000) 38,475,000 450,000 38,025,000

Total revenue
bonds 65,455,000 24,765,000 38,850,000 (14,325,000) 49,290,000 980,000 48,310,000

Capital Leases 299,001 (227,436) 71,565 56,876 14,689

Total $65,455,000 $25,064,001 $38,850,000 ($14,552,436) $49,361,565 $1,036,876 $48,324,689

1997 Water Revenue Bonds

In fiscal year 2005-2006, the 1997 Water Revenue Bonds (1997 Bonds) were refunded in the amount
of $13,430,000, on an advance basis using proceeds from the City of Pittsburg Financing Authority

Series 2005 Water Revenue Bonds. Direct non-callable United States Treasury obligations were
purchased and were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future
debt service payments on the Refunded Bonds, As a result, the Refunded Bonds were considered to
be defeased and the liability for those obligations was removed along with trust assets from the
City's financial statements. Proceeds from the 1997 Bonds were issued to finance the improvement
of the water system within the City. The defeased bonds wil be called on June 1, 2007.

2004 Wastewater Revenue Bonds

2004 Wastewater Revenue Bonds (2004 Wastewater) outstanding at June 30, 2006 amounted to
$10,815,000. In March 2004 the City of Pittsburg Financing Authority issued $11,950,000 of

Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2004. The Bonds bear interest rates from 2.00%-4.25%
with interest payment made semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 2004
through June 1, 2022. The Bonds were issued to refund the $11,545,000 outstanding balance of the
1994 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds. Proceeds from the 2004 Bonds were placed in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased 1996 Bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability for the defeased 1994 Bonds are not included in
the City's basic financial statements, The defeased 1994 Bonds were called on June 1,2004.
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The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2004 Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2006, were
as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $530,000 $378,578 $908,578
2008 545,000 367,978 912,978
2009 555,000 357,078 912,078
2010 570,000 343,203 913,203
2011 590,000 328,952 918,952

2012-2016 3,230,000 1,347,904 4,577,904
2017-2021 3,910,000 688,670 4,598,670
2022-2026 885,000 37,613 922,613

Total $10,815,000 $3,849,976 $14,664,976

2005 Water Revenue Bonds

On December 21, 2005, the City issued $38,475,000 of 2005 Water Revenue Bonds. The bonds are
repayable from the net revenues of the City's Water System. Principal payments are due annually
on June 1, commencing in 2006. Proceeds from the 2005 Bonds were to be used to refund, on an
advance basis, the City of Pittsburg Public Financing Authority Series 1997 Water Revenue Bonds
($13,430,000), to fund certain repairs, renovations, extensions, betterments and improvements to the
Water System, to fund a reserve account, and to pay costs of issuance incurred in connection with
issuance, sale and delivery of the 2005 Bonds. A portion of the proceeds from the 2005 Bonds was
placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased 1997
Bonds, As a result of the refunding, aggregate debt service was increased $2,550,886 and an

economic gain of $1,377,523 was realized during fiscal year 2005/2006.
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The annual debt service requirements to mature the 2005 Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2006, were
as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $450,000 $1,390,871 $1,840,871

2008 450,000 1,374,604 1,824,604

2009 675,000 1,358,336 2,033,336

2010 825,000 1,333,935 2,158,935

2011 900,000 1,304,111 2,204,111

2012-2016 4,975,000 6,011,745 10,986,745

2017-2021 6,025,000 5,039,310 11,064,310

2022-2026 7,250,000 3,863,532 11,113,532

2027-2031 8,675,000 2,456,392 11,131,392

2032-2036 8,250,000 460,913 8,710,913

Total $38,475,000 $24,593,749 $63,068,749

Capital Lease

At June 30, 2006, the City had two golf course equipment lease purchase agreements outstanding
with John Deer Credit and Yamaha Golf-Car Company,

Interest on the outstanding principal varies from 4.000% to 5.238%; monthly payments of principal
and interest are made every month. The outstanding balance at June 30,2006 was $71,565.

The annual debt service requirements to mature the Capital Lease outstanding at June 30, 2006, were
as follows:

Year Ending 

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2007 $56,876 $2,396 $59,272
2008 14,689 129 14,818

Total $71,565 $2,525 $74,090

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The 2004 Series A Redevelopment Agency Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds and the 2005 City of
Pittsburg Water Revenue Bonds were issued as variable rate bonds, with interest calculated daily.
The rate fluctuates according to market conditions. In order to protect against the potential of rising
interest rates associated with the Bonds, the Agency and the City entered into a pay-fixed, receive-
variable interest rate swap. The terms, fair value and credit risk of the swap agreement are
disclosed below.
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Terms. The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swap, as of June 30,
2006, are included below, The Agency's and City's swap agreement contains scheduled reductions
to outstanding notional amounts that are expected to follow scheduled reductions in the associated
bonds.

Associated Bonds Series 2004A Tax Allocation Bonds Series 2005 Water Revenue Bonds

City Pays 3.5490% 3.6150%

City Receives 63% of 1-month USD-LIBOR
+0.35%

63% of USD-LIBOR
+0,30%

Maturity Date

Initial Notional

12/1/2035

$117,615,000

5/25/2035

$38,850,000

Bank Counterpart Piper Jaffay Financial Products Inc. with a Piper Jaffray Financial Products Inc.with a

Guarantee from Morgan Stanley Capital Services Guarantee from Morgan Stanley Capital Services
Credit Ratings by
Moody's/Fitch/S&P Aa3/AA-/A+

Total Value $4,503,756
Aa3/AA-/A+

$1,456,836

On December 16, 2004, the Agency elected to enter into a 63% of 1-month UBOR plus 35 basis
points (0.35 %) floating-to-fixed interest rate swap to hedge the issuance of $117,615,000 of variable-
rate Series A 2004 Bonds. The combination of variable rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap
creates synthetic fixed-rate debt for the Agency. The transaction allowed the Agency to create a
synthetic fixed rate on the Bonds, protecting the Agency against increases in short-term interest
rates.

On December 22, 2005, the City elected to enter into a 63% of 1-month UBOR plus 30 basis points
(0.30%) floating-to-fixed interest rate swap to hedge the issuance of $38,850,000 of variable-rate
Series 2005 Water Bonds. The combination of variable rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap
creates synthetic fixed-rate debt for the City. The transaction allowed the City to create a synthetic
fixed rate on the Bonds, protecting the City against increases in short-term interest rates,

Fair value, The Agency's swap had a positive fair value as of June 30, 2006 of $4,503,754, while the
City's swap had a positive fair value of $1,456,836, This fair value takes into consideration the
prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction and
any upfront payments that may have been received. The fair value was estimated using the zero-
coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap,
assuming that the current forward rates implied by the UBOR swap yield curve are the market's
best estimate of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates
implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each
future net settement on the swaps,
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Credit risk, As of June 30, 2006, the Agency was exposed to credit risk on its outstanding swap
because the swap had a positive fair value of $4,503,754, while the City exposure was in the amount
of $1,486,836. The Agency and the City are exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative's
fair value. This amount may increase if interest rates increase in the future. However, if interest
rates decline and the fair value of the swap were to become negative, the Agency and City would no
longer be exposed to credit risk. The swap counterparty is Piper Jaffray Financial Products, Inc. who
is guaranteed by Morgan Stanley Capital Services, Inc. (MSCS), the guarantor for the counterparty
is rated Aa3/ A+ / AA- by Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch respectively. The Agency and City
wil be exposed to interest rate risk only if the counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is
terminated.

The swap agreement contains a collateral agreement with MSCS which guarantees Piper Jaffray.
The swap requires collateralization of the fair value of the swap should the MSCS credit ratig fall
below the applicable thresholds.

Basis risk. Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by the Agency on underlying variable rate
bonds to bondholders temporarily differs from the variable swap rate received from the applicable
counterparty. The Agency and City bears basis risk on its swap. The Swap has basis risk since the
Agency receives a percentage of LIBOR to offset the actual variable bond rate the Agency and City
pays on its bonds. The Agency and City are exposed to basis risk should the floating rate that it
receives on a swap be less than the actual variable rate the Agency and City pay on the bonds.
Depending on the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected cost of the basis
risk may vary,

Tax risk, Tax risk is a specific type of basis risk. Tax risk is a permanent mismatch between the
interest rate paid on the Agency's and City's underlying variable-rate bonds and the rate received
on the swap caused by a reduction or elimination in the benefits of the tax exemption for municipal
bonds, e.g, a tax cut that results in an increase in the ratio of tax-exempt to taxable yields. The

Agency and City is receiving 63% of 1-month LlBOR (a taxable index) plus 35 and 30 basis points
respectively on the swap and would experience a shortfall relative to the rate paid on its bonds if
marginal income tax rates decrease relative to expected levels, thus increasing the overall cost of its
synthetic fixed rate debt.

Termination risk. The Agency, City or the counterparty may terminate any of the swaps if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the respective contracts. If any of the swaps are

terminated, the associated variable-rate bonds would no longer be hedged to a fixed rate. If at the
time of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Agency would be liable to the
counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value,
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The City has sponsored special assessment debt issues under which it has no legal or moral liabilty
with respect to repayment of the debt and therefore does not include this debt in the City's
Governmental Activities. The activity for those issues for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as
follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2005 Additions Retirements June 30, 2006

1998 Marina Walk AD, Bonds $1,640,000 ($35,000) $1,605,000
1998 Pittsburg IF A Bonds 10,895,000 (370,000) 10,525,000
2001-01 San Marco AD. Bonds 7,265,000 (120,000) 7,145,000
2001-02 Oak Hils South AD. Bonds 2,665,000 (45,000) 2,620,000
2001-03 Century Plaza Bonds 4,330,000 (75,000) 4,255,000
2005 Vista Del Mar Bonds $12,115,000 12,115,000

Total $26,795,000 12,115,000 ($645,000) $38,265,000

1998 Marina Walk Assessment District Bonds - 1998 Marina Walk Assessment District Bonds
(Marina Walk Bonds) outstanding at June 30,2006, amounted to $1,605,000 The Marina Walk Bonds
bear interest rates between 4.25% and 5.40% with interest payments made semi-annually on March
2 and September 2. The Marina Walk Bonds mature annually from 2000 to 2028 on September 2 in
amounts ranging from $30,000 to $120,000, Proceeds from the Marina Walk Bonds were used to
finance the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements specifically benefiting
properties located within the boundaries of the Marina Walk Assessment District.

1998 Pittsburg Infrastructure Financing Authority Bonds - 1998 Pittsburg Infrastructure Financing
Authority Bonds (1998 PIFA Bonds) consist of two series with principal outstanding at June 30,2006,
amounting in total to $10,525,000, The 1998 PIFA Bonds bear interest rates between 4.00% and 5.85%
with interest payments made semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The 1998 PI FA Bonds
mature annually from 1999 to 2024 on September 2 in amounts ranging from $105,000 to $435,000.

Proceeds from the 1998 PIFA Bonds were used to acquire $12,000,000 principal amount of the
Pittsburg Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds, Reassessment District No. 1998-1 which were issued
to refund the New York Landing and Oakhil Water Facilities Assessment District Bonds and the
1995 and 1994 Pittsburg Infrastruchue Financing Authority Bonds.

2001-01 San Marco Assessment District Bonds - 2001-01 Limited Obligation Improvement
Assessment District Bonds (San Marco Bonds) outstanding at June 30, 2006, amounted to $7,145,000.
The San Marco Bonds bear interest rates between 4.00% and 5.90% with interest payments made
semi-annually on March 2 and September 2, The San Marco Bonds are special obligations of the City
and are to be paid from annual assessment installments. Proceeds from the San Marco Bonds were
used to finance the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements within the
assessment district.
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2001-02 Oak Hils South Assessment District Bonds - 2001-02 Limited Obligation Improvement
Assessment District Bonds (Oak Hils South Bonds) outstanding at June 30, 2006, amounted to
$2,620,000, The Oak Hils South Bonds bear interest rates between 4,00% and 5.20% with interest
payments made semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The Oak Hils South Bonds are special
obligations of the City and are to be paid from annual assessment installments. Proceeds from the
Oak Hils South Bonds were used to finance the construction and acquisition of certain public
improvements within the City's assessment district No. 2001-02.

2001-03 Century Plaza Assessment District Bonds - 2001-03 Limited Obligation Improvement

Assessment District Bonds (Century Plaza Bonds) outstanding at June 30, 2006, amounted to
$4,255,OOO.The Century Plaza Bonds bear interest rates between 2.40% and 5.88% with interest

payments made semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The Century Plaza Bonds are special
obligations of the City and are to be paid from annual assessment installments. Proceeds from the
Century Plaza Bonds were used to finance the construction and acquisition of certain public
improvements within the City's assessment district No. 2001-03.

2005 Vista Del Mar Assessment District Bonds - In October 2005, the City of Pittsburg issued
$12,115,000 of 2005 Community Facilities District Bonds (Vista Del Mar). The Vista Del Mar Bonds
bear interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00% with interest payments made annually on September 1.
The Vista Del Mar Bonds are special obligations of the City and are to be paid from special taxes
which are levied by the City on taxable real property within the boundaries of the District. Proceeds
from the Vista Del Mar Bonds wil be used to finance certain public infrastructure improvements
within the City's Community Facilities District No. 2005-2.

81



City of Pitts burg
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2006

¡NOTE 9-FUND EQUITY

A. Fund Reserves and Designations
In the Governmental Funds, fund balances at June 30, 2006, have been reserved or designated for
the following purposes:

Low-Moderate Low-Moderate Housing Pension Capital
Income I Income ii RDA Authority RDA Obligation Improvement RDA

General Housing Housing Special (Section 8) Debt Bonds Capital Capital Non-Major
Fund Special Revenue Special Revenue Revenue Special Revenue Service Debt Service Projects Projects Funds Total

Reserved for:

Encumbrances $238,068 $17,582 $2,046,184 $2,301,834Supplies 118,251
118,251

Capital Projects $98,283,561 $690,062 98,973,623
Debt service 19,139,951 $109,219 19,249,170
Prepaid items 15,867 $61,012 5,000 81,879
Advances 8,100,000 8,100,000
Loans receiva ble 12,491,987 12,491,987

Total reserved 372,186 20,652,999 117,423,512 109,219 22,582 690,062 2,046,184 141,316,744

Designated for:

Recreation services
and others 39,135

39,135Grants 2,081,560 (38,84) 2,043,076
Roads

771,093 771,093
Capital projects

Total designated 39,135 2,081,560 771,093 (38,84) 2,853.304

Umeserved,
undesignated 8,144,672 ($8,100,000) $5,135,334 29,589,868 16,954,276 51,724,150

Total $8,555,993 ($8,100,000) $5,135,334 $50,242,867 $2,081,560 $11,423,512 $109,219 $793,675 $690,062 $18,961,976 $195,894,198

B. Deficit Fund Balance/et Assets

At June 30, 2006, the Low and Moderate Income Housing I Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund
balance of $8,100,000. The deficit wil be reduced with future years incremental tax revenues.

At June 30, 2006, the San Marco CFD 2004-01 Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance of
$81,350. The deficit wil be reduced with future years assessment revenues.

At June 30, 2006, the Public Safety Service CFD 2005-1 Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund
balance of $71,217. The deficit wil be reduced with future years assessment revenues.

At June 30, 2006, the Vista Del Mar CFD 2005-2 Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance of
$1,416, The deficit wil be reduced with future years assessment revenues.
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A. General Liability Insurance

The City is self-insured for the first $25,000 of each loss and maintains excess liability insurance
through Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA). The City is not insured for liability occurrences over
$15,000,000 per occurrence.

B. Workers' Compensation

The City maintains statutory excess workers' compensation insurance through MP A, and is insured
for an individual accident resulting in claims up to statutory limits. The City is not self-insured for
any initial portion of a claim but is self-insured for claims exceeding statutory limits.

C. Estimated Reserves for Claims

Municipalities are required to record their liability for uninsured claims and to reflect the current
portion of this liabilty as an expenditure in their financial statements. As discussed below, the City
has coverage for such claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible, or uninsured portion of
these claims.

The City's liability for uninsured claims, based on claims history, was computed as follows and is
recorded in the Insurance Internal Service Fund:

2003-2004
2004-2005
2005-2006

Begiing of
Year Liability

$222,894
215,573
234,038

Current Year

Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$136,726
26,751

119,161

D. Purchased Insurance

Claims
payments for
Current and
Prior Years

($144,047)
(8,286)

(160,356)

End of Year
Liability

$215,573
234,038
192,843

MP A provides additional coverage for the following risks incurred by the City:

Coverage Type

All Risk Fire and Property
Boiler and Machinery
All Vehicles (Physical Damage)
Police Vehicles (Physical Damage)
Workers' Compensation
Liability
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Deductible

$5,000
5,000
2,000
3,000
None

25,000

Coverage Limits

$1,000,000,000
100,000,000

250,000
250,000

145,000,000
15,000,000



City of Pittsburg
Basic Financial Staternents

For the ended 2006

¡NOTE IO-RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MP A is governed by a Board consisting of representatives from member municipalities.

The Board controls the operations of MP A, including selection of management and approval of
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their
representation on the Board.

The City's deposits with MP A are in accordance with formulas established by MP A. Actual
surpluses or losses are shared according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread
to member entities on a percentage basis after a retrospective rating.

Audited financial statements can be obtained from Municipal Pooling Authority at 1911 San Miguel

Drive #200, Walnut Creek, CA 94596-5332.

E. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal (claims) years none of the above programs of protection have had
settlements or judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There has been no significant
reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from coverage in the prior year.

I NOTE ll-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

A. CALPERS Safety and Miscellaneous Plans

All employees meetig PERS membership requirements must participate in pension plans offered by
California Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS), an agent multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its
participatig member employers. CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost
of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. The City's employees participate in the separate Safety (police) and Miscellaneous (all
other) Employee Plans. Benefit provisions under both Plans are established by State statute and City
resolution. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.
Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by
CALPERS; the City must conh'ibute these amounts, The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at
June 30,2006, are summarized as follows:

Benefit Vesting Schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age

Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Safety
5 Years Service
monthly for life

50
3%
9%

30.283%

Miscellaneous
5 Years Service
monthly for life

50
1.426%-2.418

7%
21.377%
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CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entr Age Normal
Method. Under this method, the City's total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of hire
to date of retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal
benefit cost under this Method is the level amount the employer must pay anually to fund an
employee's projected retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution

requirements are also used to compute the actuarial accrued liability. The City uses the actuarially
determined percentages of payroll to calculate and pay contributions to CALPERS. This results in no
net pension obligations or unpaid contributions. Annual Pension Costs, representig the payment of
all contributions required by CALPERS, for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 amounted
to $6,091,721, $5,454,618 and $5,299,322 respectively.

On June 15, 2006, the City, issued $39,566,056 of Series 2006 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to
prepay the City's unfunded PERS accrued actuarial liability of $25,977,758 as determined in certiied
actuarial calculations as of June 2004 ,

CALPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan's assets. An investment rate of
return of 7,75% is assumed, including ination at 3.0%. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary
by duration of service. Changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in actuarial

assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a
closed basis over twenty years. Investment gains and losses are accumulated as they are realized and
amortized over a rolling thirty year period.

The Miscellaneous Plan's actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress
over the past three years is set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 30:

Miscellaneous Plan:
Actuarial

Valuation
Date
2003
2004
2005

Entry
Age

Accrued
Liabilty
$21,498,661

25,438,868
30,020,944

Value
of

Assets
$6,931,747
10,224,167
13,819,588

Unfunded
Liabilty
$14,566,914

15,214,701
16,201,356

Funded
Ratio

32.2%
40.2%
46.0%

Annual
Covered
Payroll

$11,669,279
12,036,230
12,070,970

Unfunded
Liability as %

of Payroll
124.8%
126.4%
134.2%

As required by new State law, effective July 1, 2005, the City's Safety Plan was terminated, and the
employees in the plan were required by CALPERS to join a new State-wide pooL. One of the
conditions of entry was that the City true-up any unfunded liabilities or overfunded assets in the
former Plan, either by paying cash or by increasing or decreasing its future contribution rates
through a Side Fund offered by CALPERS. The City satisfied its Safety Plan's unfunded liability of
$11,341,333 agreeing to contribute that amount to the Side Fund through an addition to its normal

contribution rates over the next twenty years,
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CALPERS' latest available actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress
are set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 30,2005.

Safety Plan:

Actuarial

Valuation
Date
2003
2004
2005

Entry
Age

Accrued
Liabilty

$4,270,573,982
5,383,921,842
6,367,049,264

Value
of

Assets
$3,577,742,166
4,424,586,846
5,295,150,375

Unfunded
Liabilty

$692,831,816
959,334,996

1,071,898,889

Funded
Ratio
83.8%
82.2%
83.2%

Annual
Covered
Payroll

$476,089,674
575,294,434
664,147,796

Unfunded
Liabilty as %

of Payroll
145,5%
166.8%
161.4%

Audited annual financial statements and ten year trend inormation are available from CALPERS at
P.O, Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.

I 
NOTE 12-0THER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City provided health care benefits for 96 retired employees on a pay-as-you-go basis with the
City paying a portion of the costs. All active health care plan participants and their spouses may
become eligible upon retirement for these benefits if they reach the normal retirement age while
working for the City. The City's post-employment expenditures for the fiscal year 2006 amounted to
$508,630 including $133,169 for 24 retirees not on a pay-as-you-go basis.

I NOTE 13-COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Grants from Other Governments

The City participates in a number of Federal, State, and County programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are
subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to
noncompliance with grantor program regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor
government. As of June 30, 2006, some amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited, but
the City believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent audits wil not have a
material effect on any individual governmental funds or the overall financial condition of the City.

B. Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits which have arisen in the normal course of business,
While substantial damages are alleged in some of these actions, their outcome cannot be predicted
with certainty.
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C. Pass- Through Agreements

The Agency has agreements with the County of Contra Costa, College District, Education Office,
Fire District, Flood Control District, County Library District, East Bay Regional Parks District,
Mosquito Abatement District, Antioch Unified School District and Pittsburg Unified School District
which requires it to pass through a portion of its property tax increment to these agencies. The
Community Redevelopment Law Reform Act of 1993, also known as AB 1290, require the Agency to
also pass through tax increments to other taxing agencies not engaged in agreements with the
Agency. The tax increment passed through to all agencies amounted to $6,275,827 for fiscal year
2005-2006,

D. Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF)

The State of California has directed that a portion of the incremental property taxes which had been
received in prior years by redevelopment agencies be paid instead to local educational agencies.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, the Agency paid $2,886,953 as a result of the State
directive.

E. Transaction Between Related Parties

During fiscal 2005-2006, the City and Redevelopment Agency of Pittsburg entered into an
agreement whereby the Agency purchased a parcel of land along Power Avenue from the City for
$2,100,000. The Agency intends to develop a five story office building associated with this land.
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund
For the year ended June 30,2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
$103,996 $288,381 $153,382 ($134,999)Other revenues

43,326 43,326
Total revenues 103,996 288,381 196,708 (91,673)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Public works-streets
788,949 428,892 360,057

Public works-others
791,527 205,471 586,056

Total expenditures
1,580,476 634,363 946,113

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
1,025,703 429,379 (596,324)

Total other financing sources (uses)
1,025,703 429,379 (596,324)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 103,996 (266,392) (8,276) $258,116

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year
801,951

End of year
$793,675
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Community development and services
Capital outlay

$6,130,958

41,648,195

47,779,153Total expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($47,779,153)

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

91

14,630,958

123,679,302

138,310,260

115,026,198

115,026,198

($23,284,062)

Actual

Amounts

$22,205

13,600

35,805

961,499

20,243,468

21,204,967

18,660,60

18,660,640

(2,508,522)

3,198,584

$690,062

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

$22,205

13,600

35,805

13,669,459

103,435,834

117,105,293

(96,365,558)

(96,365,558)

20,775,540
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City of Pittsburg
Supplemental Information
For the ended 30,2006

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Economic Development Fund - Established to account for the $6,000,000 of proceeds from the sale of a
power plant to Calpine that was set-aside to be used for economic activities in the City of Pittsburg.

Budget Stabilization FU11d- Established for the purpose of financing future contigencies and/ or

General Fund shortfall.

Small Cities Grants Fund - Established to account for direct grants received for housing and rental
rehabilitation programs, which are program income and used to supplement housing rehabilitation
costs.

Gas Tax Fund - This fund represents the Highway Users Tax apportionments from State of California
for street and road purposes under the provisions of Streets and Highways Code Maintenance.

Measure C Tax Fund - This fund receives 18% of the collected half-cent sales tax, which are based on
the population and road mileage; to fund regional transportation and transit related projects.

Lighting and Landscape Fund - Receipts of the assessments from residential and commercial
properties are used by this fund to provide maintenance of street lighting, street trees, landscape,
curbs, gutters and sidewalks within the City.

Lighting and Landscape Oak Hil Fund - Receipts of the special assessments from residential and
commercial properties, in the Oak Hil area, are used by this fund to provide maintenance of street
lighting, street trees, landscape, curbs, gutters and sidewalks.

San Marco CFD 2004-01 Fund- The receipts of this fund provide funding for the increased demand of
police services in the San Marco subdivision of the Community Facilities District.

Vista Del Mar CFD 2005-2 Fund- The receipts of this fund provide funding for financing increasing
demands for police services in and for the Vista Del Mar CFD 2005-2.

Public Safety Service CFD 2005-1 Fund- The receipts of this fund provide funding for financing
increasing demands for public safety services within this Community Facilities District.

Assets Seizure Fund - This fund was established to administer the seized assets from criminal
activities.

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund - This fund accounts for the funds provided by
Department of Justice to supplement local crime prevention and public safety efforts.

Southwest Pittsburg (GHAD II) Fund - Southwest Pittsburg Geological Hazard Abatement fund was
created to account for the maintenance district of which responsibilities are restricted to
mitigation/ abatement of geologic landslide and erosion hazards, The fund received revenues from
assessments levied on the properties located on the hilside areas for its operation costs.
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City of Pittsburg
Supplemental Information
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Non-Major Governmental Funds (Continued)

Storm Water Utility (NPDES) Fund - This fund accounts for property assessments collected by the
County of Contra Costa in behalf of the City to provide funding for National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) and general drainage maintenance activities within the Pittsburg Storm
Water Utility Area to reduce pollutants.

HUD Community Development Block Grant Fund - Receives annual entitlement from Department of
HUD to finance public services, housing activities, economic development projects, public facility
projects, program planning and administration,

Miscellaneous Grants Fund - This fund receives various small grants to administer the police,
recreation, and public services.

Kirker Creek Drainage Fees Fund - This fund was established to account for the drainage fees
collected from developers to finance drainage improvement projects.

Traffic Mitigation Fund - Fees collected from developers are used by this fund to finance the capital
improvement projects that mitigate the traffic impact.

Park Dedication Fund - This fund was established to account for the fees collected from developers
and used for design, development, and construction of the park projects.
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City of Pittsburg

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2006

Special Revenue

Lighting &

Economic Budget Small Cítes Gas MeasureC Lighting & Landscape

Development Stabí1zation Grants Tax Tax Fund Landscape Oak Hí1

ASSETS

Cash and investments $3,498,989 $2,664,649 $666,294 $151,454 $1,21,558 $158,507 $128,955

Restrícted cash and investments

Receivables:

Accounts 179,715 10 .

Loans/notes 1,854,639

Prepaid items

Total assets $3,498,989 $2,664,69 $2,520,933 $331,169 $1,121,558 $158,517 $128,955

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilties:
Accounts payable $295,614 $43,532 $4,100 $101,385 $1,257

Salaries payable 4,652 48,570 3,791

Refundable deposits
Loans payable - current 60,120

Due to other agencies
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue 1,794,519

Totalliabí1ties 295,614 1,902,823 4,100 149,955 5,048

Fund Balances:
Reserved
Unreserved, designated

Specíal revenue funds

Unreserved, reported in non-major funds:
Special revenue funds 3,203,375 $2,664,649 618,110 $331,169 1,117,458 8,562 123,907

Capital projects

Total unreserved, designated 3,203,375 2,664,649 618,110 331,69 1,117,458 8,562 123,907

Total fund balances (deficit) 3,203,375 2,664,649 618,110 331,169 1,117,458 8,562 123,907

Total liabí1ties and fund balances $3,498,989 $2,664,649 $2,520,933 $331,169 $1,121,558 $158,517 $128,955
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HUD
Public Safety Local Law Southwest Storm Water Community

San Marco Vista Del Mar Service Assets Enforcement Pittsburg Utility Development Miscellaneous
CFD 2004-01 CFD 2005-2 CFO 2005-1 Seizure Block Grant (GHAO II) (NPOES) Block Grant Grants

$18,753 $27,371 $167,817 $93,540 $603,012 $276,149 $3,881 $230,336

14,931 620,883

282,689

3,350

$18,753 $27,371 $167,817 $93,540 $603,012 $291,080 $910,803 $230,336

$888 $613 $3,588 $3,652 $11,057 $14,756 $7,686 $46,146 $23,831

10,963 3,881

22,746 11,400

12,281

99,215 803 95,000 161,229

70,153 680,390

100,103 1416 98,588 26,398 81,210 14,756 18,649 891,646 223,134

5,427

(11,162) 7,202

(81,350) (1,416) (71,217) 141,419 18,065 588,256 272,431 19,157

(81,350) (1,416) (71,217) 141,419 18,065 588,256 272,431 19,157

(81,350) (1,416) (71,217) 141,419 12,330 588,256 272,431 19,157 7,202

$18,753 $27,371 $167,817 $93,540 $603,012 $291,080 $910,803 $230,336

(Continued)
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City of Pittsburg

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2006

Capital Projects

Non-Major
Kirker Creek Traffic Park Governmental
Drainage Fees Mitigation Dedication Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments $980,571 $5,522,310 $2,402,360 $18,716,506
Restricted cash and investments 27,486 27,486
Receivables:

Accounts 1,167,487 1,983,026
Loans/notes 2,137,328

Prepaid items 3,350
Total assets $980,571 $5,549,796 $3,569,847 $22,867,696

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilties:
Accounts payable $88,280 $4,000 $650,385
Salaries payable 71,857
Refundable deposits 34,146
Loans payable - current 60,120
Due to other agencies 12,281
Due to other funds 356,247
Deferred revenue 2,720,684

Total liabilities 88,280 4000 3,905,720

Fund Balances:

Reserved 5,427
Unreserved, designated

Special revenue funds (3,960)
Unreserved, reported in non-major funds:

Special revenue funds 8,952,575
Capital projects $980,571 5,461,516 3,565,847 10,007,934

Total unreserved, designated 980,571 5,461,516 3,565,847 18,960,509

Total fund balances (deficit) 980,571 5,461,516 3,565,847 18,961,976

Total liabilties and fund balances $980,571 $5,549,796 $3,569,847 $22,867,696
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Special Revenue

Lighting &
Economic Budget Small Cities Gas Measure C Lighting & Landscape

Development Stabilization Grants Tax Tax Fund Landscape Oak Hil 
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental revenues
$1,428,171 $685,079

Licenses, permi ts, and fees
Special assessments

$2,040,247 $33,959
Use of money and property $103,253 13,500 38,053 287 4,686
Other revenues 430,641

Total revenues 533,894 1,441,671 723,132 2,040,534 38,645

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government 26,248 66,981
Communty services 681,402
Public safety
Public works - parks
Public works - streets

313,948 3,278,176 39,122
General non-departmental $485,520
Capital outlay and improvements

Total expenditures 485,520 681,402 340,196 3,345,157 39,122

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (485,520) (147,508) 1,441,671 382,936 (1,304,623) (477)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Capital contributions
Transfers in 400,000 $1,435,000 100,000 1,270,000
Transfers out

(1,300,000) (764,561)
Total other financing sources (uses) 400,000 1,35,000 100,000 (1,300,000) (764,561) 1,270,000

Net change in fund balances (85,520) 1,435,000 (47,508) 141,671 (381,625) (34,623) (477)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):

Beginning of year 3,288,895 1,229,649 665,618 189,498 1,499,083 43,185 124,384
End of year $3,203,375 $2,664,649 $618,110 $331,169 $1,117,458 $8,562 $123,907
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Special Revenue
HUD

Public Safety Local Law Southwest Storm Water Communty
San Marco Vista Del Mar Service Assets Enforcement Pittsburg Utility Development Miscellaneous

CFD 2004-01 CFD 2005-2 CFD 2005-1 Seizure Block Grant GHADll Block Grant Grants

$96,643 $962,702 $160,340

$16,039 $222,539 $794,823
565 $1,685 $1,335 $5,393 3,602 19,012 4,368 9,031

11,487 6,047 36,564

16,604 1,685 1,335 16,880 100,245 241,551 805,238 962,702 205,935

25,141 1,244 187,207
26,750 80,331 405,769 7,963

6,862 3,101 62,045 72,309 31,204 179,964

525,285

159,409

13,884

6,862 3,101 62,045 25,141 99,059 81,575 715,898 592,976 201,811

9,742 (1,416) (60,710) (8,261) 1,186 159,976 89,340 369,726 4,124

(25,000) (82,198) (369,859)

(25,000) (82,198) (369,859)

9,742 (1,16) (60,710) (8,261) 1,186 134,976 7,142 (133) 4,124

(91,092) (10,507) 149,680 11,144 453,280 265,289 19,290 3,078

($81,350) ($1,416) ($71,217) $141,419 $12,330 $588,256 $272,431 $19,157 $7,202

(Continued)

101



City of Pittsburg
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

REVENUES:

Ca pital Projects

Total
Kirker Creek Non-Major

Drainage Traffic Park Goverruental
Fees Mitigation Dedication Funds

$3,332,935
$14,906 $266,191 $696,919 978,016

3,107,607
34,633 183,112 98,203 520,718

235 484,974

49,539 449,538 795,122 8,424,250

Intergovernmental revenues
Licenses, perrrts, and fees

Special assessments
Use of money and property
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Community services
Public safety
Public works - parks
Public works - streets

General non-departmental
Capital outlay and improvements

Total expenditures

306,821

1,202,215

355,485
94,109 94,109

269,789 4,426,320

644,929
146,056 159,940

269,789 240,165 7,189,819

49,539 179,749 554,957 1,234,431

916,578 2,291,666 3,208,244

44,360 3,249,360

(150,662) (1,114,955) (3,807,235)
810,276 1,176,711 2,650,369

49,539 990,025 1,731,668 3,884,800

931,032 4,471,491 1,834,179 15,077,176

$980,571 $5,461,516 $3,565,847 $18,961,976

(Concluded)

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):

Beginnig of year

End of year
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Economic Development - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amounts

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General non-departmental $750,000 $750,000 $485,520 $264,480

Total expenditures 750,000 750,000 485,520 264,480

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (750,000) (750,000) (485,520) 264,480

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in 400,000 400,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 400,000 400,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($750,000) ($350,000) (85,520) $264,480

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 3,288,895

End of year $3,203,375
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Budget Stabilzation - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amounts

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in

Transfers ou t

Total other financing sources (uses)

($410,295)

(410,295)

$1,435,000

(410,295)

1,024,705

$1,35,000

410,295

410,2951,435,000

Net change in fund balances
($410,295) $1,024,705 1,435,000 $410,295

FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year
1,229,649

$2,664,649
End of year
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City of Pitts burg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Small Cities Grants - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $111,000 $111,000 $103,253 ($7,747)

Other revenues 500,000 500,000 430,641 (69,359)

Total revenues 611,000 611,000 533,894 (77,106)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Community services 682,588 807,588 681,402 126,186

Total expenditues 682,588 807,588 681,402 126,186

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (71,588) (196,588) (147,508) 49,080

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in 100,000 100,000 100,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 100000 100,000 100,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($71588) (96,588) (47,508) $49,080

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 665,618

End of year $618,110
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City of Pitts burg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$1,145,200 $1,145,200 $1,428,171 $282,971

4,000 4,000 13,500 9,500

1,149,200 1,49,200 1,441,671 292,471

1,149,200 1,149,200 1,441,671 292,471

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental

Use of money and property

Total revenues

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

(1,300,000)

(1,300,000)

(1,300,000)

(1,300,000)

(1,300,000)

(1,300,000)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($150,800) ($150,800) 141,671 $292,471

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 189,498

End of year $331,169
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Measure C Tax Fund - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $5,000 $5,000 $38,053 $33,053

Intergovernmental 635,000 635,000 685,079 50,079

Total revenues 640,000 640,000 723,132 83,132

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government 22500 22,500 26,248 (3,748)
Public works 317,669 313,948 3,721

Total expenditures 22,500 340,169 340,196 (27)

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 617,500 299,831 382,936 83,105

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out (250,000) (1,86,359) (764,561) 421,798

Total other financing sources (uses) (250,000) (1,86,359) (764,561) 421,798

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $367,500 ($886,528) (381,625) $504,903

FUND BALANCE:

Begimüng of year 1,99,083

End of year $1,117,458
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Lighting & Landscape - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:

Special assessments $2,050,000 $2,050,000 $2,040,534 ($9,466)

Total revenues 2,050,000 2,050,000 2,040,534 (9,466)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government 61,200 61,200 66,981 (5,781)
Public works 3,258,859 3,327,605 3,278,176 49,429

Total expenditures 3,320,059 3,388,805 3,345,157 43,648

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,270,059) (1,338,805) (1,304,623) 34,182

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 1,270,000 1,270,000 1,270,000

Tolal other financing sources (uses) 1,270,000 1,270,000 1,270,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
($59) ($68,805) (34,623) $34,182

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 43,185

End of year
$8,562
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Lighting & Landscape (Oak Hil Assessment District) - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30,2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amount

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

Special assessments

Use of money and property

Total revenues

$33,960

2,000

35,960

$33,960

2,000

35,960

$33,959

4,686

38,645

($1)

2,686

2,685

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government

Public works

Total expenditures

41,864

41,864

41,864 39,122 2,742

41,864 39,122 2,742

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,904) (5,904) (477) 5,427

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($5,904) ($5,904) (477) $5,427

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

124,384

$123,907

109



City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
San Marco CFD 2004-01 - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amount

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

Sales and other taxes

Use of money and property
$17,063 $17,063 $16,039

565

($1,024)

565

Total revenues 17,063 17,063 16,604 (459)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Pu blic safeiy

Total expenditures

7,000

7,000

15,123

15,123

6,862

6,862

8,261

8,261

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 10,063 1,940 9,742 (8,720)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $10,063 $1,940 9,742 $7,802

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

(91,092)

($81,350)
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Public Safety Services CFD 2005-1-Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amount

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $1,335 $1,335

Total revenues 1,335 1,335

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Public safety $84,93 62,045

Total expenditures 84,93 62,045

22,448

22,48

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (84,493) (60,710) 23,783

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($84,493) (60,710) $23,783

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year (10,507)

($71,217)End of year
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Asset Seizure - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

REVENUES:

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Use of money and property

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

112

$149,681

149,681

(149,681)

($149,681)

Actual

Amount

$5,393

11,487

16,880

25,141

25,141

(8,261)

(8,261)

149,680

$141,19

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

$5,393

11,487

16,880

124,540

124,540

141,420

$141,420



City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amount

Variance with

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

173,542

$3,602

96,643

100,245

$3,602

(76,899)

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental $173,542

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Community services

Public Safety

102,285 26,750 75,535

83,131 72309 10,822

185,416 99,059 86,357

(11,874) 1,186 13,060

(11,874) 1,186 $13,060

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

11,144

$12,330
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Southwest Pittsburg GHAD II - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:

Special assessment $220,000 $220,000 $222,539 $2,539
Use of money and property 3,000 3,000 19,012 16,012

Total revenues 223,000 223,000 241,551 18,551

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government 1,50 1,150 1,244 (94)
Community services 170,800 170,800 80,331 90,469

Total expenditures 171,950 171950 81,575 90,375

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 51,050 51,050 159,976 108,926

OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers (out)
(25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

Total other financing (uses)
(25,000) (25,000) (25,000)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $26,050 $26,050 134,976 $108,926

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year
453,280

End of year 
$588,256
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City of Pitts burg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Storm Water Utilty (NPDES) - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)

REVENUES:

Special assessments $780,000 $780,000 $794,823 $14,823

Use of money and property 4,368

Other revenue 6,047 6,047

Total revenues 780,000 780,000 805,238 20,870

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Public Safety 32,982 32,982 31,204 1,778

Public works 681,891 648,909 525,285 123,624

General non-departmental 193,910 193,910 159,409 34,501

Total expenditures 908,783 875,801 715,898 159,903

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (128,783) (95,801) 89,340 185,141

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers out (82,198) (82,198) (82,198)

Total other financing sources (uses) (82,198) (82,198) (82,198)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (210,981) ($177,999) 7,142 $185,141

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 265,289

End of year $272,431
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
HUD Community Development Block Grant - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental $741,240 $1,110,531 $962,702 ($147,829)

Total revenues 741,240 1,110,531 962,702 (147,829)

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General government 187,075 187,075 187,207 (132)
Community services 552,427 552,427 405,769 146,658

Total expenditures 739,502 739,502 592,976 146,526

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,738 371,029 369,726 (1,303)

OTHER FINANCING (USES):

Transfers (out) (369,859) (369,859)

Total other financing (uses) (369,859) (369,859)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $1,738 $1,170 (133) ($1,303)

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 19,290

End of year $19,157
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Miscellaneous Grants - Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30,2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amount

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES:

Use of money and property

Intergovernmental

Other revenues
$312,872

57,107

369,979

$9,031

160,340

36,564

205,935

$9,031

(152,532)

(20,543)

(164,044)Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Community services

Public Safety

Capital outlay and improvements

Total expenditures

24,274 7,963 16,311

326,460 179,964 146,496

25,000 13,884 11,116

375,734 201,811 173,923

(5,755) 4,124 9,879

($5,755) 4,124 $9,879

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year

End of year

3,078

$7,202
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Traffic Mitigation - Capital Projects Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES;

Use of money and property $28,000 $28,000 $183,112 $155,112
Licenses, permits, and fees 800,000 800,000 266,191 (533,809)
Other revenues 235 235

Total revenues 828,000 828,000 449,538 (378,62)

EXPENDITRES;

Current:

Public works 368,707 269,789 98,918
Capital outlay 4,199,399 4,199,399

Total expenditures 4,568,106 269,789 4,298,317

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 828,000 (3,740,106) 179,749 3,919,855

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Capital contributions 916,578 916,578
Transfers in 3,305,106 44,360 (3,260,746)
Transfers out

(50,000) (759,468) (150,662) 608,806

Total other financing sources (uses)
(50,000) 2,545,638 810,276 (1,735,362)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $778,000 ($1,194,468) 990,025 $2,184,493

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year
4,71491

End of year 
$5,461,516
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City of Pittsburg
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Park Dedication - Capital Projects Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amount (Negative)

REVENUES:

Use of money and property $15,000 $15,000 $98,203 $83,203

Licenses, permits, and fees 1,300,000 1,300,000 696,919 (603,081)

Total revenues 1,315,000 1,315,000 795,122 (519,878)

EXPENDITURES:

Public works 165,000 94,109 70,891

Capital outlay 184,000 146,056 37,944

Total expenditures 349,000 240,165 108,835

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,315,000 966,000 554,957 (41,043)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Capital Contributions 2,291,666 2,291,666

Transfers in

Transfers ou t (75,000) (5,177,609) (1,114,955) 4,062,654

Total other financing sources (uses) (75,000) (5,177,609) 1,176,711 6,354,320

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $1,240,000 (4,211,609) 1,731,668 $5,943,277

FUND BALANCE:

Beginning of year 1,834,179

End of year $3,565,847
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City of Pittsburg
Supplemental Information
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Non-Major Enterprise Funds

The proprietary funds account for activities that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. The City Council has determined that the costs of providing the
following services to the public be recovered primarily through user charges.

Golf Course Fund - This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures associated
with providing golfing facilities and services to our community.

Island Energy Fund - This fund was established to account for expenditures incurred in
maintenance of the facilities, in distributing gas and electricity to the industries, schools, business,
and residents of Mare Island, in Vallejo, and to account for revenues collected from services to
customers.

Pittsburg Power Fund - This fund was created by the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of
Pittsburg and the Redevelopment Agency to develop revenue streams, to manage different
activities for power-related projects, capital improvement projects, and bond issuance process.
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2006

Total

Non-Major

Golf Island Pittsburg Enterprise
Course Energy Power Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments $144,817 $1,739,961 $3,261,802 $5,146,580
Restricted cash and investments 99,766 99,766
Receivables:

Accounts 56,787 277,511 443,286 777,584

Inventory 100,582 100,582

Prepaid items and other assets 5,477 5,477

Total current assets 307,663 2,117,238 3,705,088 6,129,989
Noncurrent assets:

Advance to other funds 1,625,000 1,625,000
Capital assets:

Depreciable assets, net 1,327,981 6,491,649 7,819,630

Total noncurrent assets 1,327,981 6,491,649 1,625,000 9,444,630

Total assets 1,635,644 8,608,887 5,330,088 15,574,619

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 39,085 248,559 216,909 504,553
Salaries payable 21,661 3,580 4,391 29,632
Refundable deposits 43 40,818 40,861
Taxes payable 10,511 6,107 16,618
Deferred revenue 23,307 132,539 155,846
Compensated absences payable - due within one year 3,911 435 434 4,780
Long-term debt - due within one year 56,876 56,876

Total current liabilities 155,394 432,038 221,734 809,166
Noncurrent liabilities:

Advance from other funds 375,000 1,250,000 1,625,000
Compensated absences payable - due in more than one year 34,641 1,978 3,516 40,135
Long-term debt - due in more than one year 14,689 14,689

Total noncurrent liabilities 424,330 1,251,978 3,516 1,679,824

Total liabilties 579,724 1,684,016 225,250 2,488,990

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 881,416 6,91,649 7,373,065
Unrestricted 174,504 433,22 5,104,838 5,712,564

Total net assets $1,055,920 $6,924,871 $5,104,838 $13,085,629
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2006

Total

Non-Major

Golf Island Pittsburg Enterprise

Course Energy Power Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services $834,716 $2,878,712 $1,040,012 $4,753,40
Rent and concessions 394,774 394,774

Pro-shop sales 71,528 71,528

Other operating revenues 41,372 381,246 60,032 482,650

Total operating revenues 1,342,390 3,259,958 1,100,044 5,702,392

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages 563,957 96,937 70,424 731,318

Department supplies 266,725 872,096 301,89 1,440,310

Rentals 1,280 356 1,636

Utilities 44,785 7,068 51,853

Maintenance and operations 318,051 1,817,237 1,159,342 3,294,630

Depreciation and amortization 212,692 348,895 561,587

Fringe benefits 295,258 48,012 41,894 385,164

Total operating expenses 1,702,748 3,190,601 1,573,149 6,466,498

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (360,358) 69,357 (473,105) (764,106)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment eamings 5,221 42,117 86,027 133,365

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 5,221 42,117 86,027 133,365

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS (355,137) 111,474 (387,078) (630,741)

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Transfers in 310,000 1,702,541 2,012,541

Transfers (out) (88,362) (96,670) (185,032)

Total contributions and transfers 310,000 (88,362) 1,605,871 1,827,509

Net income (loss) (45,137) 23,112 1,218,793 1,196,768

NET ASSETS;

Beginning of year 1,101,057 6,901,759 3,886,045 11,888,861

End of year $1,055,920 $6,924,871 $5,104,838 $13,085,629
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Total
Non-Major

Golf Island Pittsburg Enterprise
Course Energy Power Funds

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers $1,293,272 $3,326,211 $876,157 $5,495,640
Cash payments to suppliers of goods and services

(620,277) (2,624,435) (1,347,880) (4,592,592)Cash payments to employees for services
(908,989) (150,589) (109,472) (1,69,050)Other opera ting revenue 41,372 381,246 60,032 482,650

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
(194,622) 932,433 (521,163) 216,648

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interfund payments
100,000 (100,000)Transfers in 310,000 1,702,541 2,012,541

Transfers (out)
(88,362) (96,670) (185,032)

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 310,000 11,638 1,505,871 1,827,509

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on long-term debt

(227,436) (124,770) (352,206)Net changes in capital assets 90,371 (113,545) (23,174)Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
(137,065) (238,315) (375,380)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest on investments 5,221 42,117 86,027 133,365
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 5,221 42,117 86,027 133,365

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash investments
(16,66) 747,873 1,070,735 1,802,142

CASH AND INVESTMENTS:

Begiing of year 161,283 1,091,854 2,191,067 3,444,204
End of year

$144,817 $1,839,727 $3,261.802 $5,246,346

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
($360,358) $69,357 ($473,105) ($764,106)Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Deprecia lion 212,692 348,895 561,587
Changes in operating assets and liabilties:

Accounts receivable
(8,283) 341,189 (163,855) 169,051

Prepaid items
(3,812) 3,029 (783)Accounts payable 10,287 75,476 112,951 198,714

Salaries and wages payable
(3,324) (129) 2,875 (578)Refundable deposits

3,600 3,600
Taxes payable 277 (6,754) (6,477)Deferred revenue 4,349 103,281 107,630
Compensated absences

(46,450) (5,511) (29) (51,990)
Total adjustments 165,736 863,076 (48,058) 980,754
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

($194,622) $932,433 ($521,163) $216,68
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City of Pitts burg
Supplemental Information
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government
units, on a reimbursement basis. There are five funds as follows:

Fleet Maintenance Fund - Used to account for the costs of operating, maintaining, and replacing
automotive equipment used by other departments. Rental rates charged to the using departments
include operating costs and equipment depreciation,

Building Maintenance Fund - Used to account for the cost of maintaining all City governmental
buildings,

Insurance Fund - Used to account for revenues from charges to operatig departments sufficient to
provide adequate reserve for future claims.

Information Systems Fund - Used to account for the cost of operating, maintaining and replacing a
data processing system. Rental rates charged to the using departments include operating cost and
equipment depreciation.

Fringe Benefits Fund - Used to allocate fringe costs to various departments.
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2006

Fleet Building Information Fringe
Maintenance Maintenance Insurance Systems Benefits Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments $1,155,271 $623,637 $665,397 $452,650 $1,713,032 $4,609,987
Receivables:

Accounts 27 24,837 4,498 29,362
Loans/Notes 25,058 25,058
Inventory 41,552 62,670 104,222
Prepaid items 892 48,275 49,167

Total current assets 1,196,850 686,307 691,126 477,708 1,765,805 4,817,796

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Depreciable assets, net 2,158,918 1,364,09 61,890 3,585,217

Total noncurrent assets 2,158,918 1,364,409 61,890 3,585,217

Total assets 3,355,768 2,050,716 691,126 539,598 1,765,805 8,03,013

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 171,21 56,167 4,729 33,831 57,874 324,022
Salaries payable 7,933 9,972 3,329 21,234
Claims payable 192,843 192,843

Total current liabilities 179,354 66,139 197,572 37,160 57,874 538,099

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 10,009 13,660 7,255 30,924

Total noncurrent liabilities 10,009 13660 7,255 30,924

Total liabilties 189,363 79,799 197,572 44,415 57,874 569,023

NET ASSETS

Restricted for specific purposes 2,200,470 1,427,079 892 86,948 48,275 3,763,664
Unrestricted 965,935 543,838 492,662 408,235 1,659,656 4,070,326

Total net assets $3,166,05 $1,970,917 $493,554 $495,183 $1,707,931 $7,833,990
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Fleet Building Information Fringe

Maintenance Maintenance Insurance Systems Benefits Total

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services $1,576,827 $1,383,984 $958,671 $799,891 $218 $4,719,591

Other operating revenues 595 6,370 1,893,105 1,900,070

Total operating revenues 1,577,422 1,390,354 958,671 799,891 1,893,323 6,619,661

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages 194,183 259,110 83,211 185,342 721,846

Department supplies 538,359 66,037 566,219 1,170,615

Rentals 23,486 23,486

Utilities 7,924 356,94 364,418

Maintenance and operations 157,551 494,520 63,327 715,398

Depreciation and amortization 408,389 209,685 24,690 642,764

Insurance premiums 635,022 635,022

Insurance deductible 252,573 252,573

Fringe benefits 111,702 149,515 42,229 2,382,349 2,685,795

Other operating expenses 16,543 16,543

Total operating expenses 1,441,594 1,535,361 887,595 779,676 2,584,234 7,228,460

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 135,828 (145,007) 71,076 20,215 (690,911) (608,799)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Gain (loss) on sale of assets 24,900 (2,542) 22,358

Investment income 4,950 145,772 40.942 37,454 229,118

Total nonoperating revenues 29,850 143230 40,942 37,454 251,476

INCOME (LOSS) BElORE

TRANSFERS 165,678 112,018 20,215 (653,457) (357,323)

Transfers in 300,000 332,278 279,275 46,389 2,193,721 3,151,663

Transfers (out) (100,000) (25,000) (125,000)

Transfers in (out) 300,000 332,278 179,275 46,389 2,168,721 3,026,663

Change in net assets 465,678 330,501 291,293 66,604 1,515,264 2,669,340

NET ASSETS:

Beginning of year 2,700,727 1,640,416 202,261 428,579 192,667 5,164,650

End of year $3,166,05 $1,970,917 $493,554 $495,183 $1,707,931 $7,833,990
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Fleet Building Information Fringe
Maintenance Maintenance Insurance Systems Benefits Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers/ other funds $1,575,298 $1,383,849 $933,629 $808,997 ($3,839) $4,697,934
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (606,310) (901,023) (935,209) (678,753) 12,051 (3,109,244)
Cash payments to employees for services (306,106) (417,978) (120,880) (2,588,644) (3,433,608)
Other operating revenues 595 6,370 1,893,105 1,900,070

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 663,477 71,218 (1,580) 9,364 (687,327) 55,152

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers in 300,000 332,278 279,275 46,389 2,193,721 3,151,663
Transfers (out) (100,000) (25,000) (125,000)

Net cash provided (used)
by noncapital financing activities 300,000 332,278 179,275 46,389 2,168,721 3,026,663

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net changes in capital assets (749,512) (309,767) (14,553) (1,073,832)
Net cash provided (used) (749,512) (309,767) (14,553) (1,073,832)

by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest revenue 4,950 145,772 40,942 37,454 229,118

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 4,950 145,772 40,942 37,454 229,118

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 218,915 239,501 218,637 41,200 1,518,848 2,237,101

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of year 936,356 384,136 446,760 411,450 194,184 2,372,886
End of year $1,155,271 $623,637 $665,397 $452,650 $1,713,032 $4,609,987

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED

(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) $135,828 ($145,007) $71,076 $20,215 ($690,911) ($608,799)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 408,389 209,685 24,690 642,764
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 61 (24,837) (1,085) (25,861)
Loans receivable 9,106 9,106
Inventory
Prepaid items (1,590) (135) (205) (2,972) (4,902)
Accounts payable 121,010 16,028 (6,419) (49,207) 28,594 110,006
Salaries and wages payable 261 (2,982) 127 (20,953) (23,547)
Compensated absences (482) (6,371) 4,433 (2,420)
Insurance claims payable

(41,195) (41,195)
Total adjustments 527,649 216,225 (72656) (10,851) 3,584 663,951

Net cash provided (used) by operating actívities $663,477 $71,218 ($1,580) $9,364 ($687,327) $55,152
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City of Pittsburg
Supplemental Information
For the ended 30, 2006

Agency Funds

Assessment Districts Agency Fund- accounts for the collection of property taxes and the payments to
bondholders.

Environmental Impact Agency Fund- accounts for the collection of builders' fees to be used for related
environmental improvement projects.

Other Impact Fees Agency Fund- accounts for the collection of developer fees on behalf of the Contra Costa
Fire Protection District (CCFPD), Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) and the East Contra Costa Regional
Fee and Finance Authority (ECCRFF),

Vista Del Mar CFD Bond 2005-2 - Used to consh'uct and acquire certain public improvements, consisting of
roadway, water and other infrastructure improvements necessary for the development of property within the
district, as well as park improvements.
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City of Pittsburg
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilties
Agency Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2006

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

Assessment Districts Fund July 1, 2005 Additions Deletions June 30, 2006

Assets:

Cash and investments $1,896,107 $2,353,62 $2,034,906 $2,214,663
Cash and investments held by fiscal agent 2,709,553 2,430,922 2,536,431 2,604,044

Assessment receivable 24,439,603 829,470 23,610,133
Interest receivable 23,800 26,197 23,800 26,197

Total assets $29,069,063 $4,810,581 $5,424,607 $28,55,037

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $207 $63,654 $61,928 $1,933

Deferred assessment 2,273,856 2,273,856
Due to bondholders 26,795,000 29,248 645,000 26,179,248

Total liabilties $29,069,063 $92,902 $706,928 $28,455,037

Environmental Impact Fund

Assets:

Cash and investments $147,862 $145,104 $139,226 $153,740

Total assets $147,862 $145,104 $139,226 $153,740

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $173,124 $139,202 $33,922
Due to other parties $147,862 145,104 173,148 $119,818

Total liabilities $147,862 $318,228 $312,350 $153,740

Other Impact Fees Fund

Assets:

Cash and investments $431,67 $3,914,679 $2,973,237 $1,372,809

Total assets $431,367 $3,914,679 $2,973,237 $1,372,809

Liabilties:

Accounts payable $431,151 $3,899,438 $2,968,122 $1,362,467
Due to other parties 216 16,733 6,607 10,342

Total liabilities $431,367 $3,916,171 $2,974,729 $1,72,809

Vista Del Mar CFD Bond 2005

Assets:

Cash and investments held by fiscal agent $9,155,461 $9,155,461
Interest receivable 32,508 32,508

Total assets $9,187,969 $9,187,969

Liabilites:

Accounts payable $2,871,101 $2,871,101
Due to other parties 5,496,978 5,496,978
Due to bondholders 819,890 819,890

TotalliabiIties $9,187,969 $9,187,969

Total Agency Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments $2,475,336 $6,13,245 $5,147,369 $3,741,212
Cash and investments held by fiscal agent 2,709,553 11,586,383 2,536,431 11,759,505
Assessment receivable 24,439,603 829,470 23,610,133
Interest receivable 23,800 58,705 23,800 58,705

Total assets $29,648,292 $18,058,333 $8,537,070 $39,169,555

Lia bilities:

Accounts payable $431,58 $7,007,317 $3,169,252 $4,269,423
Deferred assessment 2,273,856 2,273,856
Due to other parties 148,078 5,658,815 179,755 5,627,138
Due to bondholders 26,795,000 849,138 645,000 26,999,138

TotalliabilHies $29,648,292 $13,515,270 $3,994,007 $39,169,555
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crry OF PITfSBURG
Net Assets by Component

Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)
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Governmental activities
Invested in Capita Assets,

Net of related debt ($26,238,165) ($153,333,826)
Restricted 83,593,162 68,567,367 207,720,167 120,268,977
Unrestricted 36,726,956 35,538,694 (109,058,438) 103,987,950

Total governmental activities net assets $151,745,443 $94,081,953 $104,106,061 $98,661,729 $70,923,101

Business-type activities
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of related debt $59,477,425 $56,818,181 $57,789,865 $36,566,114
Restricted 3,200,137 3,248,963 3,602,121 6,870,550
Unrestricted (201,0982 1,932,189 11,652,926 38,073,225

Total business-type activities net assets $46,654,191 $62,476,464 $61,999,333 $73.044,912 $81,509,889

Primary government
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $33,239,260 $56,818,181 $57,789,865 ($116,767,712)
Restricted 86,793,299 71,816,330 211,322,288 127,139,527
Unrestricted 36,525,858 37,470,883 (97,405,512) 142,061,175

Total primary government net assets $198,399,634 $156,558,417 $166,105,394 $171,706,641 $152,432,990

*Change in Reporting Standards; Totals only
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Changes in Net Assets
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2002"

Expenses
Governental Activities:

General Governent
Public Safety

Public Works
Coimminity Development & Services
mterest on Long Term Debt

Total Goverental Activities Expenses

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Wastewater
Ma
Other-Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses
Tota Prar Goveniment Expnses

Program Revenues

Governenta Activities:
Charges for Services:

General Governent
Public Safety

Public Works
Commuity Development
Cultue and Recreation

Operating Grants and Contrbutions
Capital Grants and Contrbutions

Total Government Activities Program Revenues
Business-Typ Activities:

Charges for Services:
Water
Wastewater
Mara
Other-Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Opratig Grants and Contrbutions

Capital Grants and Contributions
Total Business-Type Activities Prograni Revenue
Total Prmar Governent Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Total Primar Governent Net Expense

* Change in Reportg Stadads

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006

$16,110,457 $14,572,665 $18,599,651 $32,104,722
15,028,840 14,875,512 14,929,141 27,183,843
11,347,272 10,773,507 11,881,765 28,921,759

19,186,689 19,852,694 23,244,549
12,092,327 10,863,858 18,645,181 15,117,640

54,578,896 70,272,231 83,908,432 126,572,513

11,405,136 10,877,126 11,135,859 13,136,590
1,759,995 2,617,064 1,671,204 1,830,382
1,609,664 1,746,368 1,769,750 1,629,567
8,226,911 5,108,785 5,743,737 6,466,498

23,001,706 20,349,343 20,320,550 23,063,037
$77,580,602 $90,621,574 $104,228,982 $149,635,550

$905,118 $786,511
$16,590 $2,728,211 271,996 198,240

1,575,153 2,016,472 4,479,760 4,554,972
554,698 2,149,874 4,106,077
538,552 415,056 509,709

10,101,536 5,166,636 3,923,284
2,691,559 4,233,864 3,307,936

1,591,743 18,631,028 17,622,304 17,386,729

11,184,523 11,323,819 11,720,046 15,614,242
2,652,079 2,615,766 2,602,071 3,668,052
1,063,773 1,182,012 1,299,827 1,318,081
5,302,669 4,504,703 5,087,677 5,702,392

4,734,916 3,619,190
20,203,044 19,626,300 25,444,537 29,921,957

$21,794,787 $38,257,328 $43,066,841 $47,308,686

($52,987,153) ($51,641,203) ($66,286,128) ($109,185,784)

(2,798,662) (723,043) 5,123,987 6,858,920

($55,785,815) ($52,364,246) ($61,162,141) ($102,326,864)
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Change in Net Assets
Governental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Total Prar Govenmient

*Change in Reportg Stadads

CITY OF PITTSBURG
Changes in Net Assets

(continued)
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2002*
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2003 2004 2005 2006

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governenta Activities:

Taxes:
Propert Taxes

Sales Taxes
Motor Vehicle In-Lieu
Transient Occupancy Tax
Inter Governental Revenues
Nonregulatory Franchise and Business

Interest Eargs
Oter
Transfers

Total Governent Activities
Business-Typ Activities:

Interest Eargs
Transfers

Total Business-Type Activities
Total Prar Governent

$31,866,248 $38,100,202 $38,110,361 $43,852,448
8,379,413 6,605,075 7,665,033 8,490,041

2,707,765 3,955;277 4,376,374
125,541 144,920 152,204

20,570,045 23,541,748 20,523,145 18,063,262
1,994,682 2,064,216 2,053,747 2,181,141
9,619,312 2,248,357 4,733,336 7,594,655

4,289,084 12,435,988 11,393,786
37,091,967 43,733,222 47,719,563

72,429,700 116,773,955 133,355,029 143,823,475

329,611 312,016 381,267 1,047,319
2,000,000 2,321,000 10,231,255 2,076,052
2,329,611 2,633,016 10,612,522 3,123,371

$74,759,311 $119,406,971 $143,967,551 $146,946,846

$19,442,547 $65,132,752 $67,068,901 $34,637,691
(469,051) 1,909,973 15,736,509 9,982,291

$18,973,496 $67,042,725 $82,805,410 $4,619,982
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Fuuds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modifed Accrual Basis of Accounting)
t in thousands J

Fiscal Year Ended June

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Revenues

Taxes $27,343 $27,709 $29,156 $32,269 $36,209

Licenses, permits and fees 943 1,683 1,400 2,036 3,374

Fines and forfeitures 65 48 99 194 169

Use of money and propeity 3,121 3,119 2,406 3,380 4,536

Intergovernental revenues 9,237 8,895 8,926 9,605 11,167

Charges for services 2,080 2,419 2,805 2,566 3,087

Other 2,929 964 2,466 3,152

Total Revenues 45,718 47,258 53,202 61,418

Expenditures

Current:

General governent 6,103 6,616 10,417 9,423 14,236

Public safety 7,293 7,801 8,920 9,535 10,769

Public works 5,949 4,843 4,490 4,593 5,313

Cornunity development 9,451 9,592 9,829 9,585 10,737

Culture and recreation 601 659 751 1,051 1,314

Capital outlay 3,899 11,986 15,690 9,113 11,431

Debt service:

Principal repayment 3,267 3,364 15,530 4,025 4,215

Interest and fiscal charges 10,141 1l,013 10,759 10,171 10,758

Total Expenditures 55,874 76,386 57,496 68,773

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenduures (986) (11,037) (29,128) (4,294) (7,355)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 26,985 22,760 56,389 55,138 38,104

Tranfers (out) (26,013) (20,762) (56,025) (48,802) (35,185)
Capital contributions

Refunding tax allocation bonds (60,913)
Certifcates of participation issued

Tax allocation bonds issued 20,000 14,700 30,106 62,730

Taxable pension obligations bonds

Bond issuance costs (8,530) (676) (1,547)
Payments to refunded bond escrow

Sale of capital assets 9 64 2,012 47 15

Total other financing sources (uses) 12,451 2,062 16,400 34,942 4,751

Net Change in fund balances $11,465 ($8,975) ($12,728) $30,648 ($2,604)

Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures (a) (a) (a) (a) (a)

NOTE:

(a) The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003, Therefore this calculation is included only for
fiscal years subsequent to that date.
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Flscii Year Ended June 30,
2002 2003 2Ø04 2005 2006

$45,388 $42,240 $47,650 $49,003 $55,803
1,361 4,506 2,402 4,632 2,016

165 395 283 295 170

5,458 9,619 2,248 4,733 7,594
12,884 20,570 23,542 20,523 21,896
3,062 3,339 4,322 5,666 3,692

1,409 4,437 1,540 1,843 4,992

69,727 85,106 81,987 86,695 96,163

11,555 15,259 14,882 20,419 60,290
12,057 14,672 14,585 14,346 15,900
5,384 5,682 5,635 10,530 7,472

13,937 23,858 18,074 25,996 18,724

1,408 1,181 1,522 1,574 1,773

12,738 10,384 19,949 13,750 23,649

4,505 4,510 4,240 4,100 4,790
12,159 11,806 9,454 13,577 15,525

73,743 87,352 88,341 104,292 148,123

(4,016) (2,246) (6,354) (17,597) (51,960)

32,102 90,901 37;092 43;733 47;720

(31,795) (93,154) (38,556) (52,248) (51,305)
3,208

(36,495) (21,166)

7,500 88,375 146,605

39,566

(3,936) (248)

1,274 1,004 1,215 2,264 3,193

9,081 50;631 (249) 115,252 42,134

..-$5,065 $48,385 ($6,603) $97,655 ($9,82.!

(a) 21.2% 20.0% 19.5% 16.3%
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CITY OF PITTSBURG

ASSESSED AN ESTIMTED ACTUAL
VALUE OF TAXLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

$6,000

$$,000

S4,OOO

l S3,OOO
~

S2,OOO

$1,-000

so

1991 1998 1999 2000 2001 2003 2004 20052002

jl!unsecured Propertyl! Secured Property I 

2006

Total Before Exemptions Total
Fiscal Personal Grand Unsecured Total DIrect~ Land Improvements Property Total HOP'(!) Pi'operty Assessed (a) Tax Rate (b

1997 $607,784.314 $2.001.227.522 $96,122,913 $2.705.134,749 $61,910,526 $262,484,258 $2.609,830.241 1%

1998 618,410.249 2.025.801,710 95,397,806 2,739,609,765 62,296,434 248,212,044 2.640,138,276 1%

1999 633.527.833 1.914.668.740 208.395,497 2.756,592.070 62,689,388 247,012,088 2,649,701,475 1%

2000 671,396,662 2.091.658,596 90.841.124 2,853,896.382 63,422,066 242,193.779 2.735.730,231 1%

2001 719,493.211 2,316.291.798 96.055,194 3.131.840.203 64,914,955 273,889,366 3,021.659.292 1%

2002 762.338,829 3,065,067.577 104.985,233 3,932.391,639 67,034,225 848,421,348 3.810,523.428 1%

2003 863,942,493 3,404.046,164 123,237,922 4.391.226,579 68,588,456 1,085,723,391 4.262.656.324 1%

2004 1.065,703.737 3.737.733,209 120.569,117 4.924.006,063 69.854,212 703,793,132 4.787,689,809 1%

2005 1.232,755.118 3.794.398,115 107,600.340 5.134.753.573 69,378,527 670,107,833 4.996.083.733 1%

2006 1.435,121.959 4.078.052,994 101,971.604 5.615,146,557 68.931,232 716,256,830 5,480.070.846 1%

Source: Contr Costa County Auditor ContrUer Ofce Certicate of Assessed Valuations

(1) Homeowners' Property Tax Relief

(a) The State Constitution requies property to be assessed at one hundred percent of the most
recent purchase price, pius an increment of no more than two percent anuay, pius any
local over-rides, TIiese values are considered to be fu market values.

(b) Californa cities do not set their own dirt ta rate. The state constitution establishes the rate at 1% and
alocates a porton of that amoun~ by an aruiua! calcultion, to al the ta entities with a ta rate area.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
'PROPERTY TAX RATES

ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNNTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

.-l-
-$0.1 $0.0 $0.1 $0.2 $0.3 $0.4 $0.5 $0.6 $0.7 $0.8 $0.9 $1.0 $1. $12

College il Los Medanos Hospital i! East Bay Regional Park District

Area Rapid Transit !i Wcst CC Unitied School Dist I!Basic Connty Wide Levy

Basic Bay East Bay West
County Los Area Regional Contra Costa

Fiscal Wide Medanos Rapid Park Unied School Communty
Year Levy Hospital Transit District District College _ Total-
1997 :f1.OOOO 0.0386 0.0094 $1.ü05
1998 L.OOOÜ 0.0398 oono 0.0080 0.0143 1.0841
1999 L.OOOO 0.0409 00 0.0081 00238 1.0895
2000 LOOOO 0.0411 0.0092 00331 1.0834
2001 1.0000 0.0331 0.0088 0.0417 1,0836
2002 L.OOOO 0.0318 0,0065 0.0542 1.0925
2003 L.OOOO 0.0307 ooon 0.0377 0.0040 1.0796
2004 L.OOOO 0.0091 0.0057 0.0274 00038 1.0460
2005 i.OOOO ~O.OI44 0.0057 0.0309 0.0042 1.0264
2006 10000 0.0000 0.0057 O.OG06 0.0047 1.0758

Source: Contra Costa County Assessors Offce & California Muncipal Statistics
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2005-06 1996-97
Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

USS - Posco Industries $248,737,999 2 5.1% $416,935,440 15,61%

Dow Chemical Company 106,197,550 3 2.2% 143,961,518 2 5,39%

Sierra Pacific Properties 21,797,400 II 0.5% 48,903,032 3 1,83%

Century Plaza Corporation 0.0% 41,825,611 4 1.7%

National Energy Contractors 28,009,605 7 0.6% 36,074,007 5 1.35%

GWF Power Ssytem Limited Parter 26,490,790 8 0.5% 34,147,607 6 1.28%

Meadow Creek Estates 0,0% 34,147,607 7 1.28%

Kirker Creek Limited Partership 43,273,075 5 0.9% 22,191,500 8 0,83%

Union Carbide Industries Gases, Inc 14,451,832 0.3% 19,356,728 9 0,72%

Albert D Seeno Construction Co. 18,431,083 12 0.4% 15,150,263 10 0.57%

Delta Energy Center 476,200,000 0.0%

Sien'a Pacific Apartents 67,442,699 4 0.0%

Oakmont Propertes II & II LP 29,655,175 6 0.0%

Seecon Financial 26,131,826 9 0.0%

Delaware North Park LLC 21,797,400 10 0.0%

Franklin Medanos Association 17,846,789 13 0.0%

Steadfast Maria Heights 17,200,000 14 0.0%

Ronald P and Maureen Ashley 16,629,494 15

Signode Corporation 14,908,763 16

Pittsburg Parters LLC 14,752.327 17

Subtotal $1,209,953,807 25,0% $812,693,313 30.4%

Total Net Assessed Valuation:
Fiscal Year 2005.2006 $4,832,601,616
Fiscal Year 1996-1997 $2,671,740,767

Source: Californa Mtmicipal Statistics, Inc
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

14.00%

12.00% -

2.00%

10.00%

8.00%

6.00% -

4.00%

0.00%
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Percent
of Total 

Current Percent Deliquent Total Deliquent
Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax ~June30
Year Tax Levy (a) Collections Collected Collections Collections (County)

1997 $33,417,361 $32,604,147 97,5665% $813,214 $33,417,361 2.43%
1998 34,203,594 33,427,464 97.7309% 776,130 34,203,594 2,27%
1999 34,597,114 33,816,560 97.7439% 780,554 34,597,114 2.26%
2000 35,677,382 34,774,682 97.4698% 902,700 35,677,382 2.53%
2001 43,095,927 37,873,416 87.8817% 5,222,511 43,095,927 12.12%
2002 41,278,061 40,363,109 97.7834% 914,952 41,278,061 2,22%
2003 43,884,508 42,770,506 97.4615% 1,114,002 43,884,508 2.54%
2004 51,916,285 50,918,662 98,0784% 997,623 51,916,285 1.92%
2005 53,809,800 52,551,716 97.6620% 1,258,084 53,809,800 2.34%
2006 61,984,118 59,988,331 96.7802% 1,995,787 61,984,118 3.22%

Source: City of Pittsburg Records

NOTE: Current tax collections beginning in 1993 have been reduced by a mandatory
tax reallocation imposed by the State of California

(a) During fiscal year 1995, the County began providing the City 100% of its
tax levy under an agreement which allows the County to keep all interest
and delinquency charges collected.

141



CITY OF PITTSBURG
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

$500,000,000

$450,000,000

$50,000,000

$400,000,000

$350,000,000

$300,000,000

g'
" $250,000,000e

$200,000,000

$150,000,000 L

$100,000,000

$0

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

(!otal GovernentalllTot~1 BusinëS

Governmental Activities
Tax Pass Special

Fiscal Allocation Through Assessment LandfiU
Year Bonds Obligations Debt Containment Total

1997 $170,950,787 $755,584 $18,060,000 N/A $189,766,371
1998 167,975,000 606,497 17,450,000 N/A 186,031,497
1999 165,145,000 803,741 19,450,000 N/A 185,398,741
2000 192,151,357 997,943 18,525,000 N/A 211,674,300
2001 188,891,357 1,247,280 25,070,000 N/A 215,208,637
2002 186,921,357 2,434,946 26,805,000 N/A 216,161,303
2003 241,812,819 3,199,939 27,950,000 N/A 272,962,758
2004 237,124,796 5,444,924 27,415,000 N/A 269,984,720
2005 352,556,357 8,206,902 26,795,000 N/A 387,558,259
2006 387,332,413 9,162,781 38,265,000 N/A 434,760,194

Business-Type Activites

Water Sewer Total Percentage
Fiscal Revenue Revenue Primary otPersonal Per
Year Bonds Bonds Total Government Income (a) Capita (a)

1997 $0 $13,400,000 $13,400,000 $203,166,371 25.37% $3,961
1998 0 27,785,000 27,785,000 213,816,497 24.71% 4,072
1999 14,655,000 12,850,000 27,505,000 212,903,741 20.92% 3,981
2000 14,655,000 12,550,000 27,205,000 238,879,300 18.80% 4,393
2001 14,655,000 12,230,000 26,885,000 242,093,637 22,83% 4,176
2002 14,370,000 11,895,000 26,265,000 242,426,303 21.3% 4,051
2003 14,070,000 11,545,000 25,615,000 298,577,758 25.10% 4,889
2004 13,760,000 11,845,000 25,605,000 295,589,720 23.50% 4,808
2005 13,430,000 11,335,000 24,765,000 412,323,259 31,65% 6,586
2006 38,475,000 10,815,000 49,290,000 484,050,194 Not Available 7,739

Note: Debt amounts exclude any premiums, discounts, or other amortization amounts.

(a) Demographic and Economic Statistics
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten l!'iscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Percentage of

Actual Taxable
Fiscal Assessment Value of Per
Year Bonds Total Property Capita-
1997 $170,950,787 $170,950,787 6.55% 3,333.09

1998 167,975,000 167,975,000 6.36% 3,198.98

1999 165,145,000 165,145,000 6.23% 3,087.98

2000 192,151,357 192,151,357 7,02% 3,533,30

2001 188,891,357 188,891,357 6.25% 3,258.10

2002 186,921,357 186,921,357 4.91% 3,123.53

2003 241,812,819 241,812,819 5.67% 3,959.80

2004 237,124,796 237,124,796 4.95% 3,856.88

2005 352,556,357 352,556,357 7.06% 5,631.44

2006 387,332,413 387,332,413 7.07% 6,192.66

143



CITY OF PITTSBURG
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2006

2005.06 Assessed Valuation

(Afer deducti $3,750,471,513 Redevlopment Incrementa Valuation)

$1,798,530,565

DIRCT AN OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

Percentae Amount

Total Debt Applicable Applicable

Outstadig To City of To City of 

6/30/2006 Pittburg Pittsbur

$100,000,000 0.497% $497,000

115,000,000 1.73% 1,808,950

226,885,000 0.898% 2,037,427

73,115,000 0,898% 656,573

56,610,000 &8.087% 49,866,051

(l ) 0 100% 0

12,115,000 100% 12,115,000

15,625,000 100% 15,625,000

111,170,000 0.727% 808,206

$610,520,000 83,414,207

Bay Area Rapid Tranit Distrct

Contra Costa Communty College Distrct
Mount Diablo Uiùfed School Distrct

Mount Diablo Unied School Ditrct Communties Facilties Dit No. 1
Pittsbur Unied School Distrct

City of Pittbur
City of Pittbur Communty Facilties Distrct No. 2005.2
City of Pittsbur 1915 Act Bonds
East Bay Regional Park Distrct

TOTAL DIRCT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AN ASSESSMENT DEBT

OVERLAPPING GENERA FU DEBT:

Contra Costa County General Fund Obligations

Contra Costa County Pension Obligations

Contra Costa County Board of Education Certcates of Participation

Contra Costa Community College Distrct Certcates of Parcipation
Antioch Unied School Distrct Cerûfcates of Paricipation
Monnt Diablo Unied School Distrct Certifcates ofParticipetion

Pittsburg Unified School Distrct Certificates of Parcipation
City of Pitæburg Pension Obligation Bonds

Contra Costa Fire Protection Distrct Pension Obligations

$301,770,000
537,005,000

1,310,000

1,215,000

15,350,812

6,310,000

12,655,000

39,566,056

129,900,000

1.70%
1.70%
1.70%
1.73%
0.692%
0.898%

88.087%

100%

3.392%

$4,737,789

8,430,979

20,567

19,112

106,228

56,664

11,147,410

39,566,056

4,406,208

TOTAL OVERLAPPING GENERAL FU DEBT $1,045,081,868 $68,491,013

GROSS COMBlND TOTAL DEBT (2) $151,905,220

(l) Excludes general obligation bonds

(2) Excludes ta and revenue anticipation notes, revenue, mortage revenue and ta alocation bonds and non-bonded capita lease oblitions.

RATIOS TO 2005.06 ASSESSED V ALUA TION:

Direct Debt

Total Gross Dù'ect and Overlapping Tax Assessment Debt
0.00%
1.0%

RATIOS TO ADJUSTED ASSESSED VALUATION:
Combined Direct Debt ($39,566,056)

Combined Tota Debt

2.20%

8.45%

Source: Calforna Muncipal Statitics, Inc.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL BONDED DEBT MAGIN

JUNE 30, 2006

ASSESSED VAl,VATION:

Secured property assessed value, net of
exempt real property

(1) Net of $3,750,471,513 Redevelopment mcremental Valuaton

$1,798,530,565 (1)

BONDED DEBT LIM (3.75% OF ASSESSED VALUE) (a)

AMOUNT OF DEBT SUBJECT TO LIM:

Total Bonded Debt $0

Less Tax Allocation Bonds and Sales Tax Revenue

Bonds, Certificate of Participation not subject to limit

Amount of debt subject to limt

LEGAL BONDED DEBT MAGlN

Total net debt
Total Net Debt Legal applicable to the limit

Fiscal Debt Applicable to Debt as a percentage
Year Limit Limit Margin of debt limit

1997 $57,530,197 $0 $57,530,197 0.00%
1998 58,276,041 0 58,276,041 0.00%
1999 56,556,030 0 56,556,030 0.00%
2000 56,647,684 0 56,647,684 0,00%
2001 60,557,599 0 60,557,599 0.00%
2002 65,207,274 0 65,207,274 0.00%
2003 67,358,919 0 67,358,919 0,00%
2004 69,724,135 0 69,724,135 0,00%
2005 63,272,582 0 63,272,582 0.00%
2006 67,444,896 0 67,444,896 0,00%

NOTE:

(a) Californa Governent Code, Section 43605 sets the debt limt at 15%. The
Code section was enacted prior to the change in basing assessed value to full market
value when it was previously 25% of market value, Thus, the limt shown as 3.75%
is one-four the limt to account for the adjustment of showig assessed valuation

at full cash value.
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

2004 WASTEWATER REVENU BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR

300.0%

/
2511.0%

200.00%

150.00%

100.00%

50.00%

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

I-+- Coverage!

Debt Servce Requirements

Net Revenue
Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenue Expenses De bt Servce Principal Interest Total Coverage

1997 $2,544,049 $519,146 $2,024,903 $250,000 $709,749 $959,749 210,98%
1998 2,624,424 362,985 2,261,439 270,000 698,837 968,837 233.42%
1999 2,564,140 701,174 1,862,966 280,000 685,924 965,924 192,87%
2000 2,665,739 755,609 1,910,130 300,000 672,352 972,352 196.44%
2001 2,208,318 729,230 1,479,088 320,000 658,213 978,213 151.20%
2002 2,372,712 800,563 1,572,149 335,000 636,930 971,930 161.6%
2003 2,829,931 1,134,392 1,695,539 350,000 625,603 975,603 173,79%
2004 2,753,990 1,346,758 1,407,232 475,000 674,157 1,149,157 122.46°1.,
2005 2,767,970 1,254,647 1,513,323 510,000 416,557 926,557 163,33%
2006 3,929,540 (I) 1,568,969 (2) 2,360,571 520,000 391,035 911,035 259,11%

Notes: FY1996-97 though FY2004-05 Source: Prior Years' City of Pittburg Anual Financial Statements

(1) Includes all Wastewater Operating Revenues, Non-operating Interest Revenue, Facility Reserve Fees and other Non-operating Revenue
(2) Includes all Wastewater Operating Expenses, Transfers Out and less Depreciation and Interest
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
REVENU BOND COVERAGE

1997 (Refunded) & 2005 WATER REVENU BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

500.00%

400,00%

300.00%

200.00%

100,00%

0.00%

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

E!- Coverage I

Debt Service Requirements
Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenue Expenses Debt Service Principal- Interest Total Coverage

1997 $n/a $n/a $n/a $n/a $n/a $n/a n/a
1998 8,133,354 6,380,594 1,752,760 0 708,446 708,446 247.41%
1999 9,291,160 6,914,408 2,376,752 0 775,233 775,233 306.59%
2000 10,933,678 7,420,314 3,513,364 0 772,850 772,850 454.60%
2001 9,511,873 8,915,565 596,308 0 775,604 775,604 76.88%
2002 10,413,098 8,864,354 1,548,744 0 777,674 777,674 199.15%
2003 11,381,346 10,632,175 749,171 285,000 772,961 1,057,961 70.81%
2004 11,420,970 10,124,266 1,296,704 310,000 732,328 1,042,328 124.40%
2005 11,841,761 10,382,424 1,459,337 330,000 753,435 1,083,435 134.70%
2006 16,307,016 (1) 11,867,168 (2) 4,439,848 720,000 1,683,100 2,403,100 184,76°/(i

Notes: FY1996-97 though FY2004-05 Source: Prior Years' City of Pittsburg Anual Financial Statements
(1) Includes all Water Operating Revenues, Non-operating Interest Revenue, Facility Reserve Fees and other Non-operating Revenue
(2) hicludes all Water Operating Expenses & Transfers Out less Depreciation and Interest
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
BONDED DEBT PLEDGED REVENU COVERAGE

TAX ALLOCATION BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

ê
= $71

i
$66

$61

$56

$51

$46

$41

$36

$31

$26

$21

$16

$11

$6

$1

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

il Tax Increment Revenue il Debt Servce Payment

Tax Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Inci'ement
Year Revenue Piincipal mtel'est Total Coverage

1997 $12,893,994 $3,267,378 $10,141,254 $13,408,632 0.96
1998 13,007,360 3,363,787 11,012,575 14,376,362 0.90
1999 13,615,797 2,830,000 9,169,459 11,999,459 1.3
2000 14,619,370 4,025,000 10,170,846 14,195,846 1.03
2001 17,187,171 4,215,000 10,378,601 14,593,601 1.8
2002 23,744,133 4,505,000 10,582,784 15,087,784 1.7
2003 28,663,760 4,510,000 9,330,885 13,840,885 2,07
2004 34,730,440 4,240,000 9,454,394 13,694,394 2.54
2005 35,255,101 4,100,000 13,576,709 17,676,709 1.99
2006 40,823,117 4,790,000 14,995,717 19,785,717 2.06

Source: City of Pittsburg Anual Financial Statements
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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1-- Per Capita i 111 Unemployment Rate (%) I

Average Per Capita Contra Costa Pittsburg
Fiscal City Per Capita Personal Unemployment County Population
Year Population Income Income Rate(%) Population % of County 

1997 51,289 $304 4.4(0) 885,357 5.79%
1998 52,509 314 3.8% 905,433 5.80%
1999 53,480 356 3,1% 923,817 5.79%
2000 54,383 430 3.9% 929,445 5.85%
2001 57,976 315 4.0% 964,579 6.01%
2002 59,843 319 5.9% 980,870 6.10%
2003 61,067 325 6.6% 994,908 6.14%
2004 61,481 333 5.7% 1,003,909 6.12%
2005 62,605 332 5.1% 1,020,898 6.13%
2006 62,547 Unavailahle Unavailable 4.5% 1,029,377 6.08%

Source: Californa State Deparent of Finance
US Deparent of Commerce

ESRI Business Information Solutions - Historical Data Research from Prior Year CAFR's
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CIT OF PITSBURG
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2005-06 1996-97
Percentage Percentage

Number of of Total City Number of of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

USS - Posco Industres 1,000 2 1.6% 990 1.9%

Pittsburg Unied School Distrct 1,400 2.2% 962 2 1.9%

Tosco Corporation 800 3 1.6%

Shell Oil Companes 775 4 1.5%

Pacific Gas & Electric 600 5 1,2%

Dow Chemical Company 380 4 0.6% 550 6 IJ%

A. D Seeno Constrction 250 7 0.5%

Walmar 220 5 0.4% 250 8 0,5%

Lost Medanos Communty College 640 3 1.0% 190 9 0.4%

Dexter Aerospace (Bay Point) 170 10 0.3%

BioZone 200 6 0.3%

Home Depot 180 7 0.3%

Target 170 8 0,3%

Loctite Aerospace 160 9 0.3%

Safeway 150 10 0.2%

Subtotal 4,500 7.2% 5,537 10,9%

Tota City Day Population 62,547 50,832

Source: City of Pittburg Economic Development Deparent
1996-97 data from CAFR (Chamber of Commerce & State Dept of Finance)
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Ful-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Yeai's
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¡¡ General Governent

¡¡ Recreation

¡¡ Public Safety (Police)

Il Water

Il Public Works

Il Wastewater

II Communty Development

o Solid WastelRecycling

Adopted for Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006-- -----

Function
General Government 36 42 39 45 48 43 40 39 34 36
Public Safety (Police) 87 90 91 91 97 ILL 105 96 96 91
Public Works 139 140 123 131 157 130 142 106 106 103
Community Development 45 53 57 52 46 52 61 74 74 70
Recreation 27 66 20 79 69 97 84 77 77 75
Water 9.5 13 13 20 20 20 21 21 21 21
Wastewater 2,5 4,5 4.5 7 7 7 4 4 4 4
Solid WastelRecycling - -
Total 346 409 348 425 444 460 457 417 412 400--
Source: City of Pittsburg

151



CITY OF PITTSBURG
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Function/Program
Public safety:

Police:
Police calls for Servce n/a 7,237 (1) 58,590 50,390 65,043
Law violations:

Par I and Par II crimes 7,322 8,247 8,165 8,600 9,581

Physical arrests (adult and juvenile) 3,518 3,282 3,757 3,987 4,166
Trafc violations (VC14601 & VC12500) 795 281 128 278 262

(1) 1998 Total Calls Period October to December

(2) Do not include Dec 2006 DOJ Monthly Report

Traffc Violations reported to 12/18/06

(Fire Protection is Contra Costa County)

Public works
Number of Street Lights 4,051 4,051 4,051 4,051 3,861
Streets repaired (square miles) n/a n/a n/a 18,883 30,468

Recreation Services:
Community Servces:

Recreation Class Parcipants n/a n/a n/a nla n/a
Swim Parcipants n/a n/a n/a n/a 8,535
Softball Participants n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Small World Park Gate Attendance n/a n/a n/a nla n/a
Senior Center NutrtionÆxercise Class (1) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

(1) Senior Center Opened March 2004

Januaiy 2006 Senior Center flooded Closed 7.5 weeks

Water
Nuniber of Meters Served 13,418 13,476 13,505 13,633 14,048
Water Main Breas n/a n/a n/a 89 108
Average Daily Consumption (milions of gallons) 9.430 8.538 8.834 8.365 9,345

Wastewater
Miles of Sewer Line (Excludig line operated by Delta Diablo Distrct 7-A) 136.9 136.9 136.9 149.6
Average daily treatment (thousands of gallons) n/a nia n/a n/a n/a

Solid Waste
Refuse Landflled (tons per year) 54,456 50,234 44,750 47,152 66,812
Recyclables Processed (tons per year) 10,883 12,230 29,645 33,531 31,929

Source: City of Pittsburg Divisions & Prior Year CAFR's
Note: n/a denotes information not available.
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2002 2003
Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006

74,438 68,050 64,659 67,778 67,591

10,678
5,014

660

9,597
4,892
1,112

8,076
3,411

871

8,244
3,401

568 (2)

8,308
3,688

636

149,813 96,023 62,472 78,411 42,509

559 822 317 509 517
11,697 8,345 8,503 8,837 8,737
n/a 649 210 145 320
nla 24,105 21,238 19,227 18,600
nla 0 7,769 22,690 21,423

15,023 15,425 15,587 15,894
nla nla nla 65 61
9.261 9.487 9.769 9.155 9.508

173,5 173.5 173.5 173.5
nla nla nla nla 27

66,936 76,595 70,535 85,034 nla
27,666 27,709 31,946 33,037 nla
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CITY OF PITTSBURG
Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionlProgram

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Function/Program
Public safety:

Police stations 1 1 1 1 1

p(

Public works
Miles of streets 140.99 140.99 140.99 140.99 147.85

Street lights 3,282 3,432 3,371 3,394 3,428

Cultue and recreation:
Community servces:

City Parks 8 8 10 10 11

City parks acreage 92 92 106 106 114

Roadway landscaping acreage 10.7 11. 11. 11.6 11.6

Regional park acreage 41.4 42,4 42.4 42.4 42.5

Regional park facilties:
Golf courses (18 holes) 1 1 1 1 1

Marna Fuel Station 1 1 1 1 1

Community Civic Center 1 1 1 1 1

Senior centers 1 1 1 1 1

Swimming pools 1 1 1 I 1

Tenns cours 0 1 1 1 1

Librar:
Contra Costa County Library 1 1 1 1

Water
Storage capacity (miliona of gallons) 14.10 14.10 14.10 14.10 14.10

Wastewater
Miles of sanita sewers 136,92 136.92 136.92 136.92 149.64
Number of treatment plants 1 1 1 1 1

Treatment capacity (milions of gallons) 32 32 32 32 32

(2) Information now reported from the City's GIS system and is more accurate.
Source: City of Pittsburg Staf & Prior Year CAFR's
Note: nla denotes information is not available.
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2002 2003
Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006

1 1 1 1 1
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